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6 Fdward J. Hood

Member

Edward ). Hood has practiced civil litigation at Clark Hill since 1989. His
litigation practice involves construction, business, and tort cases in state
and federal courts and arbitrations. Edward serves as the firm's
General Counsel, representing the law firm in its legal matters and
counseling firm attorneys on professional ethics and risk management

issues, Office
Edward is also a trained and qualified mediator and arbitrator. He Detroit

accepts mediation and arbitration engagements involving business,

construction, and professional liability issues. Edward is a member of 509 Woodward Ave
the American Arbitration Association’s national roster of construction Suite 3500
arbitrators. Detroit, Ml 48226

Edward is rated "AV" by Martindale-Hubbell's peer review rating service,
the highest rating for legal ability and ethics, and has been selected for
inclusion in Michigan Super Lawyers and in The Best Lawyers in
America. He is a Fellow of the American Bar Foundation, an honor

b reserved to less than one percent of lawyers in each state.,

Phone: 313.965.8591
Fax: 313.965.8252
Email:
ehood@clarkhill.com

Edward currently serves as a member of the State Bar of Michigan Education
Committee on Professional Ethics. He has also been active in three
chapters of the American Inns of Court - an organization dedicated to
excellence and civility in advocacy.

M.B.A., with high
distinction, University
of Michigan, Ann

While at the University of Michigan, Edward majored in English Arbor, Michigan, 2005
literature and earned a varsity letter as a member of the Michigan |.D., cum laude, Wayne
football team from 1982 to 1985. Edward remains an active supporter State University Law
of University of Michigan athletics, and served as President of the School, Detroit,
Letterwinners M Club for 2007-2008. Michigan, 1989

While attending Wayne State University, Edward received several moot B.A., University of
court advocacy awards, including the Mark Johnson briefwriting award, Michigan, Ann Arbor,
first place briefwriter in Spring 1988 Moot Court Competition, first place  Michigan, 1986

in the Fall 1987 Arthur Neef Moot Court Competition, and first place in

the Spring 1988 Law Day Moot Court Competition. He also represented ~ State Bar Licenses

Wayne Law School as a briefwriter in national Moot Court Competition. Michigan

Edward earned a Master of Business Administration degree at the

Stephen M. Ross School of Business at the University of Michigan. He Court Admissions

graduated with high distinction and twice earned admission to Beta U.S. District Ct., E.D. of
( Gamma Sigma, the highest scholastic honor conferred by the Ross Michigan
O School of Business.

hitps://www.clarkhill.com/people/edward-j-hood 1/30/2019
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Edward is a contributing author of Clark Hill's Michigan Construction
Law Manual, which was first published by West in 2009.

The following are some of Edward's cases:

» Lead counsel for global integrated steel producer in arbitration
against supplier of iron ore regarding pricing and environmental
issues

+ Lead counsel in several corporate governance, fiduciary duty and
shareholder rights actions in Michigan courts

» Lead counsel for trucking company in defense of significant
personal injury claim, including alleged traumatic brain injury

+ Lead and local counsel for international food franchisor in various
civil litigation

« Lead counsel for global integrated steel producer in arbitration
against supplier of pulverized coal regarding supply reliability and
pricing issues

- Lead counsel for receiver in SEC civil enforcement action against
a Ponzi-scheme operator and ancillary fraudulent transfer and
securities fraud actions

+ Lead counsel for global integrated steel producer in arbitration
against coke supplier regarding product quality issues

+ Lead counsel for municipality in defense of claim for cost
overruns on water/sewer project

« Lead counsel for global integrated steel producer in class action
lawsuits claiming environmental nuisance and related air quality
claims

+ Lead counsel for subcontractor in asserting change and cost
overrun claim on oil refinery project

+ Lead counsel for Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation in
declaratory judgment action against director and officer liability
policy insurer

+ Lead counsel for bankruptcy trustee in adversary proceedings
against principal of Tier-1 automotive supplier

+ Lead counsel for general contractor in asserting delay, disruption
and cost overrun claims on natural gas process and distribution
facility project

Awards/Achievements

The Best Lawyers in America, 25th Edition

Memberships

American Bar Association, Litigation Section, Construction Forum
State Bar of Michigan, Litigation Section, Business Section
Washtenaw County Bar Association

https://www.clarkhill.com/people/edward-j-hood
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Construction Financial Management Association
Detroit Area Construction Association

Newsletter Alerts

Your Place or Mine? Drafting Forum Selection Clauses in the Wake of
Rieth-Riley

News

Sixty-Six Clark Hill Attorneys Named 2018 Michigan Super Lawyers &
Rising Stars

143 Clark Hill Attorneys Selected for Inclusion in the 2019 Edition of
Best Lawyers in America

Sixty-Seven Clark Hill Attorneys Named 2018 Leading Lawyers

Sixty-Six Clark Hitl Attorneys Named 2017 Michigan Super Lawyers &
Rising Stars

Sixty Clark Hill Attorneys Named 2016 Michigan Super Lawyers &
Rising Stars

Clark Hill Attorney Edward ). Hood Co-Presents On-Demand Webcast
“Of Counsel Relationships from Both Sides” for the Institute of
Continuing Legal Education

Sixty-Six Clark Hill Attorneys Selected for the 2015 Super Lawyers
Business Edition

Sixty-Five Clark Hill Attorneys Named to Michigan Super Lawyers 2015
List

Fifty-Seven Clark Hill Attorneys Named 2014 Leading Lawyers

Sixty-Three Clark Hill Attorneys Named to Michigan Super Lawyers
2014 List

hitps://www.clarkhill.com/people/edward-j-hood 1/30/2019
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Professional Ethics & Risk Management O

Professional Ethics

Clark Hill attorneys counsel and represent many different i‘ez's:r?a"ageme"t
professionals—including accountants, attorneys, directors, officers

and fiduciaries, financial series providers, real estate agents and William B.

insurance agents—in pre-suit negotiations and in litigation. Dunn

We understand that the outcome of a dispute or trial can have Edward ).

profound ramifications on the professional reputations of the Hood

individuals involved, as well as the partnerships, practices and
companies for which they work. On behalf of our clients, we obtain
defense verdicts, summary judgments, non-suits, dismissals and
favorable settlements. Our representation ranges from national firms
to sole practitioners.

Professional Ethics
& Risk
Management
Professionals

We have special experience in ethics, risk management and
professional responsibility issues facing lawyers. Clark Hill is equipped
to conduct risk audits of law firms suggesting methods to reduce the  Bunn, William B.
potential of liability exposure. The firm represents attorneys facing
grievance procedures, bar admission disputes, disqualification
motions, and other issues implicating the Rules of Professional Hood, Edward J.
Conduct, Professional re;ponSIb[llty att.orneys at Clar‘k 'I-.hll are active Richman, Steven M. O
members of the Association of Professional Responsibility Lawyers

and the ABA Center for Professional Responsibility. Rosinski, Frances A. _

Brandon, David L.

Flaherty, Timothy M.

Shindler, Donald A.

News Turner, Reginald M.

Member David Brandon's Article Published on Los Angeles County Bar wieczorek, Nicholas
Association's LACBA Update M.

Sixty-Six Clark Hill Attorneys Named 2018 Michigan Super Lawyers &
Rising Stars

143 Clark Hill Attorneys Selected for Inciusion in the 2019 Edition of Best Lawyers in
America

Articles

"The Dos and Don'ts of Witness Compensation," Los Angeles County Bar Association
Update, December 2018

From Fort Lee to Bowling v. Office of Open Records

Rethinking Governmental Immunity in Pennsylvania
Sitting in Judgment O

*

https://www.clarkhill.com/contents/professional-ethics-risk-manag 1/30/2019
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Presentations

O Amendments to the Pennsylvania Rules of Professional Conduct - Legal Intelligencer In-
House Counsel CLE, March 18, 2014

Attorney Pitfalls with Social Media and E-Mail: Ethics Considerations Raised by Social Media
and Dangers to the Attorney-Client Privilege - August 2012

https://www.clarkhill. com/contents/professional-ethics-risk-manag 1/30/2019
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Clark Hill is a multidisciplinary, international law firm that draws on our attorneys’
comprehensive industry and policy knowledge and a global network of industry advisors and
subject-matter experts to provide innovative legal solutions and client-service excellence
worldwide. Our work is guided by our deeply-held shared values, including practicality,

entrepreneurship, mutual respect, diversity, ethical behavior and a commitment to client and
community service.

One of the largest firms in the United States — with more than 650 attorneys and
professionals in 25 offices, spanning the United States as well as Dublin and Mexico City, we
are a committed partner to a diverse range of leading brands, forward-thinking businesses,
public entities, nonprofit organizations and individuals. Our significant presence in
Washington, DC, and our deep government relations and public affairs experience at every
level help ensure that our clients’ voices are heard in the development of federal and state
regulatory policy and legislation.

Our investment in new service lines and programs — such as HR/Advantage, Information
Governance 360, Reputation Governance 360 and Conrad Consulting — further reinforces

our ability to develop and deliver coordinated legal, business, and political strategies that
achieve business success.

Clark Hill is built upon a core set of vaiues that guide us in our relationships with our clients,
our interactions with each other, and our connection to the communities in which we serve.
These values have a real and lasting impact on the way we conduct our business, the way we
treat our clients and colleagues, and the way we go about growing our firm. We believe these
values come into play in each and every client experience, and they are essential to the
uktimate success of our lawyers and our firm.

Our DNA consists of these guiding principles:

Count On More. We provide practical counsel with an entrepreneurial spirit, offering
innovative ideas, technologies and solutions. We deliver value through high quality work and
a collaborative team approach.

Relationships Fuel Our Firm. Respect is the foundation of our strong relationships with
clients and colleagues. We are tenacious advocates for aur clients while being approachable
and supportive.

Everyone Matters. We value the contributions of each individual in our firm and encourage
fresh ideas and diverse perspectives. We embrace the differences among our colleagues,
enriching our experiences.

Ethical Behavior is Non-Negotiable. We believe in doing the right thing every time. We
uphold our professional responsibilities and are accountable for our actions.

https://www.clarkhill.com/pages/about 1/30/2019
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it's Not Just About Us. Making a positive impact is central to who we are. We devote our
personal and collective time, talent and resources to making our communities better places

to live and work, O

Fast Facts:

Attorneys: 600+

Year Established: 1890
Full Service:

+ Business Legal Services
+ Personal Legal Services
» Government & Public Affairs

Offices: 25
Prominence:

+ AM Law 200 Ranked

+ Ranked as a top 100 client service law firm in the U.S. by BTl

+ Named to State Bar of Michigan 2016 Pro Bono Circle of Exceilence - Leadership Level

+ 64 Best Lawyers in America

130 Super Lawyers/Rising Stars

+ 18 Chambers USA Ranked Attorneys O

O

https://www.clarkhill.com/pages/about 1/30/2019
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The NL.J 500 is the National Law Journal's survey of the 500 largest law firms in the United States covering the prex

calendar year.
b By ALM Staff | ]June 28,2018 at 06:00 AM

§  Methodology: The NLJ 500 is the National Law journal's survey of the 500 largest law Trending Stories

firms in the United States covering the previous calendar year. Data is collected from
. firms at the same time as the Am Law financial numbers. ALM sent surveys this year
to more than 900 law firms to determine the 500 fargest U.S.-centric firms by
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Descrlptlon Rankings

‘ Global 200 'gg%m N/A N/A N/A
According to the National Law Journal's 2018 NLj 500 ranking of firms
based on size, Clark Hi!l has 403 attorneys and is ranked 109th in the —
United States. With $193,621,000 gross revenue in 2017, the firm el 2018 017 2016
placed 146th on The American Lawyer's 2018 Am Law 200 ranking, Am Law 200 a0 #146 #1167 #4171
www.clarkhill,.com (hitp:/Mmww.clarkhill.com) - . ——
2018 2017 W18

#109 #1138 #138

2018 2017 2016
N/A N/A N/A

Overview Changes in Headcount
Globai Rank: N/A
Total Offices: 24
Total Headcount*: 403
Equity Partners: 73
Non-Equity Partners: 126
Associates: 19t
Total Revenue: $193,621,000

https://www.law.com/law-firm-profile/?id=1721 &name=Clark-Hill 1/30/2019
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Profit Per Equity Partner: $525,000

Revenue Per Lawyer: $480,000

* "Other” attorneys are not included
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Data Compiled as part of the 2017 NLj and AmLaw Survey

Get More From ALM Intelligence with Legal
Compass

Along with rich firm profiles, our platform also offers a dynamic user interface to
explore the latest data on firm financials, diversity, lateral moves, office trends,
practice areas, and more,

Search. Compare. Analyze. Decide.

REQUEST A FREE TRIAL

Existing Subscription? Sign in here (https://legalcompass.intelligence.alm.coms.
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John E. DeWulf (006850)

Marvin C. Ruth §024220

Vidula U. Patki (030742
COPPERSMITH BROCKEILMAN PLC
2800 North Central Avenue, Suite 1900
Phoenix, Arizona 85004

T: (602) 224-0999

F: (602) 224-0620
jdewulf@cblawyers.com
mruth@cblawyers.com
vpatki@cblawyers.com

Attorneys for Defendants

Peter S. Davis, as Receiver of DenSco
Investment Corporation, an Arizona
corporation,

Plaintiff,
\Z

Clark Hill PLC, a Michigan limited liability
company; David G. Beauchamp and Jane
Doe Beauchamp, husband and wife,

Defendants,

disclosure statement as discovery progresses.

amplification.

{o035058k4 )

Lood
ExH.No.__ 2T 0O

Koily 8. Oglesby CR 55175 !
RECEIVED

RN MALEDON PA.

MAR 12 2018

OSBO

SUPERIOR COURT OF ARIZONA
COUNTY OF MARICOFPA

No. CV2017-013832

DEFENDANTS’ INITIAL RULE 26.1
DISCLOSURE STATEMENT

Defendants Clark Hill PLC, David G. Beauchamp and Jane Doe Beauchamp
(collectively, “Defendants”) provide this initial disclosure statement according to Arizona

Rule of Civil Procedure 26.1. Defendants reserve the right to amend or supplement this

This case is in its infancy and thus the content of this disclosure statement is
preliminary and subject to supplementation, amendment, explanation, change and
Because the parties have just commenced discovery, there may be
information, documents, and materials related to the various allegations and defenses set forth

in the pleadings of which Defendants are presently unaware. Defendants note that they do
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not currently have access to all potentially relevant documents of the Plaintiff, or third parties,
and that this disclosure statement is based upon information currently available to
Defendants. Nothing in this disclosure statement is intended to be an admission of fact, an
affirmation of the existence of any document, or an agreement with or an acceptance of any
legal theory or allegation. The information set forth below is provided without waiving (1)
the right to object to the use of such information for any purpose in this or any other action
due to applicable privilege (including the work-product and attorney-client privileges),
materiality, or any other appropriate grounds; (2) the right to object to any request involving
or rélating to the subject matter of the information in this disclosure statement; ot (3) the right
to revige, correct, supplement or clarify any of the information provided below. If any part
of this statement is ever read to the jury, fairness would require that the jury be read this
introductory statement and any supplementation, amendments, explanation, changes or
amplifications which may occur or be filed subsequent to this disclosure statement.

Defendants also incorporate by reference into this disclosure statement all
interrogatory answers, responses to requests for production, responses to requests for
admission, other discovery and disclosure statements and supplements thereto in this action,
and all transcripts of any deposition taken in this action and any exhibits thereto.
L FACTUAL BASIS OF CLAIMS AND DEFENSES,

A, Retention/Scope of Work

For more than 35 years, since graduating with honors from the University of Michigan
Law School in 1981, David Beauchamp has represented his clients in the areas of corporate
law, securities, venture capital, and private equity with distinction and integrity.

One of those clients was DenSco Investment Corporation (“DenSco”), a company
solely owned and managed by Denny Chittick. DenSco raised money from investors by
issuing general obligation notes to those investors at interest rates that varied depending on

the note’s maturity date, DenSco then invested those funds primarily by making high interest (

{00350580.4 ) 2
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shott-term Joans to borrowers buying residential properties out of foreclosure, which loans
wete intended to be secured by deeds of trusts on those properties. Mr. Beauchamp started
providing securities advice to DenSco in the early 2000s, while he was a partner at the law
firm Gammage & Burnham. DenSco followed Mr. Beauchamp as a client when he left
Gammage to join the law firm Bryan Cave in March 2008, and again when Mr, Beauchamp
left Bryan Cave to join Clark Hill in September 2013,

Although the various firms’ engagement letters with DenSco only specifically
identified DenSco as the client, DenSco could not operate or engage with legal counsel
except through its president and sole owner, Mr. Chittick. DenSco had no other employees;
Mr, Chittick was responsible for all aspects of DenSco’s business, and Mr. Chittick
understood that Mr, Beauchamp, as an incident to Mr. Beauchamp’s representation of
DenSco, was also representing Mr. Chittick in his capacity as president of DenSco. The
investors understood that as well. The private offering memoranda DenSco provided state
that “legal counsel to the Company will represent the interests solely of the Company and its
President, and will not represent the interests of any investor.”

Shortly after Mr, Chittick’s death, and in the midst of a chaotic time dealing with the
fallout of his passing, Mr. Beauchamﬁ stated in an August 10, 2016 letter to an Arizona
Corporation Commission subpoena to Mr, Chittick that he had “not previously represented
Denny Chittick” and that the ACC would need to request the personal information it sought,
including Mr. Chittick’s personal tax returns, from counsel for Mr, Chittick’s estate. To the
extent that Mr. Beauchamp’s statement was not clear or that any clarification was necessary,
Mr. Beauchamp averred in an August 17, 2016 declaration under oath that he represented
DenSco and “Mr. Chittick as the President of DenSco.” Mr. Beauchamp did not represent
Mr, Chittick outside of his role as a corporate officer at DenSco.

Until mid- 2013, Mr, Beauchamp’s work as DenSco’s securities counsel included,

among other things, drafting DenSco’s Private Offering Memoranda and related investor

{00350581.4 } 3
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documents; advising DenSco regarding Blue Sky laws and state and federal securities
reporting and filing requirements; advising DenSco as to the rules and regulations
promulgated by state financial and lending authorities; and advising DenSco regarding the
applicability of mortgage broker regulations. At times, it would also involve answering
DenSco’s questions regarding its Reg D filings and obligations, Although Mr. Beauchamp
helped DenSco file its first set of Reg D documents in 2003, Mr. Chittick told M.
Beauchamp thereafter that he did not want to pay a lawyer to review and file the Reg D
documents, and that Mr, Chittick would take on that responsibility himself. That was not a
surprising request, as Mr. Chittick repeatedly instructed Mr. Beauchamp to keep legal fees
to a minimum, Consequently, although Mr, Beauchamp’s paralegal initially helped M.
Chittick understand the filing process and obtain access to the EDGAR filing site, in
accordance with his client’s wishes Mr, Beauchamp did not review DenSco’s Reg D filings.

The scope of Mr. Beauchamp’s representation of DenSco and its president was
narrow. Further, the relationship was friendly, but professional, Mr. Beauchamp did not go
to dinner or vacation with Mr. Chittick or his family. They did not play golf or otherwise
socialize together.

Over the years, Mr. Chittick showed himself to be a trustworthy and savvy
businessman, and a good client. He was devoted to his business and investors, many of
whom were friends and family. Despite often complaining about the cost of legal services,
Mr. Chittick appeared to follow Mr. Beauchamp’s advice and provided information when
asked for it, Further, Mr, Beauchamp understood that DenSco utilized an outside accountant,
David Preston, to review DenSco’s books and records and file its tax returns. At no point
did Mr. Beauchamp serve as DenSco’s general corporate counsel, nor was Mr, Beauchamp
engaged to review or approve DenSco financial statements or tax returns or to investigate

borrowers.
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B.  The Private Offering Memoranda

Mr, Beauchamp advised DenSco regarding its Private Offering Memoranda
(“POMs”), which DenSco generally updated every two years, He helped draft the 2003,
2005, 2007, 2009, and 2011 POMs. The POMs, however, had similar provisions and
generally described DenSco’s historical performance based on information provided by Mr,
Chittick; set forth Mr, Chittick’s authority to determine DenSco’s “major business decisions
and policies”, and to make, antend, or deviate from those policies in Mr. Chittick’s sole
discretion; and set forth DenSco’s aspirational lending standards (including its intent to
“maintain a loan-to-value ratio below 70%” for both individual frust deeds DenSco
purchased and the aggregate loan portfolio, as well as its intent to “achieve a diverse
borrower base” with no borrower comprising more than 10-15% of the portfolio).

In early sumimer 2013, Mr. Beauchamp advised DenSco that it needed to update its
2011 POM given the passage of time and changes in the scope of DenSco’s fund raising. In
particular, based on Mr. Chittick’s representations to Mr, Beauchamp, DenSco either had or
would soon eclipse the $50 million maximum offering set forth in the 2011 POM.
Consequently, Mr. Beauchamp began drafling revisions to the 2011 POM, which included
updates to the maximum offering and updates on DenSco’s performance to date, among other
revisions, Mr. Beauchamp, however, was never able to finalize the 2013 POM, Although
Mr, Beauchamp asked for updated investment, loan and financial information regarding
DenSco, Mr, Chittick stalled on providing the information, preferring to wait until after he
scaled down the amount outstanding to investors, Mr. Beauchamp repeatedly advised
DenSco that an update was necessary irrespective of DenSco’s plans regarding the
outstanding amount of its offerings, but Mr, Chittick continued to delay.

C.  The FREOQO Lawsuit

On May 24, 2013, Basy Investments, an entity owned by Yomtov “Scott” Menaged
(“Menaged”), DenSco, and Ocwen Loan Servicing, were sued by FREO Arizona, LLC
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(“FREO") regarding liens recorded by Easy Investments in favor of DenSco and Active
Funding Corporation, on a parcel of property. Ina June 14, 2013 email from Mr. Chittick to
Mr. Beauchamp, Mr, Chittick explained that Easy Investments had purchased a property at
a trustee’s sale using a DenSco loan, which had apparently been previously purchased by
FREOQ, leading to a dispute. A review of the partial Complaint provided to Mr. Beauchamp
confirms Mr. Chittick’s description. Accqrding to its allegations, the loan servicer, Ocwen,
failed to cancel a trustee’s sale and release the deed of trust after FREO had paid off the debt
and acquired the property, thereby allowing Easy Investments to purchase the property again
with DenSco’s funds. Contrary to the allegations in the Receiver’s Complaint, the FREO
lawsuit did not concern lien priority or double lien issues. Moreover, a review of the docket
reveals that Easy Investments prevailed in the FREO lawsuit when the Court granted
summary judgment in favor of Easy Investments and against both FREO and Ocwen (for
breach of its duties) on December 6, 2013.

Further, although Mr. Chittick forwarded a portion of the Complaint to Mr.
Beauchamp, Mr. Chittick did not ask Mr, Beauchamp to represent DenSco in the litigation;
nor did he ask Mr, Beauchamp to investigate the factual allegations in the Complaint. To
the contrary, he expressly stated that he merely wanted Mr, Beauchamp to “be aware” of the
lawsuit. Consequently, although Mr, Beauchamp ran the matter through Bryan Cave’s
conflict system pursuant to standard firm procedure, Mr. Beauchamp did not represent
DenSco in the litigation and did not conduct any furthet investigation into its merits gtven
his client’s instruction not o get involved.

Mr, Beauchamp did, however, explain to Mr, Chittick that this lawsuit would need to
be disclosed in DenSco’s 2013 POM. In addition, Mr, Beauchamp advised Mr, Chittick, as
he had done previously, that Mr, Chittick needed to fund DenSco’s loans directly to the
trustee or escrow company conducting the sale, rather than provide loan funds directly to the

borrower, to ensure that DenSco’s deed of trust was protected. Mr. Chittick, however,
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explained to Mr, Beauchamp that this was an isolated incident with a borrower, Menaged,
whom Mr, Chittick described in his email as someone he had “done a ton of business

with...hundreds of loans for several years...,”

D. Mr. tl;leauchamp leaves Bryan Cave, hears nothing from Mr. Chittick for
months,

Mr., Beauchamp left Bryan Cave at the end of August 2013, Prior to his departure,
Mr, Beauchamp had repeatedly made clear to DenSco and Mr, Chittick that they needed to
update DenSco’s POM, On August 30, 2013, Mr., Beauchamp and Bryan Cave sent Mr.
Beauchamp’s clients, including DenSco, a joint separation letter informing them that Mr,
Beauchamp was joining Clark Hill effective as of September 1, 2013. The letter invited
those clients to either request the transition of their files to Mr. Beauchamp or affirmatively
request that the files remain at Bryan Cave. Mr, Chittick initially agreed to transfer a portion
of DenSco’s files to Clark Hill, but aside from DenSco’s authorization letter, Mr. Beauchamp
never heard from Mr. Chittick regarding the unfinished 2013 POM, or any other matter, until
December 2013.

E. DenSco contacts Mr, Beauchamp in late 2013, slowly reveals scope of
Menaged issues over several mounths

In December 2013, M. Chitfick contacted Mr. Beauchamp for the first time in
months, He told Mr, Beauchamp over the phone that he had run into an issue with some of
his loans to Menaged, and specifically, that properties securing a few DenSco loans were
each subject to a second deed of trust competing for priority with DenSco’s deed of trust.
Mr. Beauchamp reminded Mz. Chittick that he still needed to update DenSco’s private
offering memorandum. After briefly discussing the allegedly limited double lien issue, Mr.
Chittick emphasized to Mr. Beauchamp that Mr. Chittick wanted to avoid litigation with
other lenders. Mr. Chittick, however, did not request any advice or help. Accordingly, Mr.
Beauchamp suggested that Mr, Chittick develop and document a plan to resolve the double

liens, and nothing more came of the conversation.
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Mr. Chittick vastly understated the scope of the problem, On January 6, 2014,
Attorney Bob Miller at Bryan Cave sent Mr. Chittick a letter on behalf of various lenders
(the “Miller Lenders™). The letter asserted that the Miller Lenders had advanced purchase
money loans directly to trustees to buy more than 50 properties out of foreclosure, and had
recorded deeds of trust to evidence their first position security interest. DenSco, however,
had likewise recorded mortgages evidencing its purported purchase money loans for the same
properties, The Miller Lenders asserted that DenSco’s claimed interest was a “practical and
legal impossibility since...only the Lenders provided the applicable trustee with certified
funds supporting the Borrowers purchase money acquisition for each of the Properties,”
demanded that DenSco subordinate its alleged interests fo their interests, and threatened to
bring claims for fraud, negligent misrepresentation, and wrongful recordation.

It seems unlikely that the issue with the Miller Lenders was a surprise to Mr. Chittick.
Although Mr. Chittick’s business journals contain hearsay and present questions regarding
admissibility, they suggest that Menaged had told Mr. Chittick about the double lien issue in
November 2013, and had explained that the issue could affect every property Menaged had
purchased using DenSco funds going back as far as 2011. Further, as set forth below, Mr.
Chittick and Menaged had apparently already reached an agreement on how to deal with the
double lien issue in November 2013 as well, Mr. Chittick, however, failed to provide that
information to Mr, Beauchamp in December, Nor did he immediately provide Mr.
Beauchamp with the full scope of the problem, or reveal the procedure he had agreed to with
Menaged to resolve that problem, in December or early January.

Instead, Mr. Chittick sent the Miller letter to Mr. Beauchamp on Januvary 6, 2014 with
nothing more than a sparse request for Mr. Beauchamp to “read the first two pages.” The
next day, Mr. Chittick provided Mr. Beauchamp a more expansive, if incomplete,
explanation. In his email, Mr. Chittick stated that he had lent Menaged a total of $50 million

since 2007 and that he’d “never had a problem with payment or issue that hasn’t been
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resolved.” M, Chittick asserted, however, that Menaged’s wife had become critically ill in
the past year, and that Menaged had turned the day-to-day operations of his companies over
to his cousin, According to Mr. Chittick, the cousin would receive loan funds directly from
DenSco, then request loans for the same property from another lender, including the Miller
Lenders. The other lenders, who had funded their loans directly to the trustee, would record
their deed of trust, as would DenSco, [eaving DenSco in second position. The cousin,
unfortunately, then purportedly absconded with the funds DenSco lent directly to Menaged.
This “double lien” issue consequently jeopardized DenSco’s secured position and its loan-
to-value ratios. Mr. Chittick feared that a lawsuit with the Miller Lenders would jeopardize
DenSco’s entire enterprise.

According to Mr. Chittick’s email, Menaged purportedly found out about his cousin’s
scam in November and revealed the fraud to Mr. Chittick at the time. Yet rather than consult
legal counsel, Mr. Chittick worked out a plan to fix the double lien issue with Menaged. The
initial plan included DenSco paying off the other lenders, That required additional capital,
which Menaged and Mr. Chittick agreed would come from DenSco lending Menaged an
additional $1 million and Menaged investing additional capital, including $4-$5 million from
the Hquidation of other assets, as set forth in a term sheet DenSco and Menaged signed after
having already put their plan into effect. As the scope of the problem appeared to grow, M.
Chittick and Menaged agreed to terms of an expanded plan, which included further
investment from both DenSco and Menaged, who would also continue fo flip and rent homes
to raise the necessary profits needed to pay off the other lenders.

Unbeknownst to Mr. Beauchamp, and according to Mr. Chittick’s January 7, 2014
email, DenSco and Menaged had already been “proceeding with this plan since November
[2013].” That is corroborated by the Receiver, who asserts that Mr, Chittick lent $1 million
to Menaged to further their private wotkout plan in December 2013. In other words, by the
time Mr. Chittick approached Mr. Beauchamp with a partial disclosure of the issues in late
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2013 and early 2014, Mr. Chittick had already agreed to a business plan with Menaged to
work out the double lien problems, and had already advanced Menaged significant suins
pursuant to that agreement. As Mr, Beauchamp explained in a February 20, 2014 email to
his colleagues, Mr. Chittick “without any additional documentation or any legal advice...has
been rewotking his loans and deferring interest payments to assist Borrower... When we
became aware of this issue, we advised our client that he needs to have a Forbearance

Agreement in place to evidence the forbearance and the additional protections he needs.”

1. M. Beauchamp tells DenSco it cannot accept new funds or roll over
prior funds,

After receiving Mr, Chittick’s January 7, 2014 email, Mr. Beauchamp was alarmed
that DenSco may be taking on new investors or rolling over prior investments without
disclosing the double lien issue or the workout to which Mr. Chittick and Menaged had
agreed. Mr, Beauchamp’s advice to Mr. Chittick regarding disclogures Mr. Chittick had to
make to investors was immediate, clear, practical, consistent with his practice and
experience, and consistent with the standard of care: (a) DenSco was not permitted to take
new money without full disclosure to the investor lending the money; (b) DenSco was not
permitted to roll over existing investments without full disclosure to the investor rolling over
the money; and (¢) DenSco needed to update its POM and make full disclosure to all its
investors. Mr. Beauchamp provided this advice to DenSco starting with his January 9, 2014
meeting with Mr. Chittick, and repeated it routinely over the next few months.

Mr. Beauchamp was also concerned about the source and use of the funds needed to
effectuate the Menaged-Chittick workout. Yet, as Mr, Chittick explained, the funds for the
$1 million loan (which Mr. Chittick funded prior to engaging Clark Hill) and an additional
$5 million loan Mr. Chittick and Menaged eventually agreed to as part of the workout, would

come from (a) Mr. Chittick’s investment of additional funds out of his retirement account,

(b) Mr.-Chittick’s personal $1.5 million line of credit, and (c) DenSco’s working capital (
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raised as loans to other borrowers paid off. Again, and at all times Mr. Beauchamp, advised
Mr. Chittick that he could not obtain new investor funds or roll over prior investments
without full disclosure. Mr, Beauchamp also repeatedly insisted that Mr, Chittick revise his
out-of-date POM to provide disclosure to all his investors. Mr, Chittick, however, insisted
that DenSco first document the forbearance agreement so that Mr, Chittick would have a
plan to show his investors,

Further, Mr. Chittick assured Mr. Beauchamp repeatedly that he was making the
requisite disclosures to investors on an as needed basis, and that he had informed a select
group of investors as to the double lien issue and proposed workout. That would be in
keeping with Mr. Chittick’s prior approach to business. As far as Mr, Beauchamp knew, and
as Mr. Chittick had previously told him, Mr. Chittick indeed had a select group of investors
to whom he turned for advice and approval when confronted with important business
decisions, such as, for example, diversifying his investments into different types of '
properties. Mr, Chittick told Mr. Beauchamp that he was seeking such advice from what Mr.
Chittick described as an “advisory council.” And again, while the letters Mr. Chittick
appears to have authored prior to his passing contain hearsay and present questions regarding
admissibility, they include various statements suggesting that Mr. Chittick may have
previously told (and received approval from) a select group of investors that he was investing
specifically with Menaged, that he was increasing his loan concentration with Menaged
above the 10-15% concentration threshold suggested in his POMs, and that his lending
process involved funding loans directly to borrowers, rather than a frustee or escrow account.

There was no reason for Mr, Beauchamp to question whether Mr. Chittick was in fact
providing disclosures to limitedl investors. Moreover, over the more than decade long strong
professional relationship Mr. Beauchamp had developed with Mr. Chittick, Mr. Chittick had
proven himself to be a trustworthy client with a strong history of sharing information and

making prudent decisions.
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2. Mr. Beauchamp advises DenSco to enter into a forbearance agreement.
Beginning in early January, and over the course of several meetings and telephone

conversations with Mr. Chittick, Mr, Beauchamp convinced Mr. Chittick that ifhe was going
to keep doing business with Menaged (and Mr. Chittick never wavered from his insistence
on working his way out of the double lien issue with Menaged), DenSco should at least
document the issues and workout plan in a forbearance agreement. Entering into a
forbearance agreement was sound, practical advice and congistent with the standard of care,
particularly where Mr, Chittick and Menaged had already implemented their own workout
plan. As Mr. Beauchamp repeatedly explained to Mr. Chittick, the forbearance agreement
would, among other things, (a) clarify and set forth the facts that led to the double lien issue,
(b) clarify and set forth the scope of the issue with the borrower, (¢) acknowledge Mr.
Menaged’s defaults under his loan documents with DenSco, as well as the amount and
validity of any debt owed to DenSco, (d) obtain additional written commitments from
Menaged and his entities to fund the workout Mr. Chittick and Menaged had already agreed
to; and (e) obtain additional security and other protections from Menaged and his entities fo
protect DenSco and its investors., Mr, Beauchamp was crystal clear with Mr, Chittick all of
this would need to be disclosed to DenSco’s investors. Other protections Mr. Beauchamp
advocated for, including additional admissions of fault and fraud by Menaged to protect
DenSco in the event of a bankruptcy filing by Menaged or his entities, were eventually
stricken from the agreement at Menaged and Mr. Chittick’s insistence, and over Mr.
Beauchamp’s objections.

Mr. Beauchamp had previously drafted and negotiated countless forbearance
agreements. He reasonably anticipated that documenting DenSco’s forbearance would take
2-3 weeks, Negotiating the forbearance agreement, however, turned out to be more difficult
than Mr. Beauchamp could have reasonably imagined. For one, Menaged and his counsel

repeatedly insisted on edits and revisions that served only to undermine DenSco’s fiduciary
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duty to its investors, Mr, Beauchamp repeatedly had to undo changes proffered by Menaged
or Jeff Goulder, Menaged’s attorney, and often by Mr, Chittick at Menaged’s direction, in
order to protect DenSco’s investors, For example, Menaged (and Mr, Goulder) attempted to
restrict the type of information that could be disclosed to investors, attempted to obtain
releases for Menaged related to his defaults and conduct, and refused to provide additional
security ot information regarding that additional security. Mr, Beauchamp repeatedly pushed
back on these efforts and advised DenSco and Mr. Chittick, both in writing and verbally, that
they had fiduciary duties to DenSco’s investors, which included disclosure obligations. See
e.g., February 4, 2014 email from Mr. Beauchamp to Mr, Chittick (“you cannot obligate
DenSco to further help Scott, because that would breach your fiduciary duty to your
investors”); February 14, 2014 email from Mr. Beauchamp to Mr. Chittick (“[Goulder]
clearly thinks he can force you to agree to accept a watered down agreement and give up
substantial rights that you should not have to give up. Unfortunately, it is not your money.
It is your investors’ money. So you have a fiduciary duty”); March 13, 2014 email from Mr.
Beauchamp to Mr. Chittick {“we cannot give Scott and his attorney any time to cause further
delay in getting this Forbearance Agreement finished and the necessary disclosure prepared
and circulated” ).

In addition to Menaged and his counsel’s constant revisions, the number of loans
affected by the double lien issue also kept growing. The number of loans Mr. Chittick
asserted were in issue grew from December 2013 to January 2014, and then grew again from
January 2014 to February 2014. This resulted in constant changes to the revised workout
documents, as well as to Menaged and Mr, Chittick’s agreement regarding the manner in
which to fund the workout. Mr. Chittick, however, maintained, despite multiple inquiries
from Mr. Beauchamp, that he had run the calculations and projections and was confident his
plan with Menaged would work. Mr, Chittick also told Mr. Beauchamp that he had gone
over those projections with his “advisory council.” * As Mr. Chittick described it to Mr.
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Beauchamp, it was a cash flow issue, not a payment issue, and' that with Menaged’s
additional investments, the workout would succeed.

Nevertheless, Mr. Beauchamp at one point became concerned enough at Menaged’s
intransigence and the apparent influence he held over Mr. Chittick, that he reached out to
third parties in late January 2014 to inquire about Menaged. Those third parties informed
him that Menaged was generally someone to be distrusted and not someone to do business
with. Mr. Beauchamp attempted to persuade Mr, Chittick of this during several heated
conversations, but Mr, Chittick ignored these admonitions, explaining that while Menaged
could be sharp and off-putting, Menaged had always performed on DenSco’s loans in the
past, and had stood by Mr. Chittick in tough times. Despite Mr. Beauchamp’s efforts, Mr.
Chittick could not be convinced to cut ties with Menaged.

| Myr. Beauchamp terminates representation of DenSco and Mr, Chittick,

When Mr, Beauchamp agreed to represent DenSco with respect to Menaged, Mr.,
Beauchamp made clear that Mr. Chittick had to immediately update DenSco’s POM and
make full disclosure to its investors regarding the double lien issues, the workout with
Menaged, and the potential implications thereof on DenSeco’s finances and the investors’
investments. Mr. Chittick always acknowledged that responsibility and agreed to make the
full disclosure once the forbearance agreement was properly documented. As the
forbearance neared completion, Mr, Beauchamp and his associate, Daniel Schenk, began
drafting the updated POM in April and May 2014. Specifically, the draft 2014 POM would
have: provided a description of the forbearance agreement (including all the parties’ funding
obligations), the reason it was necessary, and its effect on DenSco’s books; updated
DenSco’s goals for intended loan-to-value ratios; updated the descriptions regarding
DenSco’s loan funding and securitizations procedures; updated the number of loan defaults
triggering foreclosures; and amended the descriptions regarding DenSco’s borrower base,

among other things. Further, Mr, Beauchamp explained that the updated POM would need
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to be accompanied with a cover letter or other communication highlighting the major
material changes, including the double lien issue and resulting workout agreement, to ensure
that investors were fully informed. Mr. Chittick, however, refused to provide the necessary
information to complete the POM and refused to approve the description of the workeut or
the double lien issue, despite his prior acknowledgement that he would need to make full
disclosure to all of his investors about DenSco (as he had been doing through POMSs and
newsletters since 2003).

In May 2014, Mr, Beauchamp handed Mr. Chittick a physical copy of the draft POM
and asked him what Mr. Chittick’s specific issues were with the disclosure. Mr, Chittick
responded that there was nothing wrong with the disclosure, he was simply not ready to make
any kind of disclosures to his investors at this stage. Mr. Beauchamp again explained that
Mr. Chittick had no choice in the matter and that he had a fiduciary duty to his investors to
make these disclosures. Mr. Chittick would not budge. Faced with an intransigent client
who was now acting contrary to the advice Mr. Beauchamp was providing, and with concerns
that Mr, Chittick may not have been providing any disclosures to anyone since January 2014,
Mr, Beauchamp informed Mr, Chittick that Beauchamp and Clark Hill could not and would
not represent DenSco any longer., Mr. Beauchamp also told Chittick that he would need to
retain new securities counsel, not only to provide the proper disclosure to DenSco’s
investors, but to protect DenSco’s rights under the forbearance agreement. Mr. Chittick
suggested that he had already started that process and was speaking with someone else,

Thereafter, Mr, Beauchamp and Clark Hill ceased providing DenSco with securities
advice. Mr. Chittick accepted that, but asked that Mr. Beauchamp clean up some small issues
with the forbearance agreement before ending the relationship entirely, Otfher than
addressing those small forbearance agreement issues in June and July, Clark Hill stopped
working with DenSco or My, Chittick in any capacity until 2016, when Mr., Chittick

requested that Mr. Beauchamp assist with a very limited issue involving an audit by the
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Arizona Department of Financial Institutions - work Mr. Beauchamp had previously
performed for DenSco and that Mr, Chittick characteristically believed could be done most
cost-effectively by Mr. Beauchamp rather than by a new lawyer with no background on the

issue,

G. Melnaged continues to perpetrate fraud on DenSco, which only grows in
scale,

During the time that he represented it regarding securities matters, Mr. Beauchamp (a)
repeatedly advised DenSco that it had to make full disclosure to its investors and then
terminated his relationship as securities counsel for DenSco when DenSco refused, (b)
explained that DenSco would need to retain new counsel after Mr, Beauchamp withdrew to
provide proper disclosures and monitor the forbearance, and (¢) repeatedly reminded Mr.
Chittick that he needed to fund loans directly to a trustee or escrow company, rather than to
the borrower, Mr. Chittick ignored Mr. Beauchamp’s advice. It is unclear if DenSco ever O
engaged or even talked to new counsel. It appears Mr. Chittick never issued an updated POM,
a fact which could not have gone unnoticed by DenSco’s sophisticated investors, who had
gotten used to regular updates from DenSco, not only through updated POMs, but through
monthly newsletters and periodic investor meetings. It is quite clear that Mr. Chittick
continued to loan funds directly to Menaged in direct contravention of Mr. Beauchamp’s
repeated advice.

Nevertheless, the brazen scope of Menaged’s efforts to defraud DenSco was not
foreseeable. After several years of bilking DenSco and others out of millions of dollars,
Menaged was eventually arrested. The United States Department of Justice first charged
Menaged with defrauding various banks through his purported furniture stores. Menaged used
fabricated receipts of purchases made at the furniture store to obtain credit from banks using
the names of, and personal identification information of, individuals who had recently died.

He would then incur millions of dollars in fraudulent charges on those faks(
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accounts. Incredibly, Menaged acknowledged in his plea agreement that he had perpetrated
the bank fraud in order to get cash to continue defrauding DenSco. ’

The Depattment of Justice then also charged Menaged with money laundering with
respect to the DenSco fraud. In his plea agreement, Menaged admitted that from January 2014
through June 2016, he embezzled millions of dollars without purchasing properties with the
Joans obtained from Densco. He explained thét Densco would wire money to purchase
properties directly to Menaged who, in turn, would send Densco “an image of a bank cashier’s
check and a copy of a Trustee Certificate of Sale Receipt.” No sales, however, actually took
place. Menaged would simply redeposit the cashier’s check into his account and create bogus
receipts for the purchase of the propetty. Between January 2013 and June 2016, Menaged
admitted he obtained 2,172 loans from DenSco totaling approximately $734,484,440.67. Yet,
of the 2,712 loans made by DenSco, only 96 involved actual property transactions., Menaged
supposedly used the remaining 2,616 loans for personal expenses, gambling trips, and transfers
to his family members and associates. Menaged would also utilize new loans from DenSco to
pay back outstanding DenSco loans to conceal the embezzlement. Menaged was sentenced to
17 years in jail. As First Assistant U.S. Aftorney Elizabeth Strange stated, the “lengthy
sentence is a fitting punishment for his egregious crimes.”

Menaged sharnelessly duped Mr. Chiftick, Documents and recordings suggest that
Menaged never invested any money into the workout plan. He never obtained any money from
Israel despite purportedly making numerous trips to the country for that very purpose, blatantly
lied that funds that could have been used to fund the workout were tied up in his divotce
proceedings, and ultimately invented a non-existent investment scheme involving
“auction.com” which Menaged falsely claimed was retaining most of DenSco’s money (to go
along with his fabrication of the fraudulent cousin and terminally ill wife). Sadly, Mr. Chittick
bought info all of Menaged’s lies until his last days.

Discovery is continuing, Defendants may supplement.

002505814 } 17




WO ~1 v W I W N

[ I O TR & T % B S - L e o e o e e iy
o Y e S = TN B - - BN B o S &, B - A " T R -

II. LEGAL THEORIES OF CLAIMS AND DEFENSES.
A.  Plaintiff’s claims

Legal Malpractice

Receiver asserts that Defendants, in their representation of DenSco, committed
malpractice and breached fiduciary duties owed to DenSco. Legal malpractice requires proof
of the existence of a duty, breach of duty, that defendant’s breach was the actual and proximate
cause of damages, and the “nature and extent” of those damages. Glaze v. Larsen, 207 Ariz.
26,29 9 12 83 P.3d 26, 29 (Ariz. 2004) (citations and quotations omitted).

Receiver cannot prove breach of duty, actual and proximate cause, or resulting damages.
To prove breach of duty, Receiver will need to demonstrate that Defendants deviated from the
professional standard of care. Phillips v. Clancy, 152 Ariz. 415, 418, 733 P.2d 300, 303 (App.
1986). Defendants’ advice and conduct in representing DenSco and, in doing so, representing
Mr. Chittick as president of DenSco, was consistent with Defendants’ practice and experience,
and consistent with the standard of care. Thus, Defendants did not breach their duties to
DenSco. Receiver will also need to prove that if Defendants had not purportedly breached the
standard of care, that DenSco would not have suffered injury. Id Whatever harm befell
DenSco was not an actual or foreseeable result of the advice provided by Defendants. Thus,

Receiver’s malpractice claim fails.

Aiding and Abetting Breach of Fiduciary Duties

Receiver asserts that Defendants aided and abetted Mr, Chittick in breaching his
fiduciary duties to DenSco. Claims of aiding and abetting require proof that: (1) the primary
tortfeasor must commit a tort that caused injury to the plaintiff; (2) the defendant must know
that the primary tortfeasor’s conduct constitutes a breach of duty; (3) the defendant mmust
substantially assist or encourage the primary tortfeasor in the achievement of that breach and

(4) there must be a causal relationship between the defendant’s assistance or enoouragemen(
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and the primary tortfeasor’s commission of the tort. Wells Fargo Bank v. Az. Laborers,
Teamsters and Cement Masons Local No. 395 Pension Trust Fund, 201 Ariz. 474, 485 (Ariz.
2002); Sec. Title Agency, Inc. v. Pope, 219 Ariz. 480,491 (App. 2008), Importantly, “[blecause
aiding and abetting is a theory of secondary liability, the party charged with the tort must have
knowledge of the primary violation.” Wells Fargo, 201 Ariz. at 485,

It is unclear from the Complaint what actions the Receiver agserts constitute a breach
of Mr. Chittick’s fiduciary duties to DenSco. In any event, as set forth above, Defendants’
advice and conduct in representing DenSco were consistent with the applicable standard of
care. Defendants did not “substantially assist or encourage” Mr. Chittick in breaching his
duties to DenSco, Defendants did not have knowledge of Mr. Chittick’s purported “primary
violation,” nor is there a causal relationship between Defendants’ representation of DenSco
and Mr, Chittick’s purported tortious conduct with respect to DenSco. Further, as set forth
above, whatever harm befell DenSco was not an actual or foreseeable result of Defendants’
actions or inactions.

B. Affirmative Defenses
Statute of Limitations

Both the legal malpractice claim and the aiding and abetting claim have a two-year
statute of limitations. See A.R.S. §12-542(1) (An action “[f]or injuries done to the person of
another” shall be commenced and prosecuted within two years after the cause of action accrues,
and not afterward”). Receiver, who stands in the shoes of DenSco, did not file the Complaint
in this action until October 16, 2017, which was well outside the statute of limitations. DenSco,
and potentially the Investors, could have discovered at least as of Summer 2014, that DenSco’s
loans to Menaged (or his entities) and DenSco’s lending practices with respect to Menaged,
could give rise to potential causes of action against Mr. Chittick or his agents. Consequently,
because the statute of limitations ran, at the latest, in the Summer of 2016, the Complaint is

barred in its entirety.
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In pari delicto and unclean hands

Arizona law recognizes the doctrine of in pari delicto, Brand v. Elledge, 89 Ariz. 200,
205, 360 P.2d 213, 217 (1961) (quoting Furman v. Furman, 34 N.Y.8.2d 699, 704 (N.Y. Sup.
Ct. 1941), aff’d, 40 N.E.2d 643 (N.Y. 1942)). In pari delicto is an affirmative defense by which
a party is barred from recovering damages if his losses are substantially caused by activities
the law forbade him to engage in.” Stewartv. Wilmington Trust SP Servs., Inc., 112 A.3d 271,
301-02 (Del. Ch.), gff'd, 126 A.3d 1115 (Del. 2015) (quotation omitted). The defense may
be raised against a receiver. Id. (“no cogent reason for sparing the innocent Receiver the effect
of in pari delicto while equally innocent stockholders or policyholders waould be barred from
relief in the derivative context™); Knauer v. Jonathon Roberts Fin. Grp., Inc., 348 F.3d 230,
236 (7th Cir, 2003) (affirming dismissal of the receiver’s claims against the broker dealers,
concluding that they were barred by the defense of in pari delicto).

Here, to the extent there are claims against the Defendants, DenSco, into whose shoes 10
the Receivers steps, bears fault for damages about which it complains, Thus, the Receiver’s
claims are barred by doctrine of in pari delicto and, to the extent it specifically secks equitable

relief, by the related doctrine of unclean hands.

Laches

A claim is barred by laches when the delay in bringing the claim is “unreasonable under
the circumstances” given “the party’s knowledge of his or her right” and “any change in
circumstances caused by the delay has resulted in prejudice to the other party sufficient to
justify denial of relief” Mathieu v. Mahoney, 174 Ariz, 456, 459, 851 P.2d 81, 84 (1993).
Receiver seeks to recover potentially millions of dollars in alleged damages resulting from
loans Mr. Chittick made to Menaged., DenSco would have been aware of the harms that could
befall DenSco and its investors as a result of DenSco’s loans to, and lending practices with,

Menaged, by Summer 2014 at the latest. DenSco’s inaction for several years, up through th(
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death of Mr. Chittick, to seek relief against any potential third party for harms suffered by
DenSco was unreasonable in light of DenSco’s knowledge. Because the Receiver steps into

DenSco’s shoes, the claims are barred.

Setoff

Clark Hill filed a proof of claim in the DenSco Receivership for unpaid fees incurred
by Clark Hill on behalf of DenSco after Mr, Chittick’s death, The Receiver improperly denied
the claim on the basis of an alleged conflict of interest, To the extent Defendants are found to

owe Plaintiff anything, that debt must be reduced any sums Plaintiff owes Clark Hill.

Additional defenses:

¢ Third parties, including Mr. Chittick and Menaged, over whom Defendants
have no authority or control, are at fault for any damages suffered.

¢ Densco, in to whose shoes the Receiver steps, is at fault for any damages
suffered.

» Densco, in to whose shoes the Receiver steps, assumed the risk of any actions
taken or not taken by DenSco or Mr, Chittick. Hildebrand v. Minyard, 16 Ariz.
App. 583, 585, 494 P.2d 1328, 1330 (1972) (“A plaintiff who by contract or
otherwise expressly agrees to accept a risk of harm arising from the defendant’s
negligent or reckless conduct cannot recover for such harm . . . .”) (quoting
Restatement (Second) of Torts § 496(B) (1965)).

s Receiver cannot demonstrate proximate cause or loss causation because
Defendants are not the actual or proximate cause of any damages suffered.

» Any damages suffered were the result of intervening or superseding events or
causes over which the Defendants had no control and were not legally
respo;lsible.

e Receiver’s claims are batred by doctrines of waiver and estoppel.
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Discovery is continuing. Defendants may supplement.

. 'WITNESSES,
Because no discovery has taken place, Defendants have not yet identified all persons it
may call as witnesses at trial, but reserves the right to call any of the following persons to

testify as a witness at trial:

1. David Beauchamp

¢/o Coppersmith Brockelman, PLC
2800N. Central Avenue, Suite 1900
Phoenix, Arizona 85004

Mr. Beauchamp is expected to testify regarding the allegations in the Complaint and
his representation of DenSco and of Mr, Chittick in his capacity as president of DenSco.

2. Peter Davis, Receiver of DenSco Investment Corporation
c/o Osborn Maledon, P.A.
2929 N. Central Avenue, Suite 2100
Phoenix, Arizona 85012

Mr. Davis is expected to testify regarding the allegations in the Complaint; the
Receiver’s evaluations, analyses, and determinations regarding all aspects of DenSco’s
finances, including, but not limited to, DenSco’s loans, lending practices, record keeping,
financial transactions, and solvency; the Receiver’s maintenance of any DenSco or Chittick
records or property, including, but not limited to, electronic records, websites, and email
communications; the Receiver’s communications with third parties related to DenSco,
including communications with financial institutions, investors, and accountants and other
professionals; the Receiver’s determinations regarding the Receiver’s evaluation and analysis
regarding the potential fault, liability, or culpability of any third party with respect to any
losses suffered by DenSco, including, but not limited, to Chase Bank, U.S. Bank, Yomtov
Menaged, Active Funding Group, LLC, and/or Gregg Seth Reichman, (
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3. Any witnesses disclosed by other parties.

4, Any witnesses that become known through discovery.

5. Custodian or other foundational witnesses necessary to admit exhibits.

Discovery is continuing, Defendants may supplement.
IV. ADDITIONAL PERSONS WHO MAY HAVE RELEVANT INFORMATION.

1. Yomtov “Scott” Menaged

Scott Menaged is expected to have knowledge regarding all aspects of any personal,
financial, or business dealings he may have had with DenSco and Mr. Chittick; all aspects of
the fraud(s) he perpetrated on DenSco and Mr. Chittick, either directly, or through one of his
entities, including, but not limited to, Easy Investments, I.LC, Arizona Home Foreclosures,
LI_JC, Furniture King, LLC, and Scott’s Fine Furniture; all aspects of actions or conduct
related to his criminal indictment, plea bargain, or sentencing in the United States District
Court for the District of Arizona; his communications with DenSco and Mr. Chittick; and his

communications with Mr. Beauchamp.

2. PMK Easy Investments, LLC

10510 Bast Sunnyside Drive
Scottsdale, AZ 85259

See Description for Scott Menaged.

3, PMK Arizona Home Foreclosures, LLC

7320 West Bell Road
Glendale, AZ 85308

See Description for Scott Menaged.

(003505914 } 23




WO =1 O th B W N e

NN NN [ S P T T T o T e e T s

4, PMK Furniture King, LLC

3200 North Central Avenue
Suite 2460
Phoenix, AZ 85012

See Description for Scott Menaged.
5. PMK Scott’s Fine Furniture
See Description for Scott Menaged.

6. Veronica Castro aka Veronica Gutierrez Reyes

¢/o Thomas W, Warshaw Attorney at Law
33147 North 71 Wa
Scottsdale, AZ 8526

Ms, Castro is expected to have knowledge regarding Menaged’s personal, financial, or
business dealings with DenSco and Mr, Chittick; the fraud(s) Menaged perpetrated on
DenSco and Mr. Chittick, either directly, or through one of Menaged’s entities; Menaged’s
communications with DenSco and Mr, Chittick; Menaged’s communications with Mr.
Beauchamp; the actions or conduct related to Menaged’s criminal indictment, plea batrgain,
or sentencing in the United States District Court for the District of Arizona; and Ms. Castro’s

communications with DenSco and Mr. Chittick,

7. Luigi Amoroso

Mr. Amoroso is expected to have knowledge regarding Menaged’s personal, financial, |
or business dealings with DenSco and Mr. Chittick; the fraud(s) Menaged perpetrated on
DenSco and Mr. Chittick, either directly, or through one of Menaged’s entities; Menaged’s
communications with DenSco and Chittick; Menaged’s communications with M,
Beauchamp; the actions or conduct related to Menaged’s criminal indictment, plea bargain,
or sentencing in the United States District Court for the District of Arizona; and Mr.
Amoroso’s communications with DenSco and Mr. Chittick. g
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8. Alberto Pena

o/o Law Office of Cameron A, Morgan
4356 North Civic Center Plaza

Suite 101

Scottsdale, AZ 85251

Mr, Pena may have knowledge regarding Menaged’s personal, financial, or business
dealings with DenSco and Chittick; the fraud(s) Menaged perpetrated on DenSco and
Chittick, either directly, or through one of Menaged’s entities; Menaged’s communications
with DenSco and Mr, Chittick; and the actions or conduct related to Mr, Pena’s and
Menaged’s criminal indictment, plea bargain, or sentencing in the United States District

Court for the District of Arizona.

9. Troy Flippo
c/o Storrs Law Firm PLLC

oL o

Mr, Flippo may have knowledge regarding Menaged’s personal, financial, or business
dealings with DenSco and Mr. Chittick; the fraud(s) Menaged perpetrated on DenSco and
Mr. Chittick, either directly, or through one of Menaged’s entities; Menaged’s
communications with DenSco and Chittick; and the actions or conduct related to Flippo’s and
Menaged’s criminal indictment, plea bargain, or sentencing in the United States District
Court for the District of Arizona.

10. Menaged family members, including, Joseph Menaged, Michelle Menaged,
Jennifer Bonfiglio, Joy Menaged, Jess Menaged

Menaged’s family may have knowledge regarding Menaged’s personal, financial, ot
business dealings with DenSco and Chittick; the fraud(s) Menaged petpetrated on DenSco
and Chittick, either directly, or through one of Menaged’s or his Family’s entities; the use of

funds obtained from DenSco; Menaged’s communications with DenSco and Chittick; and the
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actions or conduct related to Menaged’s criminal indictment, plea bargain, or sentencing in

the United States District Court for the District of Arizona.

11.  Shawna Heuer

¢/o Bonnett Fairbourn, PC
2325 E. Camelback Road
Phoenix, Arizona 85016

Ms. Heuer is expected to have knowledge regarding Mr. Beauchamp’s work on behalf
of DenSco after Mr, Chittick’s death and her communications with Mr, Beauchamp. Ms.
Heuer may also have knowledge regarding Mr. Chittick and DenSco’s business, and Mr.

Chittick’s communications with Mr. Beanchamp, Menaged, or DenSco’s investors.

12.  Jeff Goulder
Stinson Leonard Street
1850 North Central Avenue, Suite 2100
Phoenix, Arizona 85004

Mr. Goulder is expected to have knowledge regarding the negotiations of the
Forbearance Agreement. Mr, Goulder also may have knowledge regarding Menaged’s
businesses, business practices, and finances, Mr. Goulder also may have knowledge

regarding Menaged’s communications with Mr, Beauchamp.

13,  David Preston

¢/o Gammage & Burnham
2 N. Central Avenue, Suite 15
Phoenix, Arizona 85004

Mr. Preston is expected to have knowledge regarding DenSco and Mr. Chittick’s
finances and tax returns. Mr. Preston is also expected to have knowledge regarding Mr.

Chittick’s retirement plan.
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14.  DenSco Investors
The Investors are expected to have knowledge regarding Mr. Chittick’s
communications to the Investors and their knowledge of DenSco’s business, the status of

their investments, and the status of DenSco’s loans at all relevant times.

15. PMK Chase Bank
3800 North Central Avenue

Suite 460
Phoenix, AZ 85012
Chase Bank is expected to have knowledge regarding Menaged’s banking practices,

including Menaged’s use of Chase Bank to perpetrate his fraud on DenSco and Chittick,

16. PMK US Bank

3800 North Central Avenue
Suite 460
Phoenix, AZ 85012

US Bank is expected to have knowledge regarding Menaged’s banking practices,
including Menaged’s use of Chase Bank to perpetrate his fraud on DenSco and Chittick.

17.  Gregg Seth Reichman/Active Funding Group
Attention: Andrew Abraham
702 East Osborn Road
Suite 200
Phoenix, AZ 85014

Mr. Reichman may have knowledge regarding Menaged’s businesses, business
practices, and finances; the fraud(s) Menaged perpetrated on DenSco and Mr. Chittick, either
directly, or through one of Menaged’s entities; and Mr, Reichman or his entities’ (including

Active Funding Group) participation in any of those fraudulent schemes (as suggested by the
Receiver’s Petition No. 45).
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18. Daniel Schenk

c/o Cﬁ})persmith Brockelman, PLC
2801N. Central Avenue, Suite 1900
Phoenix, Arizona 85004

Mr. Schenk is expected to have knowledge regarding any work he performed on
behalf of DenSco and Mr, Chittick in his capacity as president of DenSco. Mr. Schenk may
also have knowledge of Menaged’s communications with Beauchamp, Menaged

communications with Mr, Chittick, and Mr, Beauchamp’s communications with Mr. Chittick.

19. Robert Anderson

c/o Coppersmith Brockefman, PL.C
2802N., Central Avenue, Suite 1900
Phoenix, Arizona 85004

Mr. Anderson is expected to have knowledge regarding any work he performed on
behalf of DenSco and Mr. Chittick in his capacity as president of DenSco.

Y.  PERSONS WHO HAVE GIVEN STATEMENTS.

None at this time. Discovery is continuing. Defendants may supplement.
V1. EXPERT WITNESSES.

Defendants will identify expert witnesses in accordance with the schedule ordered by
the Court,
VII. COMPUTATION AND MEASURE OF DAMAGES.

Plaintiff is not entitled to recover damages against Defendants,

Discovery is continuing. Defendants may supplement,
VIII. EXHIBITS.

Defendants have not yet identified which of the documents listed in Section IX below
will be used at trial, and therefore expressly reserve the right to introduce any of the listed

documents as exhibits at trial. Defendants may also use any documents identified in any other
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party’s disclosure statement or otherwise disclosed in this matter. By reserving the right to
introduce any of the listed documents as exhibits at trial, Defendants do not waive their right
to object to the introduction of any of these documents at the time of trial. Defendants will
supplement this initial disclosure statement in accordance with Arizona Rules of Civil
Procedure 26.1(b)(2).

Discovery is continuing, Defendants may supplement.
IX. LIST OF RELEVANT DOCUMENTS.

Defendants have not yet identified any additional relevant documents. The
following documents, or categories of documents, may be relevant or lead to discovery of
admissible evidence in this action and have already been exchanged or are being produced
herewith:

L. Documents previously produced by Clark Hill bates labeled CH_0000001-

13330.

2. Additional documents produced herewith by Clark Hill bates labeled

CH_0013331-13374,

3. Documents previously produced by Plaintiff including bates labeled

DIC000001-25330, 28634-53950 and Quickbooks backup.

4, Documents previously produced by Plaintiff including bates labeled D126751-

128731 and 130972-133111.

5. Documents previously produced by Bryan Cave in response to Subpoena Duces

Tecum bates labeled BCG00001-3188.

6. Documents produced herewith by Dave Preston in response to Subpoena Duces

Teoum bates labeled DP000001-601.

7. Any and all documents in CR-17-00680, United States of America v. Yomtov

Scott Menaged, et al.

8. All documents produced by any party or third party in this litigation,
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9. All pleadings, filings, minute entries, orders and judgments.
10.  All deposition or hearing transcripts in the above captioned litigation.
I1.  All transcripts from any Section 341 creditor meetings, Rule 2004 examinations,
depositions, or hearings in Yomtov Menaged’s bankruptcy pending in the United
States Bankruptcy Court for the District of Arizona at 2:16-bk-04268.
Defendants reserves the right to supplement the list of documents that may be relevant
as information becomes available.
X. INSURANCE AGREEMENTS.
Not applicable.

DATED this 9* day of March, 2018.

COPPERSMITH BROCKELMAN PL.C
By: a

/
John E. DeWulf
Marvin C. Ruth
Vidula U. Patki
2800 North Central Avenue, Suite 1900
Phoenix, Arizona 85004
Attorneys for Defendants

ORIGINAL mailed and emailed this
9% day of March, 2018 to:

Colin F. Campbell, I;'sg
Geoffrey M. T. Sturr, Esq.
Joshua M. Whitaker, Esq.
OSBORN MALEDON, P.A.

2929 N. Central Ave., Suite 2100
Phoenix, AZ 85012-2793

Attgfneys for M
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VERIFICATION

STATE OF ARIZONA )

) ss.
COUNTY OF Maricopa )

David G. Beauchamp, being first duly sworn upon his oath, deposes and says:

I, David G. Beauchamp, am a Defendant in the matter Pefer S. Davis, as Receiver
for DenSco Investment Corp. v. Clark Hill PLC; David G. Beauchamp and Jane Doe
Beauchamp, Maricopa County Superior Court Case No. CV2017-013832. 1have read the
foregoing Defendants’ Initial Rule 26.1 Disclosure Statement and know its contents. The
matters stated in the foregoing Initial Rule 26.1 Disclosure Statement are true and correct
to the best of my knowledge except as to those matters that are stated upon information and
belief, and as to those matters, I believe them to be true.

I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of Arizona that the
foregoing is true and cotrect.

DATED this /2 day of March, 2018.

BWQGW

David G. Beauchamp
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YERIFICATION (D f

STATE OF MICHIGAN )

) 88,
COUNTY OF WAYNE )

Edward J. Hood, being first duly sworn upon his oath, deposes and says:

I, Edward J, Hood, am General Counsel of Clark Hill PLC, a Defendant int thé matter Pefer
S. Davis, as Receiver for DenSco Investment Corp. v. Clark Hill PLC; David G. Beauchamp and
Jane Doe Beauchamp, Maricopa County Superior Court Case No, CV2017-013832. 1 am
authorized to make this Verification on its behalf, I have read the foregoing Defendant’s Initial
Rule 26,1 Disclosure Statement and know its contents, The matters stated in the foregoing Initial
Rule 26.1 Disclosure Statement are true and correct to the best of my knowledge except as to those
matters that are stated upon information and belief, and as to those maiters, I believe them to bc
true.

I declare ynder penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of Michigan that the
foregoing is true and correct,

DATED this ﬁ day of March, 2018,

e

‘Edward J. Hood
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John E. DeWulf (006850)

Marvin C. Ruth (024220

Vidula U, Patki (030742
COPPERSMITHE BROCKEYMAN PLC
2800 Nozth Central Avenue, Suite 1900
Phoenix, Arizona 85004

T: 602% 224-0999

B (602) 224-0620
jdewnlfi@cblawyers.com
meuth@ceblawyers,com
vpatki{@cblawyers.com

Attorneys for Defendants

SUPERIOR COURT OF ARIZONA

COUNTY OF MARICOPA
Peter S. Davis, as Receiver of DenSco No. CV2017-013832
Investment Corporation, an Arizona
corporation,
DEEFENDANTS’ SECOND
Plaintiff, SUPPLEMENTAL RULE 26.1
DISCLOSURE STATEMENT
V.

Clark Hill PLC, a Michigan limited liability
company; David G, Beauchamp and Jane
Doe Beauchamp, husband and wife,

Defendanis.

Defendants Clark Hill PLC, David G. Beanchamp and Jane Doe Beauchamp
{collectively, “Defendants™) supplement their initial disclosure statement according to
Arizona Rule of Civil Procedure 26.1. De‘fendants reserve the right to amend or supplement
this disclosure statement as discovery progresses. Supplements are in bold.

This case is in its infancy and thus the content of thiz disclosure statement is
preliminary and subject to supplementation, amendment, explanation, change and
amplification, Because the partics have just commenced discovery, there may be
information, documents, and materials related to the various allegations and defenses set forth

in the pleadings of which Defendants are presently unaware. Defendants note that they do
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not curtently have access to all potentially relevant documents of the Plaintiff, or third parties,
and that this disclosure statement is based upon information currently available to
Defendants. Nothing in this disclosure statement is intended to be an admission of fact, an
affirmation of the existence of any document, or an agreement with or an acceptance of any
legal theory or allegation. The information set forth below is provided without waiving (1)
the right to objec}: to the use of such information for any purpose in this or any other action
due to applicable privilege (including the work-product and aftorney-client privileges),
materiality, or any other approptiate grounds; (2) the right to object to any request involving
or relating to the subject matter of the information in this disclosure statement; or (3) the right
to revise, correct, supplement ot clarify any of the information provided below. If any part
of this statement is ever read to the jury, fairness would require that the jury be read this
introductory statement and any supplementation, amendments, explanation, changes or
amplifications which may occur or be filed subsequent to this disclosure statement.

Defendants also incorporate by reference into this disclosure statement all
interrogatory answers, responses to requests for production, responses to requests for
admission, other discovery and disclosure statements and supplements thereto in this action,
and all transcripts of any deposition taken in this action and any exhibits thereto.
L FACTUAL BASIS OF CLAIVIS AND DEFENSES,

A.  Retention/Scope of Work

For more than 35 years, since graduating with honors from the University of Michigan
Law School in 1981, David Beauchamp has represented his clients in the areas of corporate
law, securities, venture capital, and private equity with distinction and integrity.

One of those clients was DenSco Investment Corporation (“DenSco™), a company
solely owned and managed by Denny Chittick,. DenSco raised money from investors by
issuing general obligation notes to those investors at interest rates that varied depending on

the note’s maturity date. DenSco then invested those funds primarily by making high interest
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short-term loans to borrowers buying residential properties out of foreclosure, which loans
were intended to be secured by deeds of trusts on those properties. Mr. Beauchamp started
providing securities advice to DenSco in the early 2000s, while he was a partner at the law
firm Gammage & Burnham. DenSco followed Mr. Beauchamp as a client when he left
Gammage to join the law firm Bryan Cave in March 2008, and again when Mr, Beauchamp
left Bryan Cave to join Clark Hill in September 2013,

Although the various firms’ engagement letters with DenSco only specifically
identified DenSco as the client, DenSco could not operate or engage with legal counsel
except through its president and sole owner, Mr. Chittick, DenSco had no other employees;
Mr. Chittick was responsible for all aspects of DenSco’s business, and Mr, Chittick
understood that Mr. Beauchamp, as an incident to Mr, Beauchamp’s representation of
DenSco, was also representing Mr. Chittick in his capacity as president of DenSco. The
investors understood that as well, The private offering memoranda DenSco provided state
that “legal counsel to the Company will represent the interests solely of the Compény and its
President, and will not represent the interests of any investor.”

Shortly after Mr. Chittick’s death, and in the midst of a chaotic time dealing with the
fallout of his passing, Mr. Beauchamp stated in an August 10, 2016 letter to an Arizona
Corporation Commission subpoena to Mz, Chittick that he had “not previously represented
Denny Chittick™ and that the ACC would need to request the personal information it sought,
including Mr, Chittick’s personal tax returns, from counse] for Mr. Chittick’s estate. To the
extent that Mr, Beauchamp’s statement was not clear or that any clarification was necessary,
Mr. Beauchamp averred in an August 17, 2016 declaration under oath that he represented
DenSco and “Mr. Chittick as the President of DenSco.” Mr, Beauchamp did not represent
Mr. Chittick outside of his role as a corporate officer at DenSco. ’

Until mid- 2013, Mr, Beauchamp’s work as DenSco’s securities counsel included,

among other things, drafiing DenSco’s Private Offering Memoranda and related investor
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documents; advising DenSco regarding Blue Sky laws and state and federal secutitics
reporting and filing requirements; advising DenSco as to the rules and regulations
promulgated by state financial and lending authorities; and advising DenSco regarding the
applicability of mortgage broker regulations. At times, it would also involve answering
DenSco’s questions regarding its Rog D filings and obligations. Although Mr. Beauchamp
helped DenSco file its first set of Reg D documents in 2003, Mr. Chittick told Mr,
Beauchamp thereafler that he did not want to pay a lawyer to review and file the Reg D
documents, and that Mr, Chittick would take on that responsibility himself. That was not a
surprising request, as Mr, Chittick repeatedly instructed Mr, Beauchamp to keep legal fees
to a minimum. Consequently, although Mr, Beauchamp’s paralegal initially helped Mr.
Chittick understand the filing process and obtain access to the EDGAR filing site, in
accordance with his client’s wishes Mr. Beauchamp did not review DenSco’s Reg D filings,

The scope of Mr., Beauchamp’s representation of DenSco and its president was
narrow. Further, the relationship was friendly, but professional. Mr, Beauchamp did not go
to dinner or vacation with Mr., Chittick or his family. They did not play golf or otherwise
socialize togethet,

Over the years, Mr, Chittick showed himself to be a trustworthy and savvy
businessman, and a good client. He was devoted to his business and investors, many of
whom were friends and family. Despite often complaining about the cost of legal services,
Mr. Chittick appeared to follow Mr. Beauchamp’s advice and provided information when
asked for it. Further, Mr. Beauchamp understood that DenSco utilized an outside accountant,
David Preston, to review DenSco’s books and recards and file its tax returns. At no point
did Mr. Beauchamp serve as DenSco’s general corporate counsel, not was Mr. Beauchamp
engaged to review or approve DenSco financial statements or tax returns or to investigate

borrowers,
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B.  The Private Offering Memoranda

Mr. Beauchamp advised DenSco regarding its Private Offering Memoranda
("POMs™), which DenSco generally updated every two years. He helped draft the 2003,
2003, 2007, 2009, and 2011 POMs. The POMs, however, had similar provisions and
generally described DenSco’s historical performance based on information provided by Mr.
Chittick; set forth Mr, Chittick’s authority to determine DenSco’s “major business decisions
and policies”, and to make, amend, or deviate from those policies in Mr, Chittick’s sole
discretion; and set forth DenSco’s aspirational lending standards (including its intent to
“maintain a Joan-to-value ratio below 70%” for both individual trust deeds DenSco
purchased and the aggregate loan portfolio, as well as its infent to “achieve a diverse
borrower base” with no borrower comprising more than 10-15% of the portfolio).

In early summer 2013, Mr, Beauchamp advised DenSco that it needed fo update its
2011 POM given the passage of time and changes in the scope of DenSco’s fund raising. In
particular, based on Mr. Chittick’s representations to Mr, Beauchamp, DenSco either had or
would soon eclipse the $50 million maximum offering set forth in the 2011 POM.
Consequently, Mr. Beauchamp began drafting revisions to the 2011 POM, which included
updates to the maximum offering and updates on DenSco’s performance to date, among other
revigions. Mr, Beauchamp, however, was never able to finalize the 2013 POM. Although
Mr, Beauchamp asked for updated investment, loan and financial information regarding
DenSco, Mr. Chittick stalled on providing the information, preferring to wait until after he
scaled down the amount outstanding to investors, Mr. Beanchamp repeatedly advised
DenSco that an update was necessary hrespective of DenSco’s plans regarding the
oufstanding amount of its offerings, but Mr. Chittick continued to delay.

C.  The FREO Lawsuit

On May 24, 2013, Basy Investments, an entity owned by Yomtov “Scott” Menaged
(*Menaged™), DenSco, and Ocwen Loan Servicing, were sued by FREO Arizona, LLC.
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(“FREO”) regarding liens recorded by Easy Investments in favor of DenSco and Active
Funding Corporation, on a patcel of property. Ina June 14, 2013 email from Mr. Chittick fo
Mr, Beauchamp, Mr. Chittick explained that Easy Investments had purchased a property at
a trustee’s sale using a DenSco loan, which had apparently been previously purchased by
FREO, leading to & dispute. A review of the partial Complaint provided to Mr. Beauchamp
confirms Mr. Chittick’s description. According to its allegations, the loan servicer, Ocwen,
failed to cancel a trustee’s sale and release the deed of trust after FREO had paid off the debt
and acquired the property, thereby allowing Easy Investments to purchase the property again
with DenSco’s funds, Contrary to the allegations in the Receiver’s Complaint, the FREO
lawsuit did not concern lien priority or double lien issues. Moreover, a review of the docket
reveals that Easy Investment:s prevailed in the FREO lawsuit when the Court granted
summary judgment in favor of Basy Investments and against both FREO and Ocwen (for
breach of its duties) on December 6, 2013, )

Further, although Mr. Chittick forwarded a portion of the Complaint to M,
Beauchamp, Mr. Chittick did not ask Mr. Beauchamp to represent DenSco in the litigation;
nor did he ask Mr. Beauchamp to investigate the factual allegations in the Complaint. To
the-contrary, he expressly stated that he merely wanted Mr. Beauchamp to “be aware” of the
lawsuit. Consequently, although My, Beauchamp ran the matter through Bryan Cave’s
conflict system pursuant to standard firm procedure, Mr, Beauchamp did not represent
DenSco in the litigation and did not conduct any further investigation into its merits given
his client’s instruction not to get involved.

Mr. Beauchamp did, however, explain to Mr. Chittick that this lawsuit would need to
be disclosed in DenSco’s 2013 POM. In addition, Mr. Beauchamp advised Mr, Chittick, as
he had done previously, that Mr. Chittick needed to fund DenSco’s loans directly to the
trustee or escrow company conducting the sale, rather than provide loan funds directly to the

borrowet, to ensure that DenSco’s deed of trust was protected. Mr, Chittick, however,
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explained to Mr, Beauchamp that this was an isolated incident with & borrower, Menaged,
whom Mr. Chittick described in his email as someone he had “done a ton of business

with.. .hundreds of loans for several years..,.”

D. M 1:]ieauv.!mmp leaves Bryan Cave, hears rothing from My, Chittick for
months,

Mz, Beauchamp left Bryan Cave at the end of August 2013, Prior to his departure,
Mr., Beauchamp had repeatedly made clear to DenSco and Mr. Chittick that they needed to
update DenSco’s POM. On August 30, 2013, Mr. Beauchamp and Bryan Cave sent Mr,
Beauchamp’s clients, including DenSco, a joint separation letter informing them that Mr,
Beauchamp was joining Clark Hill effective as of September 1, 2013, The letter invited
those clients to either request the transition of their files to Mr, Beauchamp or affirmatively
request that the files remain at Bryan Cave. Mr, Chittick initially agreed to transfer a portion
of DenSco’s files to Clark Hill, but aside ffom DenSco’s authorization lefter, Mr, Beauchamp
never heard from Mr. Chittick regarding the unfinished 2013 POM, or any other matter, until
December 2013,

E. DenSco contacts Mr, Beauchamyp in late 2013, slowly reveals scope of
Menaged issues over several months

In December 2013, Mr, Chittick contacted Mr, Beauchamp for the first time in
months. He tpld Mr. Beauchamp over the phone that he had run into an issue with some of
his loans to Menaged, and specifically, that properties securing a few DenSco loans wete
each subject to a second deed of trust competing for priotity with DenSco’s deed of trust.
Mr, Beauchamp reminded M. Chittick that he still needed tc; update DenSco’s private
offering memorandum. After briefly disoussing the allegedly limited double lien issus, Mr.
Chittick emphasized to Mr, Beauchamp that M. Chittick wanted to aveid litigation with
other lenders, Mr, Chittick, however, did not request any advice or help. Accordingly, Mr,
Beauchamp suggested that Mr, Chittiok &evelop and document a plan to resolve the double

liens, and nothing more came of the conversation.
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M. Chittick vastly understated the scope of the problem. On January 6, 2014,
Attorney Bob Miller at Bryan Cave sent Mr. Chittick & letter on behalf of various lenders
(the “Miller Lenders”). The letter asserted that the Miller Lenders had advanced purchase
money loans direetly to trustees to buy more than 50 properties out of foreclosure, and had
recorded deeds of trust to evidence their first position security interest. DenSco, however,
had likewise recorded mortgages evidencing its purported purchase money loans for the same
properties. The Miller Lenders asserted that DenSco’s claimed interest was a “practical and
legal impossibility since...only the Lenders provided the applicable trustee with certified
funds supporting the Borrowers purchase money acquisition for each of the Properties,”
demanded that DenSco subordinate its alleged interests to their interests, and threatened to
bring claims for fraud, negligent misrepresentation, and wrongful recordation.

It seems unlikely that the issue with the Miller Lenders was a surprise to Mr, Chittick.
Although Mr, Chittick’s business journals contain hearsay and present cuestions regarding
admissibility, they suggest that Menaged had told Mr. Chittick about the double lien issue in
November 2013, and had explained that the issue could affect every property Menaged had
purchased using DenSco funds going back as far as 2011, Further, as set forth below, Mr.
Chittick and Menaged had apparently already reached an agreement on how to deal with the
double lien issue in November 2013 as well, Mr, Chitfick, however, failed to provide that
information to Mr, Beauchamp in December. Notr did he immediately provide Mr.
Beauchamp with the full scope of the problem, or reveal the procedure he had agreed to with
Menaged to resolve that problem, in December or early Januvary.

Instead, M. Chittick sent the Miller letter to Mr. Beauchamp on January 6, 2014 with
nothing more than a sparse request for Mr. Beauchamp to “read the first two pages.” The
next day, Mr, Chittick provided Mr. Beauchamp a more expansive, if incomplete,
explanation. In his email, Mr. Chittick stated that he had lent Menaged a total of $50 million

since 2007 and that he’d “never had a problem with payment or issue that hasn’t been
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resolved.” Mr, Chittick asserted, however, that Menaged’s wife had become critically ill in
the past year, and that Menaged had turned the day-to-day operations of his companies over
to his cousin. According to Mr. Chittick, the cousin would receive loan funds directly from .
DenSco, then request loans for the same property from another lender, including the Miller
Lenders, The other lenders, who had funded their loans dirsctly to the trustee, would record
their deed of trust, as would DenSco, leaving DenSco in second position. The cousin,
unfortunately, then purportedly absconded with the funds DenSco lent directly to Menaged.
This “double lien” issue consequently jeopardized DenSca’s secured position and its loan-
to-value ratios, Mr. Chittick feared that a lawsuit with the Miller Lenders would jeopardize
DenSco’s entire enterprise.

According to Mr, Chittick’s email, Menaged purportedty found out about his cousin’s
scam in November and revealed the fraud to Mr, Chittick at the time. Yet rather than consult
legal counsel, Mr. Chittick worled out a plan fo fix the double lien issue with Menaged. The
initial plan included DenSco paying off the other lenders. That required additional capital,
which Menaged and Mr. Chittick agreed would come from DenSco lending Menaged an
additional $1 million and Menaged investing additional capital, including $4-$5 million from
the liquidation of other assets, as set forth in a term sheet DenSco and Menaged signed after
having already put their plan into effect. As the scope of the problem appeared to grow, Mr.
Chittick and Menaged agreed to terms of an expanded plan, which included further
investment from both DenSco and Menaged, who would also continue to flip and rent homes
to raise the necessary profits needed to pay off the other lenders.

Unbeknownst to Mr, Beauchamp, and according to Mr, Chittick’s January 7, 2014
email, DenSco and Menaged had already been “proceeding with this plan since November
[2013]” That is corroborated by the Receiver, who asserts that Mr. Chittick lent $1 million
to Menaged to further their private wotkout plan in December 2013, In other words, by the
time Mr. Chittick approached Mz, Beauchamp with a partial disclosure of the issues in late
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2013 and early 2014, Mr. Chittick had already agreed to a business plan with Menaged to
work out the double lien problems, and had already advanced Menaged significant sums
pursuant to that agreement. As Mr. Beauchamp explained in a February 20, 2014 email to
his colleagues, Mr. Chittick “withogt any additional documentation or any legal advice...has
been reworking his loans and deferring interest payments to assist Borrower,., When we
became aware of this issue, we advised our client that he needs to have a Forbearance

Agreement in place to evidence the forbearance and the additional protections he needs.”

1. Mz, Beauchamp tells DenSco it cannot accept new funds or roll over
prior funds,

After receiving Mr, Chittick’s January 7, 2014 email, Mr. Beauchamp was alarmed
that DenSco may be taking on new investors or rolling over prior investments without
disclosing the double lien issue or the workout to which Mr. Chittick and Menaged had
agreed. Mr. Beauchamp’s advice to Mr. Chiftick regarding disclosures Mr. Chittick had to
make to investors was immediate, clear, practical, consistent with his practice and
experience, and consistent with the standard of care: (a) DenSco was not permitted to take
new money without full disclosure to the investor lending the money; (b) DenSco was not
permitted fo roll over existing investments without full disclosure to the investor rolling over
the money; and (¢) DenSco needed to update its POM and make full disclosure to all its
investors. Mr. Beauchamp provided this advice to DenSco starting with his January 9, 2014
meeting with Mr. Chittick, and repeated it routinely over the next few months.

Mr, Beauchamp was also concerned about the source and use of the funds needed to
effectuate the Menaged-Chittick workout. Yet, as Mr, Chittick explained, the funds for the
31 million loan (which Mr. Chittick funded prior to engaging Clark Hill) and an additional
$5 million [oan Mr, Chittick and Menaged eventually agreed to as part of the workout, would
come from (a) Mr. Chittick’s investment of additional funds out of his retirement account,

(b) Mr. Chittick’s personal §1.5 million line of credit, and (¢) DenSco’s working capital
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raised as loans to other borrowers paid off, Again, and at all times Mr, Beauchamp, advised
M. Chittick that he could not obtain new investor funds or roll over prior investments
without full disclosure, Mr, Beauchamp also repeatedly insisted that Mr. Chittick revise his
out-of-daie POM to provide disclosure to all his investars. Mt, Chittick, however, insisted
that DenSco first document the forbearance agreement so that M. Chittick would have a
plan to show his investors.

_ Further, Mr. Chittick assured Mr. Beauchamp repeatedly that he was making the
requisite disclosures to investors on an as needed basis, and that he had informed a select
group of investors as to the double lien issue and proposed workout. That would be in
keeping with Mr. Chittick’s prior approach to buginess, As far as Mr, Beanchamp knew, and
as Mr. Chittick had previously told him, Mr, Chittick indeed had a select group of investors
to whom he turned for advice and approval when confronted with important business
decisions, such as, for example, diversifying his investments into different types of
properties. Mr. Chittick told Mr, Beauchamp that he was seeking such advice from what Mr.
Chittick described as an “advisory council.” And again, while the letters M. CIﬁi:tick
appears to have authored prior to his passing contain hearsay and present questions regarding
admissibility, they include various statements suggesting that Mr, Chittick may have
previously told (and received approval from) a select group of investors that he was investing
specifically with Menaged, that he was increasing his loan concentration with Menaged
above the 10-15% concentration threshold suggested in his POMSs, and that his lending
process involved finding loans directly to botrowers, rather than a trustee or escrow account,

There was no reason for Mr, Beauchamp to question whether Mr. Chittick was in fact
providing disclosures to limited invesi;ors. Moreover, over the more than decade long strong
professional relationship Mr., Beauchamp had developed with Mr. Chitticle, Mr, Chittick had
proven himself to be a trustworthy client with a strong history of sharing information and
making prudent decisions.
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2. Mr. Beauchamp advises DenSco to enter into a forbearance agreement.

Beginning in early January, and over the course of several meetings and telephone
conversations with Mr. Chittick, Mr. Beauchamp convinced Mr. Chittick that if he was going
to keep doing business with Menaged (and Mr. Chittick never wavered from his insistence
on working his way out of the double lien issue with Menaged), DenSco should at least
document the issues and workout plan in a forbearance agreement. Entering into a
forbearance agreement was sound, practical advice and consistent with the standard of care,
particularly where Mr, Chittick and Menaged had already implemented their own workout
plan. As Mr, Beauchamp repeatedly explained to Mr, Chittick, the forbearance agreement
would, among other things, (a) clarify and set forth the facts that led to the double lien issue,
(b) clarify and set forth the scope of the issue with the borrower, (c) acknowledge Mr.
Menaged’s defaults under his loan documents with DenSco, as well as the amount and
validity of any debt owed to DenSco, (d) obtail} additional written commitments from
Menaged and his entities to fund the workout Mr. Chittick and Menaged had already agreed
to; and (e) obtain additional security and other protections from Menaged and his entities to
protect DenSco and its investors, Mr, Beauchamp was crystal clear with Mr. Chittick all of
this would need to be disclosed to DenSco’s investors, Other protections Mr. Beauchamp
advocated for, including additional admissions of fault and fraud by Menaged to protect
DenSco in the event of a bankruptoy filing by Menaged or his entities, were eventually
stricken from the agreesment at Menaged and Mr. Chittick’s insistence, and over Mr.
Beauchamp’s objections.

Mr. Beauchamp had previously drafted and negotiated countless forbearance
agreements. He reasonably anticipated that documenting DenSco’s forbearance would take
2-3 weeks, Negotiating the forbearance agreement, however, turned out fo be more difficult
than Mr. Beanchamp could have reasonably imagined. For one, Menaged and his counsel

repeatedly insisted on edits and revisions that served only to undermine DenSco’s fiduciary
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duty to ifs investors. Mr. Beauchamp repeatedly had to undo changes proffered by Menaged
or Jeff Gouldet, Menaged’s attorney, and often by Mr. Chiitick at Menaged’s direction, in
order to protect DenSco’s investors, For example, Menaged (and Mt, Goulder) attempted to
restrict the type of information that could be disclosed to investors, attempted to obtain
releases for Menaged related to his defauits and conduct, and refused to provide additional
security or information regarding that additional security. Mr. Beauchamp repeatedly pushed
back on these efforts and advised DenSco and M. Chittick, both in writing and verbally, that
they had fiduciary duties to DenSco’s investors, which included disclosure obligations. See
e.g., February 4, 2014 email from Mr. Beauchamp to Mr. Chittick (“you cannot obligate
DenSco to further help Scott, because that would breach your fiduciary duty to your
investors™); February 14, 2014 email from Mr, Beauchamp to Mr. Chittick (“[Goulder]
clearly thinks he can force you to agree to accept a watered down agreement and give up
substantial rights that you should not have to give up. Unfortonately, it is not your money.
It is your investors® money. So you have a fiduciary duty™); March 13, 2014 email from M.
Beauchamp to Mr, Chittick (“we caunot give Scott and his attorney any time to cause further
delay in getting this Forbearance Agrecment finished and the necessary disclosure prepared
and circulated” ).

In addition to Menaged and his counsel’s constant revisions, the number of loans
affected by the double lien issue also kept growing. The number of loans Mr. Chittick
asserted were in issue grew from December 2013 to January 2014, and then grew again from
Jaouary 2014 to February 2014. This resulted in constant changes to the revised workout
documents, as well as to Menaged and Mr. Chitticl’s agreement regarding the manner in
which to fund the workout. Mz, Chittick, however, maintained, despite multiple inquiries
from Mr, Beauchamp, that he had run the calculations and projections and was confident his
plan with Menaged would work, Mr, Chittick also told Mr, Beauchamp that he had gone
over those projections with his “advisory council.” As Mr, Chittick described it to Mr.
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Beauchamp, it was a cash flow issue, not a payment issue, and th-at with Menaged’s
additional investmerits, the workout would succeed.

Nevertheless, Mr. Beauchamp at one point became concerned enough at Menaged’s
intransigence and the apparent influence he held over Mr. Chittick, that he reached out to
third parties in late January 2014 to inquire about Menaged. Those third parties informed
him that Menaged was generally someone to be distrusted and not someone to do business
with. Mr. Beauchamp attempted to persuade Mr. Chittick of this during several heated
conversations, but Mr, Chittick ignored these admonitions, explaining that while Menaged
could be sharp and off-putting, Menaged had always performed on DenSco’s loans in the
past, and had stood by Mr. Chittick in tough times. Despite Mt. Beauchamp’s efforts, Mr.
Chittick could not be convinced to cut ties with Menaged.

¥,  Mr, Beauchamp terminates representation of DenSco and Mr. Chittick.

When Mr. Beauchamp agreed to represent DenSco with respect to Menaged, Mr.
Beauchamp made clear that Mr. Chittick had to immediately update DenSco’s POM and
malke full disclosure to its investors regarding the douﬁle lien issues, the workout with
Menaged, and the potential implications thereof on DenSco’s finances and the investors’
investments, Mr, Chittick always acknowledged that responsibility and agreed to make the
full disclosure once the forbearance agreement was properly documented. As the
forbearance neared completion, Mr. Beauchamp and his associate, Daniel Schenk, began
drafting the updated POM in April and May 2014, Specifically, the draft 2014 POM would
have: provided a description of the forbearance agreement (including all the parties’ funding
obligations), the reason it was necessary, and its effect on DenSco’s books; updated
DenSco’s goals for intended loan-to-value ratios; updated the descriptions regarding
DenSco’s loan funding and securitizations procedures; updated the number of loan defaults
triggering foreclosures; and amended the descriptions regarding DenSco’s borrower base,

among other things. Further, Mr, Beauchamp explained that the updated POM would need
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to be accompanied with a cover letter or other communication highlighting the major
material changes, including the double lien issue and resulting workout agreement, to ensure
that investors were fully informed. Mz, Chittick, however, refused to provide the necessary
information to complete the POM and refused to approve the description of the workout or
the double lien issue, despite his prior acknowledgement that he would need to make full
disclosure to all of his investors about DenSco (as he had been doing through POMs and
newsletters since 2003).

In May 2014, Mr. Beauchamp handed Mr, Chittick a physical copy of the draft POM
and asked him what Mr, Chittick’s specific issues were with the disclosure. Mr, Chittick
responded that there was nothing wrong with the disclosure, he was simply notready to make
any kind of disclosures to his investors at this stage. Mr, Beauchamp again explained that
M, Chittick had no choice in the matter and that he had a fiduciary duty to his investors to
malke these disclosures. Mt. Chittick would not budge. Paced with an intransigent client
who was now acting contrary to the advice Mr. Beauchamp was providing, and with concerns
that Mr. Chittick may not have been providing any disclosures to anyone since January 2014,
M, Beauchamp informed Mr. Chittick that Beauchamp and Clark Hill could not and would
not represent DenSco any longer. Mr. Beauchamp also told Chittick that he would need to
retain new securities counsel, not only fo provide the proper disclosure to DenSco’s
investors, but fo protect DenSco’s rights under the forbearance agreement, Mr, Chittick
suggested that he had already started that process and was speaking with someone else,

Thereafter, Mr, Beauchamp and Clark Hill ceased providing DenSco with securities
advice, Mr. Chittick accepted that, but asked that Mr. Beauchamp clean up some small issues
with the forbearance agreement before ending the relatiomship entirely. Other than
addressing those small forbearance agreement issues in June and July, Clark Hill stopped
working with DenSco or Mr. Chittick in any capacity until 2016, when Mr. Chittick
requested that Mr. Beauchamp assist with a very limited issue involving an audit by the
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Arizona Department of Financial Institutions - work Mr, Beauchamp had previously
performed for DenSco and that Mr, Chittick characteristically believed could be done most
cost-effectively by Mr. Beauchamp rather than by a new lawyer with no background on the

issue,

G.  Menaged continues to perpetrate fraud on DenSco, which only grows in
scale.

During the time that he represented it regarding securities matters, Mr. Beauchamp (a)
repeatedly advised DenSco that it had to make full disclosure to its investors and then
terminated his relationship as securities counsel for DenSco when DenSco refused, (b)
explained that DenSco would need to retain new counsel after Mr. Beauchamp withdrew to
provide proper disclosures and monitor the forbearance, and (¢) repeatedly reminded Mr,
Chittick that he needed to fund loans directly to a trustee or escrow company, rather than to
the borrower, Mr. Chiftick ignored Mr., Beauchamp’s advice. It is unclear if DenSco ever
engaged or even talked to new counsel. It appears Mr. Chittick never issued an updated POM,
a fact which could not have gone unnoticed by DenSco’s sophisticated investors, who had
gotten used to regular updates from DenSco, not only through updated POMs, but through
monthly newsletters and periodic investor meetings, Tt is quite clear that Mr, Chittick
continued to loan funds directly to Menaged in direct contravention of Mr, Beauchamp’s
repeated advice,

Nevertheless, the brazen scope of Menaged’s efforts to defraud DenSco was not
foresecable. After several years of bilking DenSco and others out of millions of dollars,
Menaged was eventually artested. The United States Department of Justice first charged
Menaged with defrauding various banks through his purported furniture stores. Menaged used
fabricated receipts of purchases made at the furniture store to obtain credit from banlks using
the names of, and personal identification information of, individuals who had recently died.

He would then incur millions of dollars in fraudulent charges on those fake
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accounts, Incredibly, Menaged acknowledged in his plea agreement that he had perpetrated
the bank fraud in order to get cash to continue defrauding DenSco.

The Department of Justice then also charged Menaged with money laundering with
respect to the DenSco fraud. In his plea agreement, Menaged admitted that from January 2014
through June 2016, he embezzled millions of dollars without purchasing properties with the
loans obtained from Denséo. He explained that Densco would wire money to purchase
properties directly to Menaged who, in turn, would send Densco “an image of a bank cashier’s
check and a copy of a Trustee Certificate of Sale Receipt.” No sales, however, actually took
place. Menaged would simply redeposit the cashier’s check into his account and create bogus
receipts for the purchase of the property. Between January 2013 and June 2016, Menaged
admitted he obtained 2,172 loans from DenSco totaling approximately $734,484,440.67. Yet,
-of the 2,712 loans made by DenSco, only 96 involved actual property fransactions. Menaged
supposedly used the remaining 2,616 loans for personal expenses, gambling trips, and transfers
to his family members and associates. Menaged would also utilize new loans from DenSco fo
pay back outstanding DenSco loans to conceal the embezzlement, Menaged was sentenced to
17 years in jail. As PRirst Assistant U.8, Attorney BElizabeth Strange stated, the “lengthy
sentence is a fitting punishment for hig egregious crimes.”

Menaged shamelessly duped Mr. Chittick. Documents and recordings suggest that
Menaged never invested any money into the workout plan, He never obtained any money from
Israel despite purportedly making numerous frips to the couniry for that very purposs, blatantly
lied that funds that could have been used to fund the workout were tied up in his divorce
proceedings, and ultimately invented a non-existent investment scheme involving
“auction,com” which Menaged falsely claimed was retaining most of DenSco’s money (to go
along with his fabrication of the frandulent cougin and terminally ill wife). Sadly, Mr. Chittick
bought into all of Menaged’s lies until his Jast days.

Discovery is continuing. Defendants may supplement,
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I LEGAL THEORIES OF CLAIMS AND DEFENSES.
A. Plaintiff’s claims

Legal Malpractice

Receiver asserts that Defendants, in their representation of DenSco, committed
malpractice and breached fiduciary dutics owed to DenSco. I.egal malpractice requires proof
of the existence of a duty, breach of duty, that defendant’s breach was the actual and proximate
cause of damages, and the “nature and extent” of those damages. Glaze v. Larsen, 207 Ariz.
26,29 9 12 83 P.3d 26, 29 (Ariz. 2004) (citations and quotations omitted).

Receiver cannof prove breach of duty, actual and proximate cause, or resulting damages.
‘To prove breach of duty, Receiver will need to demonstrate that Defendants deviated from the
professional standard of care. Phillips v. Clancy, 152 Ariz. 415, 418, 733 P.2d 300, 303 (App.
1986). Defendants’ advice and conduct in representing DenSco and, in doing so, representing
Mr, Chittick as president of DenSco, was consistent with Defendants’ practice and experience,
and consistent with the standard of care, Thus, Defendants did not breach their duties to
DenSco, Receiver will also need to prove that if Defendants had not purportedly breached the
standard of care, that DenSco would not have suffered injury, JZd. Whatever harm befell
DenSco was not an actual or foreseeable result of the advice provided by Defendants. Thus,

Receiver’s malpractice claim fails.

Aiding and Abetting Breach of Fiduciary Duties

Receiver asserts that Defendants aided and abetted Mr, Chittick in breaching his
fiduciary duties to DenSco, Claims of aiding and abetting require proof that: (1) the primary
tortfeasor must comunit a tort that caused injury to the plaintiff; (2) the defendant must know
that the primary tortfeasor’s conduct constitutes a breach of duty; (3) the defendant must
substantially assist or encourage the primary tortfeasor in the achicvement of that breach and

(4) there must be a causal relationship between the defendant’s assistance or encouragement
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and the primary tortfeasor’s commission of the tort, Wells Fargo Bank v. Az. Laborers,
Teamsters and Cement Masons Local No. 395 Pension Trust Fund, 201 Ariz, 474, 485 (Ariz.
2002); Sec, Title Agency, Inc. v. Pope, 219 Ariz. 480,491 (App. 2008). Importantly, “[blecause
aiding and abetting is a theory of secondary liability, the party charged with the fort must have
knowledge of the primary violation.” Wells Fargo, 201 Ariz. at 485,

It is unclear from the Complaint what actions the Receiver asserts constitute a breach
of M, Chittick’s fiduciary duties to DenSco. In any event, as set forth above, Defendants’
advice and conduct in representing DenSco were consistent with the applicable standard of
care, Defendants did not “substantially assist or encourage” Mr. Chittick in breaching his
duties to DenSco, Defendants did not have knowledge of Mr. Chittick’s purported “primary
violation,” nor is there a causal relationship between Defendants’ representation of DenSco
and Mr., Chittick’s purported tortious conduct with respect to DenSco. Further, as set forth
above, whatever harm befell DenSco was not an actual or foreseeable result of Defendants’
actions or inactions,

B.  Affivrmative Defenses
Statute of Limitations

Both the legal malpractice claim and the aiding and abetting claim have a two-year
statute of limitations, See AR.S, §12-542(1) (An action *[f]or injuries done to the person of
another” shall be commenced and prosecuted within two yeats after the cause of action accrues,
and not afterward™). Receiver, who stands in the shoes of DenSco, did not file the Complaint
in this action until October 16, 2017, which was well outside the statute of limitations, DenSco,
and potentially the Investors, could have discovered at least as of Summer 2014, that DenSco’s
loans to Menaged (or his entities) and DenSco’s lending practices with respect fo Menaged,
could give rise to potential causes of action against Mk, Chittick or his agents. Consequently,
because the statute of limitations ran, at the latest, in the Summer of 2016, the Complaint is
barred in its entirety.
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In pari delicto and unclean hands

Arizona law recognizes the doctrine of in pari delicto, Brand v. Elledge, 89 Ariz. 200,
205, 360 P.2d 213, 217 (1961) (quoting Furman v. Furtan, 34 N.Y,8.2d 699, 704 (N.Y. Sup.
Ct. 1941), gff"d, 40N.E.2d 643 (N.Y. 1942)). In pari delicto is an affirmative defense by which
a party is barred from recovering damages if his losses are substantially caused by activities
the law forbade him to engage in.” Stewart v. Wilmington Trust SP Servs., Inc., 112 A.3d 271,
301-02 (Del. Ch.), aff*d, 126 A.3d 1115 (Del. 2015) (quotation omitted). The defense may
be raised against a receiver. Id. (“no cogent reason for sparing the innocent Receiver the effect
of in pari delicto while equally innocent stockholders or policyholders would be barred from
relief in the derivative context™); Knauer v. Jonathon Roberts Fin. Grp., Inc., 348 B.3d 230,
236 (7th Cir, 2003) (affirming dismissal of the receiver’s claims against the broker dealers,
concluding that they were barred by the defense of in pari delicto).

Here, to the extent there are GlF:lilTlS against the Defendants, DenSco, into whose shoes
the Receivers steps, bears fault for damages about which it complains. Thus, the Receiver’s
claims are barred by doctrine of in pari delicto and, to the extent it specifically seeks equitable

relief, by the related doctrine of unclean hands.

Laches

A claim is barred by laches when the delay in bringing the claim is “unreasonable under
thc circumstances” given “the party’s knowledge of his or her right” and “any change in
circumstances caused by the delay has resulted in prejudice to the other party sufficient to
justify denial of relief.” Mathieu v. Mahoney, 174 Arxiz. 456, 459, 851 P.2d 81, 84 (1993).
Receiver seeks to recover potentially millions of dollars in alleged damages resulting from
loans Mr, Chittick made to Menaged. DenSco would have been aware of the harms that could
befall DenSco and its investors as a result of DenSco’s loans to, and lending practices with,

Menaged, by Summer 2014 at the latest. DenSco’s inaction for several years, up through the
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death of Mr. Chittick, to seek relief against any potential third party for harms suffered by
DenSco was unreasonable in light of DenSco’s knowledge. Because the Receiver steps into

DenSco’s shoes, the claims are barred.

Setoff

Clark Hill filed a proof of claim in the DenSco Receivership for unpaid fees incurred
by Clark Hill on behalf of DenSco after Mr, Chittick’s death. The Receiver improperly denied
the claim on the basis of an alleged conflict of interest. To the extent Defendants are found to
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owe Plaintiff anything, that debt must be reduced any sums Plaintiff owes Clark Hill
Additiona} defenses:

[ot354B16.1}
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.

Third pariies, including Mr. Chittick and Menaged, over whom Defendants
have no authority or control, are at fault for any damages suffered.

Densco, in to whose shoes the Receiver steps, is at fault for any damages
suffered,

Densco, in to whose shoes the Receiver steps, assumed the risk of any actions
taken or not taken by DenSco or Mr, Chittick. Hildebrand v. Minyard, 16 Ariz.
App. 583, 585, 494 P.2d 1328, 1330 (1972) (“A plaintiff who by contract ot
otherwise expressly agrees to accept a risk of harm arising from the defendant’s
negligent or reckless conduct cannot recover for such harm . . . .”") (quoting
Restatement (Second) of Torts § 496(B) (1965)).

Recetver cannot demonstrate proximate cause or loss causation becaunge
Defendants are not the actual or proximate cause of any damages suffered.

Any damages suffeted were the result of intervening or superseding events or
canses over which the Defendants had no control and were not legally
respongsible.

Receiver’s claims are barred by doctrines of waiver and estoppel.
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Discovery is continuing. Defendants may supplement,

IHI. WITNESSES.

Because no discovery has taken place, Defendants have not yet identified all persons it
may call as witnesses at trial, but reserves the right o call any of the following persons to
testify as a witness at trial: |

1. David Beauchamp

¢/o Coppersmith Brockelman, PLC
2800N, Central Avenue, Suite 1900
Phoenix, Arizona 85004

Mr, Beauchamp is expected to testify regarding the allegations in the Complaint and

his representation of DenSco and of Mr. Chittick in his capacity as president of DenSco.

2. Peter Davis, Receiver of DenSco [nvestment Corporation
¢/o Osborn Maledon, P.A.
2929 N. Central Avenue, Suite 2100
Phoenix, Arizona 85012

Mr. Davis is expected to testity regarding the allegations in the Complaint; the
Receiver’s evaluations, analyses, and determinations regarding all aspects of DenSco’s
finances, including, but not limited to, DenSco’s loans, lending practices, record keeping,
financial transactions, and solvency; the Receiver’s maintenance of any DenSco or Chiftick
records ot property, including, but not limited to, electronic records, websites, and email
comumunications; the Receiver’s communications with third parties related to DenSco,
including communications with financial institutions, investors, and accountants and other
professionals; the Receiver’s determinations regacding the Receiver’s evaluation and analysis
regavding the potential fault, liability, or culpability of any third party with respect to any
losses suffered by DenSco, including, but not limited, to Chase Bank, 1.8, Bank, Yomtov

Menaged, Active Funding Group, LLC, and/or Gregg Seth Reichman,
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3. Any witnesses disclosed by other parties.

4, Any witnesses that become known through discovery,

5. Custodian or other foundational witnesses necessary to admit exhibits.

Discovery is contimying, Defendants may supplement.
IV. ADDITIONAL PERSONS WHO MAY HAVE RELEVANT INFORMATION,

1. Yomtov “Scott” Menaged

Scott Menaged is expected to have knowledge regarding all agpects of any personal,
financial, or business dealings he may have had with DenSco and Mr. Chittick; all aspects of
the fraud(s) he petpetrated on DenSco and Mr. Chittick, either directly, or through one of his
entities, including, but not limited to, Easy Investments, LLC, Arizona Home Foreclosures,
LLC, Fumitute King, LL.C, and Scott’s Fine Furniture; all aspects of actions or conduct
related to his criminal indictment, plea bargain, or sentencing in the United States District
Court for the Disttict of Arizona; his communications with DenSco and Mr, Chittick; and his

communications with Mr, Beauchamp.

2. PMK Easy Investments, LI.C

10510 East Sunnyside Drive
Scottsdale, AZ 85259

See Description for Scott Menaged.

3, PMK Arizona Flome Foreclosures, T.LC

7320 West Bell Road
Glendale, AZ 85308

See Description for Scott Menaged.
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4, PMK Furniture King, LLC

3200 North Central Avenue
Suite 2460
Phoenix, AZ 85012

See Description for Scolt Menaged.
5. PMIX Scott’s Fine Furniture
See Description for Scott Menaged.

6. Veronica Castro aka Veronica Gutierrez Reyes

c/o Thomas W. Warshaw Attorney at Law
33147 North 715 Way
Scottsdale, AZ 85266

Ms. Castro is expected to have knowledge regarding Menaged’s personal, financial, or
business dealings with DenSco and Mr. Chittick; the fraud(s) Menaged perpetrated on
DenSco and Mr, Chittick, either directly, or through one of Menaged’s entities; Menaged’s
communications with DenSco and Mr, Chittick; Menaged’s communications with Mr.
Beauchamp; the actions or conduct related to Menaged’s criminal indictment, plea bargain,
or sentencing in the United States District Court for the District of Arizona; and Ms. Castro’s

communications with DenSco and Mr. Chittick,

7. Luigi Amoroso

Mr. Amoroso is expected to have knowledge regarding Menaged’s personal, financial,
or business dealings with DenSco and Mz, Chittick; the frand(s) Menaged perpetrated on
DenSco and Mr, Chittick, either directly, or through one of Menaged’s entities; Menaged’s
communications with DenSco and Chittick; Menaged’s communications with Mr,
Beauchamp; the actions or conduct related to Menaged’s criminal indictment, plea bargain,
or sentencing in the United States District Court for the District of Arizona; and Mr.

Amoroso’s communications with DenSco and Mr, Chittick.,

{00354B16.1 } 24




(¥R - B = Y O N T A

™ T T Sy S ey
B ERBREEST IS G RER ~ o

8, Alberto Pena

c/o Law Office of Cameron A, Morgan
4356 North Civic Center Plaza

Suite 101

Scotisdale, AZ 85251

Mr, Pena may have knowledge regarding Menaged’s personal, financial, or business
dealings with DenSco and Chittick; the fraud(s) Menaged perpetrated on DenSco and
Chittick, either directly, ot through one of Menaged’s entitles; Menaged’s communications
with DenSco and Mr, Chittick; and the actions or conduct related to Mt, Pena’s and
Menaged’s criminal indictment, pleg bargain, or sentencing in the United States District
Court for the District of Arizona,

9.  Troy Flippo

c/o Storrs Law Firm PLLC
1421 Bast Thomas Road
Phoenix, AZ 85014

Mr., Flippo may have knowledge regarding Menaged’s petsonal, financial, or business
dealings with DenSco and Mr, Chiftick; the fraud(s) Menaged perpetrated on DenSco and
Mr, Chittick, either directly, or through one of Menaged’s entities; Menaged’s
communications with DenSco and Chittick; and the actions or conduct related to Flippo’s and
Menaged’s criminal indictment, plea bargain, or sentencing in the United States District
Court for the District of Arizona.

10.  Menaged family members, including, Joseph Menaged, Michelle Menaged,
Jennifer Bonfiglio, Joy Menaged, Jess Menaged

Menaged's family may have knowledge regarding Menaged’s personal, financial, or
business dealings with DenSco and Chittick; the fraud(s) Menaged perpetrated on DenSco
and Chittick, either directly, or through one of Menaged’s or his Family’s entities; the use of
funds obtained from DenSco; Menaged’s communications with DenSco and Chittick; and the
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actions or conduct related to Menaged’s criminal indictment, plea bargain, or sentencing in

the United States District Court for the District of Arizona.

11. Shawna Heuer

¢/o Bonnett Fairbourn, PC
2325 E. Camelback Road
Phoenix, Arizona 85016

Ms. Tleuer is expected to have knowledge regarding Mr. Beauchamp’s work on behalf
of DenSco after Mr, Chittick’s death and her communications with Mr, Beauchamp. Ms,
Heuer may also have knowledge regarding Mr. Chittick and DenSco’s business, and Mr.

Chittick’s communications with Mr. Beauchamp, Menaged, or DenSco’s investors.

12, Jeff Goulder
Stinson Leonard Street
1850 North Central Avenue, Suite 2100
Phoenix, Arizona 85004

Mr. Goulder is expected fo have knowledge regarding the negotiations of the
Forbearance Agreement. Mr, Goulder also may have knowledge regarding Menaged’s
businesses, business practices, and finances. Mr. Goulder also may have knowledge

regarding Menaged’s communications with Mr, Beauchamp.

13.  David Preston

c/o Gammage & Burnham
2 N. Central Avenue, Suite 15
Phoenix, Arizona 85004

Mr, Preston is expected to have knowledge regarding DenSco and Mr. Chittick’s
finances and tax returns. Mr, Preston is also expected to have knowledge regarding Mr.

Chittick’s retivement plan,
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14,

DenSco Investors

The Investors are expected to have knowledge regarding Mr, Chittick’s

communications to the Investors and their kmowledge of DenSco’s business, the status of

their investments, and the status of DenSco’s loans at all relevant times,

15,

PMXK Chase Bank

3800 North Central Avenue
Suite 460

Phoenix, AZ 85012

Chage Bank is expected to have knowledge regarding Menaged’s banking practices,
including Menaged’s use of Chase Bank to perpetrate his fraud on DenSco and Chittick,

16.

PMK US Bank

3800 North Central Avenue
Suite 460

Phoenix, AZ 85012

US Bank is expected fo have knowledge regarding Menaged’s banking practices,

including Menaged’s use of Chase Baok to perpetrate his fraud on DenSco and Chittick.

17,

Gregg Seth Reichman/Active Funding Group
Attention: Andrew Abraham

702 East Osborn Road

Suite 200

Phoenix, AZ 85014

Mr, Reichman may have knowledge regarding Menaged’s businesses, business

practices, and finances; the fraud(s) Menaged perpetrated on DenSco and Mr. Chittick, either

directly, or through one of Menaged’s entities; and Mr, Reichman or his entities’ (including

Active Funding Group) participation in any of those fraudulent schemes (as suggested by the
Receiver’s Petition No, 45).

{00354B16.1 )
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18, Daniel Schenk

¢/o Coppersmith Brockelman, PL.C
2801N. Central Avenue, Suite 1900
Plhoenix, Arizona 85004

Mr. Schenk is expected to have knowledge regarding any work he performed on
behalf of DenSco and Mr, Chittick in his capacity as president of DenSco, Mr. Schenk may
also have knowledge of Menaged’s communications with Beanchamp, Menaged

communications with Mr. Chittick, and Mr, Beauchamp’s communications with Mr, Chittick.

19, Robert Anderson

c/o Coppersmith Brockelman, PL.C
2802N. Central Avenus, Suite 1900
Phoenix, Arizona 85004

Mr. Anderson is expected to have knowledge regarding any work he performed on

behalf of DenSco and Mr. Chittick in his capacity as president of DenSco.

V. PERSONS WHO HAVE GIVEN STATEMENTS.

None at this time. Discovery is continuing, Defendants may supplement,
VI. EXPERT WITNESSES.

Defendants will identify expert witnesses in accordance with the schedule ordered by
the Court.
VII. COMPUTATION AND MEASURE OF DAMAGES.

Plaintiff is not entitled to recover damages against Defendants.

Discovery is continuing, Defendants may supplement,
VIII. EXHIBITS. )

Defendants have not yet identified which of the documents listed in Section IX below
will be used at trial, and therefore expressly reserve the right to introduce any of the listed

documents as exhibits at trial, Defendants may also use any documents identified in any other
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party’s disclosure statement or otherwise disclosed in this matter. By reserving the right to
introduce any of the listed documents as exhibits at trial, Defendants do not waive their right
to object to the introduction of any of these documents at the time of trlal. Defendants will
supplement this initial disclosure statement in accordance with Arizona Rules of Civil
Procedure 26.1(b)(2).

Discovery is continuing, Defendants may supplement.
IX. LIST OF RELEVANT DOCUMENTS.

Defendants have not yet identified any additional relevant documents, The
following documents, or categories of documents, may be relevant or lead to discovery of
adnnissible evidence in this action and have already been exchanged or are being produced
herewith:

1. Documents previously produced by Clark Hill bates labeled CH_0000001-

13330,

2. Additional documents produced herewith by Clark Hill bates labeled

CH_0013331-13374,

3. Documents previously produced by Plaintiff including bates labeled

DIC000001-25330, 28634-53950 and Quickbooks backup,

4,  Documents previously produced by Plaintiff including bates labeled D126751-

128731 and 130972-133111.

5. Documents previously produced by Bryan Cave in response to Subpoena Duces

Tecum bates labeled BC000001-3188,

0. Documments produced herewith by Dave Preston in response to Subpoena Duces

Tecum bates labeled DP000001-601, '

7. Any and all documents in CR~17-00680, United States of America v. Yonrtov

Scott Menaged, et al.

8. All documents produced by any party or third party in this litigation,
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9. All pleadings, filings, minute entries, orders and judgments.
10.  All deposition or hearing transcripts in the above captioned litigation.
11.  All transcripts from any Section 341 creditor meetings, Rule 2004 examinations,
depositions, or hearings in Yomtov Menaged’s bankruptcy pending in the United
States Bankruptey Court for the District of Arizona at 2:16-bk-04268.
Defendants reserves the right to supplement the list of documents that may be relevant
as information becomes available.
X. INSURANCE AGREEMENTS.
Defendants produce the insurance policies in effect during the relevant time
period and the November 10, 2017 correspondence from Mendes & Mount, LLP, all of

which are stamped “Confidential Materials.”

DATED this 20" day of March, 2018,

COPPERSMIFA-BROCKELMAN PLC

2800 North Central Avenue, Suite 1900
Phoenix, Arizona 85004
Attorneys for Defendants

ORIGINAL mailed and emailed this
20" day of March, 2018 to:

Colin F. Campbell, Isq.
Geoffrey M. T, Str, Esq,
Joshua M. Whitalcer, Esq.
(OsBORN MALEDON, P.A.

2929 N. Central Ave., Suite 2100
Phoenix, AZ 85012-2793
Attofneys for Plaintiff

A
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VERIFICATION

STATE OF MICHIGAN )
) ss.

COUNTY oF Wayde. )

Edward J. Hood, being first duly sworn upon his oath, deposes and says:

1, Edward J. Hood, am General Counsel of Clark Hill P1.C, a Defendant in the matter Pefer
S, Davis, us Receiver for DenSco Invesiment Corp. v. Clark Hill PLC; David GG. Beauchamp and
Jane Doe Beauchamp, Mai’icop;! County Superior Court Case No. CV2017-013832. 1 am
authorized to make this Verification on its behalf. I have read the foregoing Defendant’s Second
Supplemental Rule 26.1 Disclosure Statcment and know its contents. The matters stated in the
foregoing Second Supplemental Rule 26.1 Disclosure Statement are true and correct to the best of
my knowledge except as lo those matters thatl are slated upon information and belief, and as to
those matters, | believe them to be true.

1 declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of Michigan that the
foregoing is true and correct,

DATED this Z0 day of Tuly, 2018.

G AT

Gdward J. Hood [ {
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NAUTILUS INSURANCE COMPANY

A Stock Company

LAWYERS PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY INSURANCE
POLICY

THIS POLICY CONSISTS OF:

- Declarations; and
- One or more Coverage Parts. A Coverage Part consists of:

- One or more Coverage Forms; and
- Applicable Forms and Endorsements.

In Witness Whereof, we have caused this pollcy to be executed and attested, and, If required by state law, this
polley shall not be valld unless countersigned by our guthorized representative.

v Secretary Presldent and Eggb
Service Offlce:
250 South Wacker Driva #700 Chleago, IL 60606 ‘Telophona (312) 884-1330 Fax (312) 881-1338

Administrative Office:
7233 East Blutherus Drive Soollsdale, AZ 85260 Telsphone (480) 9510906 Fax (480) 951-9730

@BEKIKEWGDMNYO

S5M-0041(3110)

CONFIDENTIAL MATERIALS
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RECEIVED
OSBORN MALEDON pA.

JUN 15 2018
John E. DeWulf (006850}
Marvin C. Ruth (024220
Vidula U. Patki (030742
COPPERSMITH BROCKELMAN PI.C
2800 North Central Avenue, Suite 1900
Phoenix, Arizona 85004
T: €6022 224-0999
F: (602) 224-0620
jdewulfi@cblawyers.com
mruth@cblawyers.com
vpatki@cblawyers.com

Attorneys for Defendants

SUPERIOR COURT OF ARIZONA
COUNTY OF MARICOPA

Peter 8. Davis, as Receiver of DenSco No. CV2017-013832

Investment Corporation, an Arizona

corporation,

DEFENDANTS’ THIRD

Plaintiff, SUPPLEMENTAL RULE 26.1
: DISCLOSURE STATEMENT

V.

Clark Hill PLC, a Michigan limited liability
company; David 5. Beauchamp and Jane
Doe Beauchamp, husband and wife,

Defendants.

this disclosure statement as discovery progresses. Supplements are in bold.

{00365289.1 }

Defendants Clark Hill PLC, David G. Beauchamp and Jane Doe Beauchamp
(collectively, “Defendants™) supplement their initial disclosure statement according to

Arizona Rule of Civil Procedure 26.1. Defendants reserve the right to amend or suppiement

This case is in its infancy and thus the content of this disclosure statement is
preliminary and subject to supplementation, amendment, explanation, change and
amplification. Because the parties have just commenced discovery, there may be
information, documents, and materials related to the various allegations and defenses set forth

in the pleadings of which Defendants are presently unaware. Defendants note that they do
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not currently have access to all potentially relevant documents of the Plaintiff, or third parties,
and that this disclosure statement is based upon information currently available to
Defendants. Nothing in this disclosure statement is intended to be an admission of fact, an
affirmation of the existence of any document, or an agreement with or an acceptance of any
legal theory or allegation. The information set forth below is provided without waiving (1)
the right to object to the use of such information for any purpose in this or any other action
due to applicable privilege (including the work-product and attorney-client privileges),
materiality, or any other appropriate grounds; (2) the right to object to any request involving
or relating to the subject matter of the information in this disclosure statement; or (3) the right
to revise, correct, supplement or clarify any of the information provided below. If any part
of this statement is ever read to the jury, fairness would require that the jury be read this
introductory statement and any supplementation, amendments, explanation, changes or
amplifications which may occur or be filed subsequent to this disclosure statement.

Defendants also incorporate by reference into this disclosure statement all
interrogatory answers, responses to requests for production, responses to requests for
admission, other discovery and disclosure statements and supplements thereto in this action,
and all franscripts of any deposition taken in this action and any exhibits thereto.
1 FACTUAL BASIS OF CLAIMS AND DEFENSES.

A.  Retention/Scope of Work

For more than 35 years, since graduating with honors from the University of Michigan
Law School in 1981, David Beauchamp has represented his clients in the areas of corporate
law, securities, venture capital, and private equity with distinction and integrity.

One of those clients was DenSco Investment Corporation (“DenSco”), a company
solely owned and managed by Denny Chittick. DenSco raised money from investors by

issuing general obligation notes to those investors at interest rates that varied depending on

the note’s maturity date. DenSco then invested those funds primarily by making high interest (D
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short-term loans to borrowers buying residential properties out of foreclosure, which loans
were intended to be secured by deeds of trusts on those properties. Mr, Beauchamp started
providing securities advice to DenSco in the early 2000s, while he was a partner at the law
firm Gammage & Burnham. DenSco followed Mr. Beauchamp as a client when he left
Gammage to join the law firm Bryan Cave in March 2008, and again when Mr, Beauchamp
left Bryan Cave to join Clark Hill in September 2013.

Although the various firms’ engagement letters with DenSco only specifically
identified DenSco as the client, DenSco could not operate or engage with legal counsel
except through its president and sole owner, Mr. Chittick. DenSco had no other employees;
Mr. Chittick was responsible for all aspects of DenSco’s business, and Mr. Chittick
understood that Mr. Beauchamp, as an incident fo Mr. Beauchamp’s representation of
DenSco, was also representing Mr, Chittick in his capacity as president of DenSco. The
mvestors understood that as well. The private offering memoranda DenSco provided state
that “legal counsel to the Company will represent the interests solely of the Company and its
President, and will not represent the interests of any investor.”

Shortly after Mr. Chittick’s death, and in the midst of a chaotic time dealing with the
fallout of his passing, Mr. Beauchamp stated in an August 10, 2016 letter to an Arizona
Corporation Commission subpoena to Mr. Chittick that he had “not previously represented
Denny Chittick” and that the ACC would need to request the personal information it sought,
including Mr. Chittick’s personal tax returns, from counsel for Mr. Chittick’s estate. To the
extent that Mr, Beauchamp’s statement was not clear or that any clarification was necessary,
Mr. Beauchamp averred in an August 17, 2016 declaration under oath that he represented
DenSco and “Mr. Chiftick as the President of DenSco.” Mr. Beauchamp did not represent
Mr. Chittick outside of his role as a corporate officer at DenSco.

Until mid- 2013, Mr. Beauchamp’s work as DenSco’s securities counsel included,

among other things, drafiing DenSco’s Private Offering Memoranda and related investor
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documents; advising DenSco regarding Blue Sky laws and state and federal securities
reporting and filing requirements; advising DenSco as to the rules and regulations
promulgated by state financial and lending authorities; and advising DenSco regarding the
applicability of mortgage broker regulations. At times, it would also involve answering
DenSco’s questions regarding its Reg D filings and obligations. Although Mr. Beauchamp
helped DenSco file its first set of Reg D documents in 2003, Mr. Chittick told Mr,
Beauchamp thereafter that he did not want to pay a lawyer to review and file the Reg D
documents, and that Mr, Chittick would take on that responsibility himself. That was not a
surprising request, as Mr. Chittick repeatedly instructed Mr. Beauchamp to keep legal fees
to a minimum. Consequently, although Mr. Beauchamp’s paralegal initially helped Mr.
Chittick understand the filing process and obtain access to the EDGAR filing site, in
accordance with his client’s wishes Mr. Beauchamp did not review DenSco’s Reg D filings.

The scope of Mr. Beauchamp’s representation of DenSco and its president was
narrow. Further, the relationship was friendly, but professional. Mr. Beauchamp did not go
to dinner or vacation with Mr. Chittick or his family. They did not play golf or otherwise
socialize together.

Over the years, Mr. Chittick showed himself to be a trustworthy and savvy
businessman, and a good client. He was devoted to his business and investors, many of
whom were friends and family. Despite often complaining about the cost of legal services,
Mr. Chittick appeared to follow Mr. Beauchamp’s advice and provided information when
asked forit. Further, Mr. Beauchamp understood that DenSco utilized an outside accountant,
David Preston, to review DenSco’s books and records and file its tax returns. At no point
did Mr. Beauchamp serve as DenSco’s general corporate counsel, nor was Mr. Beauchamp

engaged to review or approve DenSco financial statements or tax returns or to investigate

borrowets.
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B.  The Private Offering Memoranda

Mr. Beauchamp advised DenSco regarding its Private Offering Memoranda
(“POMs”), which DenSco generally updated every two years. He helped draft the 2003,
2005, 2007, 2009, and 2011 POMs, The POMs, however, had similar provisions and
generally described DenSco’s historical performance based on information provided by Mr.
Chittick; set forth Mr. Chittick’s authority to determine DenSco’s “major business decisions

and policies”, and to make, amend, or deviate from those policies in Mr. Chittick’s sole

— e e L e D

dis-crefgion; and set forth DenSco’s -aspi}ati“onal' Iéndihg standards (inéludlzg_its intent to
“maintain a loan-to-value ratio below 70%” for both individual trust deeds DenSco
purchased and the aggregate loan portfolio, as well as its intent to “achieve a diverse
borrower base” with no borrower comprising more than 10-15% of the portfolio).

In early summer 2013, Mr. Beauchamp advised DenSco that it needed to update its
2011 POM given the passage of time and changes in the scope of DenSco’s fund raising. In
particular, based on Mr. Chittick’s representations to Mr. Beauchamp, DenSco either had or
would soon eclipse the $50 million maximum offering set forth in the 2011 POM.
Consequently, Mr. Beanchamp began drafling revisions to the 2011 POM, which included
updates to the maximuin offering and updates on DenSco’s performance to date, among other
revisions. Mr. Beauchamp, however, was never able to finalize the 2013 POM. Although
Mr. Beauchamp asked for updated investment, loan and financial information regarding
DenSco, Mr. Chittick stalled on providing the information, preferring to wait until after he
scaled down the amount outstanding to investors. Mr. Beauchamp repeatedly advised
DenSco that an update was necessary irrespective of DenSco’s plans regarding the
outstanding amount of its offerings, but Mr, Chittick continued to delay.

C.  The FREO Lawsuit

On May 24, 2013, Easy Investments, an entity owned by Yomtov “Scott” Menaged
(“Menaged”), DenSco, and Ocwen Loan Servicing, were sued by FREO Arizona, LLC

{00365289.1 } 5
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(“FREO”) regarding liens recorded by Easy Investments in favor of DenSco and Active
Funding Corporation, on a parcel of property. In a June 14, 2013 email from Mr. Chittick to
Mr. Beauchamp, Mr. Chittick explained that Easy Investments had purchased a property at
a trustee’s sale using a DenSco loan, which had apparently been previously purchased by
FREO, leading to a dispute. A review of the partial Complaint provided to Mr. Beauchamp
confirms Mr. Chittick’s description. According to its allegations, the loan servicer, Ocwen,
failed to cancel a trustee’s sale and release the deed of trust after FREO had paid off the debt
and acquired the property, thereby allowing Easy Investments to purchase the property again
with DenSco’s funds. Contrary to the allegations in the Receiver’s Complaint, the FREO
lawsuit did not concern lien priority or double lien issues. Moreover, a review of the docket
reveals that Easy Investments prevailed in the FREO lawsuit when the Court granted
summary judgment in favor of Easy Investments and against both FREO and Ocwen (for
breach of its duties) on December 6, 2013,

Further, although Mr. Chittick forwarded a portion of the Complaint to Mr.
Beauchamp, Mr. Chittick did not ask Mr. Beauchamp to represent DenSco in the litigation;
nor did he ask Mr. Beauchamp to investigate the factual allegations in the Complaint. To
the contrary, he expressly stated that he merely wanted Mr. Beauchamp to “be aware” of the
lawsuit. Consequently, although Mr. Beauchamp ran the matter through Bryan Cave’s
conflict system pursuant to standard firm procedure, Mr. Beauchamp did not represent
DenSco in the litigation and did not conduct any further investigation into its merits given
his client’s instruction not to get involved.

Mr. Beauchamp did, however, explain to Mr. Chittick that this lawsuit would need to
be disclosed in DenSco’s 2013 POM. In addition, Mr. Beauchamp advised Mr. Chittick, as
he had done previously, that Mr. Chittick needed to fund DenSco’s loans directly to the
frustee or escrow company conducting the sale, rather than provide loan funds directly to the

borrower, to ensure that DenSco’s deed of trust was protected. Mr. Chittick, however, ()
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explained to Mr. Beauchamp that this was an isolated incident with a borrower, Menaged,
whom Mr. Chittick described in his email as someone he had “done a ton of buginess

with...hundreds of loans for several years....”

D. Mr ?ht;auchamp leaves Bryan Cave, hears nothing from My, Chittick fox
months.

Mr. Beauchamp left Bryan Cave at the end of August 2013. Prior to his departure,
Mr. Beauchamp had repeatedly made clear to DenSco and Mr. Chittick that they needed to
update DenSco’s POM. On August 30, 2013, Mr. Beauchamp and Bryan Cave sent Mr.
Beauchamp’s clients, including DenSco, a joint separation letter informing them that Mr.
Beauchamp was jomning Clark Hill effective as of September 1, 2013. The letter invited
those clients to either request the transition of their files to Mr. Beauchamp or affirmatively
request that the files remain at Bryan Cave, Mr, Chittick initially agreed to transfer a portion
of DenSco’s files to Clark Hill, but aside from DenSco’s authorization letter, Mr. Beauchamp
never heard from Mr. Chittick regarding the nnfinished 2013 POM, or any other matter, until
December 2013.

E. DenSco contacts Mr. Beauchamp in late 2013, slowly reveals scope of
Menaged issues over several months

In December 2013, Mr. Chittick contacted Mr. Beauchamp for the first time in
months. He told Mr. Beauchamp over the phone that he had run into an issue with some of
his loans to Menaged, and specifically, that properties securing a few DenSco loans were
each subject to a second deed of trust competing for priority with DenSco’s deed of trust.
Mr. Beauchamp reminded Mr. Chittick that he still needed to update DenSco’s private
offering memorandum. After briefly discussing the allegedly limited double lien issue, Mr.
Chittick emphasized to Mr. Beauchamp that Mr. Chittick wanted to avoid litigation with
other lenders. Mr. Chittick, however, did not request any advice or help. Accordingly, Mr.
Beauchamp suggested that Mr. Chittick develop and document a plan to resolve the double

liens, and nothing more came of the conversation.
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Mr. Chittick vastly understated the scope of the problem. On January 6, 2014,
Attorney Bob Miller at Bryan Cave sent Mr. Chiitick a letter on behalf of various lenders
(the “Miller Lenders”). The letter asserted that the Miller Lenders had advanced purchase
money loans directly to trustees to buy more than 50 properties out of foreclosure, and had
recorded deeds of frust to evidence their first position security interest. DenSco, however,
had likewise recorded mortgages evidencing its purported purchase money loans for the same
properties. The Miller Lenders asserted that DenSco’s claimed interest was a “practical and
legal impossibility since...only the Lenders provided the applicable trustee with certified
funds supporting the Borrowers purchase money acquisition for each of the Properties,”
demanded that DenSco subordinate its alleged interests to their interests, and threatened to
bring claims for fraud, negligent misrepresentation, and wrongful recordation.

It seems unlikely that the issue with the Miller Lenders was a surprise to Mr. Chittick.
Although Mr. Chittick’s business journals contain hearsay and present questions regarding
admissibility, they suggest that Menaged had told Mr. Chittick about the double lien issue in
November 2013, and had explained that the issue could affect every property Menaged had
purchased using DenSco funds going back as far as 2011, Further, as set forth below, Mr.
Chittick and Menaged had apparently already reached an agreement on how to deal with the
double lien issue in November 2013 as well. Mr. Chittick, however, failed to provide that
information to Mr. Beauchamp in December. Nor did he immediately provide Mr.
Beauchamp with the full scope of the problem, or reveal the procedure he had agreed to with
Menaged to resolve that problem, in December or early January.

Instead, Mr. Chittick sent the Miller letter to Mz. Beauchamp on January 6, 2014 with

3 jnothing more than a sparse request for Mr. Beauchamp to “read the first two pages.” ~The-

next day, Mr. Chittick provided Mr. Beauchamp a more expansive, if incomplete,

explanation. In his email, Mr. Chittick stated that he had lent Menaged a total of $50 million

since 2007 and that he’d “never had a problem with payment or issue that hasn’t been C)
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resolved.” Mr. Chittick asserted, however, that Menaged’s wife had become critically ill in
the past year, and that Menaged had turned the day-to-day operations of his companies over
to his cousin. According to Mr. Chittick, the cousin would receive loan fumds directly from
DenSco, then request loans for the same property from another lender, including the Miller
Lenders. The other lenders, who had funded their loans directly to the trustee, would record
their deed of trust, as would DenSco, leaving DenSco in second position. The cousin,
unfortunately, then purportedly absconded with the funds DenSco lent directly to Menaged.
This “double lien” issue consequently jeopardized DenSco’s secured position and its loan-
to-value ratios. Mr. Chittick feared that a lawsuit with the Miller Lenders would jeopardize
DenSco’s entire enterprise.

According to Mr. Chittick’s email, Menaged purportedly found out about his cousin’s
scam in November and revealed the fraud to Mr. Chittick at the time. Yet rather than consult
legal counsel, Mr. Chittick worked out a plan to fix the double lien issue with Menaged, The
initjal plan included DenSco paying off the other lenders. That required additional capital,
which Menaged and Mr. Chittick agreed would come from DenSco lending Menaged an
additional $1 million and Menaged investing additional capital, including $4-$5 million from
the liquidation of other assets, as set forth in a term sheet DenSco and Menaged signed after
having already put their plan into effect. As the scope of the problem appeared to grow, Mr.
Chittick and Menaged agreed to terms of an expanded plan, which included further
investment from both DenSco and Menaged, who would also continue to flip and rent homes
to raise the necessary profits needed to pay off the other lendess.

Unbeknownst to Mr, Beauchamp, and according to Mr. Chittick’s January 7, 2014
email, DenSco and Menaged had already been “proceeding with this plan since November
[2013].” That is corroborated by the Receiver, who asserts that Mr. Chittick lent $1 million
to Menaged to further their private workout plan in December 2013. In other words, by the
time Mr. Chittick approached Mr. Beauchamp with a partial disclosure of the issues in late

£00365289.1 ) 9
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2013 and early 2014, Mr, Chittick had already agreed to a business plan with Menaged to
work out the double lien problems, and had already advanced Menaged significant sums
pursuant to that agreement. As Mr. Beauchamp explained in a February 20, 2014 email to
his colleagues, Mr. Chittick “without any additional documentation or any legal advice...has
been reworking his loans and deferring interest payments to assist Borrower... When we
became aware of this issue, we advised our client that he needs to have a Forbearance

Agreement in place to evidence the forbearance and the additional protections he needs.”

1. Mr. Beauchamp tells DenSco it cannot accept new funds or roll over
prior funds.

After receiving Mr. Chittick’s January 7, 2014 email, Mr. Beauchamp was alarmed
that DenSco may be taking on new investors or rolling over prior investments without
disclosing the double lien issue or the workout to which Mr. Chittick and Menaged had
agreed. Mr. Beauchamp’s advice to Mr. Chittick regarding disclosures Mr, Chittick had to
make to investors was immediate, clear, practical, consistent with his practice and
experience, and consistent with the standard of care: (a) DenSco was not permitted to take
new money without full disclosure to the investor lending the money; (b) DenSco was not
permitted to roll over existing investments without full disclosure to the investor rolling over
the money; and (c) DenSco needed to update its POM and make full disclosure to all its
investors. Mr. Beauchamp provided this advice to DenSco starting with his January 9, 2014
meeting with Mr. Chittick, and repeated it routinely over the next few months.

Mr. Beauchamp was also concerned about the source and use of the funds needed to
effectuate the Menaged-Chittick workout. Yet, as Mr. Chittick explained, the funds for the
$1 million loan (whic_l% 1\3[1: 9hitti21_< fimded prior tqh_engaging Clark Hill) and an additional

$5 million loan Mr. Chittick and Menaged eventually agreed to as part of the workout, would
come from (a) Mr. Chittick’s investment of additional funds out of his retirement account,

(b) Mr. Chittick’s personal $1.5 million line of credit, and (c) DenSco’s working capital (
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raised as loans to other borrowers paid off. Again, and at all times Mr. Beauchamp, advised
Mr. Chittick that he could not obtain new investor funds or roll over prior investments
without full disclosure. Mr. Beauchamp also repeatedly insisted that Mr. Chittick revise his
out-of-date POM to provide disclosure to all his investors, Mr. Chittick, however, insisted
that DenSco first document the forbearance agreement so that Mr. Chittick would have a
plan to show his investors.

Further, Mr. Chittick assured Mr. Beauchamp repeatedly that he was making the
requisite disclosures to investors on an as needed basis, and that he had informed a select
group of investors as to the double lien issue and proposed workout. That would be in
keeping with Mr. Chittick’s prior approach to business. As far as Mr. Beauchamp knew, and
as Mr. Chittick had previously told him, Mr. Chittick indeed had a select group of investors
to whom he turned for advice and approval when confronted with important business
decisions, such as, for example, diversifying his investments into different types of
properties. Mr. Chittick told Mr. Beauchamp that he was seeking such advice from what M.
Chittick described as an “advisory council.” And again, while the letters Mr. Chittick
appears to have authored prior to his passing contain hearsay and present questions regarding
admissibility, they include various statements suggesting that Mr. Chittick may have
previously told (and received approval from) a select group of investors that he was investing
specifically with Menaged, that he was increasing his loan concentration with Menaged
above the 10-15% concentration threshold suggested in his POMs, and that his lending
process involved funding loans directly to borrowers, rather than a trustee or escrow account.

There was no reason for Mr. Beauchamp to guestion whether Mr. Chittick was in fact
providing disclosures to limited investors. Moreover, over the more than decade long strong
professional relationship Mr. Beauchamp had developed with Mr. Chittick, Mr. Chittick had
proven himself to be a trustworthy client with a strong history of sharing information and
making prudent decisions.

(00365285.1) 11




WO 1 Oy R W N e

[N TR N TR G TR N T N TR N TR N TR G G T G W G T S e e
L R . S =TV~ - R B« V. S R ™

2. Mr. Beauchamp advises DenSco to enter into a forbearance agreement.

Beginning in early January, and over the course of several meetings and telephone
conversations with Mr. Chittick, Mr, Beauchamp convinced Mr. Chittick that if he was going
to keep doing business with Menaged (and Mr. Chittick never wavered from his insistence
on working his way out of the double lien issue with Menaged), DenSco should at least
document the issues and workout plan in a forbearance agreement. Entering into a
forbearance agreement was sound, practical advice and consistent with the standard of care,
particularly where Mr. Chittick and Menaged had already implemented their own workout
plan. As Mr. Beauchamp repeatedly explained to Mr. Chittick, the forbearance agreement
would, among other things, (a) clarify and set forth the facts that led to the double lien issue,
(b) clarify and set forth the scope of the issue with the borrower, (c) acknowledge Mr.
Menaged’s defaults under his loan documents with DenSco, as well as the amount and
validity of any debt owed to DenSco, (d) obtain additional written commitments from
Menaged and his entities to fund the workout Mr. Chittick and Menaged had already agreed
to; and () obtain additional security and other protections from Menaged and his entities to
protect DenSco and its investors. Mr. Beauchamp was crystal clear with Mr. Chittick all of
this would need to be disclosed to DenSco’s investors. Other protections Mr, Beauchamp
advocated for, including additional admissions of fault and fraud by Menaged to protect
DenSco in the event of a bankruptcy filing by Menaged or his entities, were eventually
stricken from the agreement at Menaged and Mr. Chittick’s insistence, and over Mr.
Beauchamp’s objections.

Mr. Beauchamp had previously drafted and negotiated countless forbearance
agreements. He reasonably anticipated that documenting DenSco’s forbearance would take
2-3 weeks. Negotiating the forbearance agreecment, however, turned out to be more difficult

than Mr. Beauchamp could have reasonably imagined. For one, Menaged and his counsel

repeatedly insisted on edits and revisions that served only to undermine DenSco’s fiduciary ()
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duty to its investors. Mr. Beauchamp repeatedly had to undo changes proffered by Menaged
or Jeff Goulder, Menaged’s attorney, and often by Mr. Chittick at Menaged’s direction, in
order to protect DenSco’s investors. For example, Menaged (and Mr. Goulder) attempted to
restrict the type of information that could be disclosed to investors, attempted to obtain
releases for Menaged related to his defaults and conduct, and refused to provide additional
security or information regarding that additional security. Mr, Beauchamp repeatedly pushed
back on these efforts and advised DenSco and Mr. Chittick, both in writing and verbally, that
they had fiduciary duties to DenSco’s investors, which included disclosure obligations. See
e.g., February 4, 2014 email from Mr, Beauchamp to Mr. Chittick (“you cannot obligate
DenSco to further help Scott, because that would breach your fiduciary duty to your
investors™); February 14, 2014 email from Mr. Beauchamp to Mr. Chittick (*[Goulder]
clearly thinks he can force you to agree to accept a watered down agreement and give up
substantial rights that you should not have to give up, Unfortunately, it is not your money.
It is your investors’ money. So you have a fiduciary duty™); March 13, 2014 email from Mr,
Beauchamp to Mr. Chittick (“we cannot give Scott and his attorney any time to cause further
delay in getting this Forbearance Agreement finished and the necessary disclosure prepared
and circulated™ ).

In addition to Menaged and his counsel’s constant revisions, the number of loans
affected by the double lien issue also kept growing. The number of loans Mr. Chittick
asserted were in issue grew from December 2013 to Janvary 2014, and then grew again from
January 2014 to February 2014. This resulted in constant changes to the revised workout
documents, as well as to Menaged and Mr. Chittick’s agreement regarding the manner in
which to fund the workout. Mr. Chittick, however, maintained, despite multiple inquiries
from Mr. Beauchamp, that he had run the calculations and projections and was confident his
plan with Menaged would work. Mr. Chittick also told Mr. Beauchamp that he had gone
over those projections with his “advisory council.” As Mr. Chittick described it to Mr.
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Beauchamp, it was a cash flow issue, not a payment issue, and that with Menaged’s
additional investments, the workout would succeed.

Nevertheless, Mr. Beauchamp at one point became concerned enough at Menaged’s
intransigence and the apparent influence he held over Mr. Chittick, that he reached out to
third parties in late January 2014 to inquire about Menaged. Those third parties informed
him that Menaged was generally someone to be distrusted and not someone to do business
with, Mr. Beauchamp attempted to persuade Mr. Chittick of this during several heated
conversations, but Mr, Chittick ignored these admonitions, explaining that while Menaged
could be sharp and off-putting, Menaged had always performed on DenSco’s loans in the
past, and bad stood by Mr. Chittick in tough times. Despite Mr. Beauchamp’s efforts, Mr.
Chittick could not be convinced to cut tics with Menaged.

F. Mr. Beauchamp terminates representation of DenSco and Mr. Chittick.

When Mr. Beauchamp agreed to represent DenSco with respect to Menaged, Mr.
Beauchamp made clear that Mr. Chittick had to immediately update DenSco’s POM and
make full disclosure to its investors regarding the double lien issues, the workout with
Menaged, and the potential implications thereof on DenSco’s finances and the investors’
investments. Mr. Chittick always acknowledged that responsibility and agreed to make the
full disclosure once the forbearance agreement was properly documented. As the
forbearance neared completion, Mr. Beauchamp and his associate, Daniel Schenk, began
drafting the updated POM in April and May 2014. Specifically, the draft 2014 POM would
have: provided a description of the forbearance agreement (including all the parties’ funding
obligations), the reason it was necessary, and its effect on DenSco’s books; updated
DenSco’s goals for intended loan-to-value ratios; updated the descriptions regarding
DenSco’s loan funding and securitizations procedures; updated the number of loan defaults

friggering foreclosures; and amended the descriptions regarding DenSco’s borrower base,

among other things. Further, Mr, Beauchamp explained that the updated POM would need (
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to be accompanied with a cover letter or other communication highlighting the major
material changes, including the double lien issue and resulting workout agreement, to ensure
that investors were fully informed. Mr. Chittick, however, refused to provide the necessary
information to complete the POM and refused to approve the description of the workout or
the double lien issue, despite his prior acknowledgement that he would need to make full
disclosure to all of his investors about DenSco (as he had been doing through POMs and
newsletters since 2003).

In May 2014, Mr. Beauchamp handed Mr. Chittick a physical copy of the draft POM
and asked him what Mr. Chittick’s specific issues were with the disclosure. Mr. Chittick
responded that there was nothing wrong with the disclosure, he was simply not ready to make
any kind of disclosures to his investors at this stage. Mr. Beauchamp again explained that
Mr. Chittick had no choice in the matter and that he had a fiduciary duty to his investors to
make these disclosures. Mr. Chittick would not budge. Faced with an intransigent client
who was now acting contrary to the advice Mr. Beauchamp was providing, and with concerns
that Mr. Chittick may not have been providing any disclosures to anyone since January 2014,
Mr. Beauchamp informed Mr. Chittick that Beauchamp and Clark Hill could not and would
not represent DenSco any longer. Mr. Beauchamp also told Chittick that he would need to
retain new securities counsel, not only to provide the proper disclosure to DenSco’s
investors, but to protect DenSco’s rights under the forbearance agreement. Mr. Chittick
suggested that he had already started that process and was speaking with someone else.

Thereafter, Mr. Beauchamp and Clark 11ill ceased providing DenSco with securities
advice. Mr. Chittick accepted that, but asked that Mr. Beaucharup clean up some small issues
with the ‘forbearance agreement before ending the relationship entirely. Other than
addressing those small forbearance agreement issues in June and July, Clark Hill stopped
working with DenSco or Mr. Chittick in any capacity until 2016, when Mr. Chittick
requested that Mr, Beauchamp assist with a very limited issue involving an audit by the
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Arizona Department of Financial Institutions - work Mr. Beauchamp had previously
performed for DenSco and that Mr. Chittick characteristically believed could be done most
cost-effectively by Mr. Beauchamp rather than by a new lawyer with no background on the
issue.

G. Menaged continues to perpetrate fraud on DenSco, which only grows in
scale.

During the.time that he represented it regarding securities matters, Mr. Beauchamp (a)
repeatedly advised DenSco that it had to make full disclosure to its investors and then
terminated his relationship as securities counsel for DenSco when DenSco refused, (b)
explained that DenSco would need to retain new counsel after Mr. Beauchamp withdrew to
provide proper disclosures and monitor the forbearance, and (c) repeatedly reminded Mr.
Chittick that he needed to fund loans directly to a trustee or escrow company, rather than to
the borrower. Mr. Chittick ignored Mr. Beauchamp’s advice. It is ugclear if DenSco evelg
engaged or even talked to new counsel. It appears Mr. Chittick never issued an updated POM,
a fact which could not have gone unnoticed by DenSco’s sophisticated investors, who had
gotten used to regular updates from DenSco, not only through updated POMs, but through
monthly newsletters and periodic investor meetings. It is quite clear that Mr. Chittick
continued to loan funds directly to Menaged in direct contravention of Mr. Beauchamp’s
repeated advice.

Nevertheless, the brazen scope of Menaged’s efforts to defraud DenSco was not
foreseeable. After several years of bilking DenSco and others out of millions of dollars,
Menaged was eventually arrested. The United States Department of Justice first charged
Menaged with defranding various banks through his purported furniture stores. Menaged used
fabricated receipts of purchases made at the furniture store to obtain credit ﬁ'on::ba.nks using
the names of, and personal identification information of, individuals who had recently died.

He would then incur millions of dollars in fraudulent charges on those fakc
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accounts. Incredibly, Menaged acknowledged in his plea agreement that he had perpetrated
the bank fraud in order to get cash to continue defrauding DenSco.

The Department of Justice then also charged Menaged with money laundering with
respect to the DenSco fraud. In his plea agreement, Menaged admitted that from January 2014
through June 2016, he embezzled millions of dollars without purchasing properties with the
loans obtained from Densco. He explained that Densco would wire money to purchase
properties directly to Menaged who, in turn, would send Densco “an image of a bank cashier’s
check and a copy of a Trustee Certificate of Sale Receipt.” No sales, however, actually took
place. Menaged would simply redeposit the cashier’s check into his account and create bogns
receipts for the purchase of the property. Between January 2013 and June 2016, Menaged
admitted he obtained 2,172 loans from DenSco totaling approximately $734,484,440.67. Yet,
of the 2,712 loans made by DenSco, only 96 involved actual property transactions. Menaged
supposedly used the remaining 2,616 loans for personal expenses, gambling trips, and fransfers
to his family members and associates. Menaged would also utilize new loans from DenSco to
pay back outstanding DenSco loans to conceal the embezzlement. Menaged was sentenced to
17 years in jail. As First Assistant U.S. Attorney Elizabeth Strange stated, the “lengthy
sentence is a fitting punishment for his egregious crimes.”

Menaged shamelessly duped Mr. Chittick. Documents and recordings suggest that
Menaged never invested any money into the workout plan. He never obtained any money from
Israel despite purportedly making numerous trips to the country for that very purpose, blatantly
lied that funds that could have been used to fund the workout were tied up in his divorce
proceedings, and ultimately invented a non-existent investment scheme involving
“auction.com” which Menaged falsely claimed was retaining most of DenSco’s money (to go
along with his fabrication of the fraudulent cousin and terminally {ll wife). Sadly, Mr. Chittick
bought into all of Menaged’s lies until his last days.

Discovery is continuing. Defendants may supplement.
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II. LEGAL THEORIES OF CLAIMS AND DEFENSES,
A. Plaintiff’s claims

Legal Malpractice

Receiver asserts that Defendants, in fheir representation of DenSco, committed
malpractice and breached fiduciary duties owed to DenSco. Legal malpractice requires proof
of the existence of a duty, breach of duty, that defendant’s breach was the actual and proximate
cause of damages, and the “nature and extent” of those damages. Glaze v. Larsen, 207 Ariz.
26,29 9 12 83 P.3d 26, 29 (Ariz. 2004) (citations and quotations omitted).

Receiver cannot prove breach of duty, actual and proximate cause, or resulting damages.
To prove breach of duty, Receiver will need to demonstrate that Defendants deviated from the
professional standard of care. Phillips v. Clancy, 152 Ariz. 415, 418, 733 P.2d 300, 303 (App.
1986). Defendants’ advice and conduct in representing DenSco and, in doing so, representin{
M. Chittick as president of DenSco, was consistent with Defendants’ practice and experience,
and consistent with the standard of care. Thus, Defendants did not breach their duties to
DenSco. Receiver will also need to prove that if Defendants had not purportedly breached the
standard of care, that DenSco would not have suffered injury. Id. Whatever harm befell
DenSco was not an actual or foreseeable result of the advice provided by Defendants. Thus,

Receiver’s malpractice claim fails.

Aiding and Abetting Breach of Fiduciary Duties

Receiver asserts that Defendants aided and abetted Mr. Chittick in breaching his
fiduciary duties to DenSco. Claims of aiding and abetting require proof that: (1) the primary
tortfeasor must commit a tort that cansed injury to the plaintiff; (2) the defendant must know
that the primary tortfeasor’s conduct constitutes a breach of duty; (3) the defendant must
substantially assist or encourage the primary tortfeasor in the achievement of that breach an

(4) there must be a causal relationship between the defendant’s assistance or encouragemen
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and the primary tortfeasor’s commission of the tort. Wells Fargo Bank v. Az. Laborers,
Teamsters and Cement Masons Local No. 395 Pension Trust Fund, 201 Ariz. 474, 485 (Ariz.
2002); Sec. Title Agency, Inc. v. Pope, 219 Ariz. 480, 491 (App. 2008). Importantly, “[blecause
aiding and abetting is a theory of secondary liability, the party charged with the tort must have
knowledge of the primary violation.” Wells Fargo, 201 Ariz. at 485,

It is unclear from the Complaint what actions the Receiver asserts constitute a breach
of Mr. Chittick’s fiduciary duties to DenSco. In any event, as set forth above, Defendants’
advice and conduct in representing DenSco were consistent with the applicable standard of
care. Defendants did not “substantially assist or encourage” Mr. Chittick in breaching his
duties to DenSco, Defendants did not have knowledge of Mr. Chittick’s purported “primary
violation,” nor is there a causal relationship between Defendants’ representation of DenSco
and Mr. Chittick’s purported tortious conduct with respect to DenSco, Further, as set forth
above, whatever harm befell DenSco was not an actual or foreseceable result of Defendants’
actions or inactions.

B.  Affirmative Defenses
Statute of Limitations

Both the legal malpractice claim and the aiding and abetting claim have a two-year
statute of limitations. See AR.S. §12-542(1) (An action “[f]or injuries done to the person of
another” shall be commenced and prosecuted within two years after the cause of action accrues,
and not afterward”). Receiver, who stands in the shoes of DenSco, did not file the Complaint
in this action until October 16, 2017, which was well outside the statute of limitations. DenSco,
and potentially the Investors, could have discovered at least as of Summer 2014, that DenSco’s
loans to Menaged (or his entities) and DenSco’s lending practices with respect to Menaged,
could give rise to potential causes of action against Mr. Chittick or his agents. Consequently,
because the statute of limitations ran, at the latest, in the Summer of 2016, the Complaint is
barred in its entirety.

[00365289.1 } 19
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In pari delicto and unclean hands
Arizona law recognizes the doctrine of in pari delicto. Brand v. Elledge, 89 Ariz. 200,
205, 360 P.2d 213, 217 (1961) (quoting Furman v. Furman, 34 N.Y.S.2d 699, 704 (N.Y. Sup.
Ct. 1941), aff'd, 40 N.E.2d 643 (N.Y]. 1942)). In pari delicto is an affirmative defense by which
ages if his losses are substantially caused by activities
Stewart v. Wilmington Trust SP Servs., Inc., 112 A.3d 271,
1115 (Del. 2015) (quotation omitted). The defense may

a party is barred from recovering
the law forbade him to engage in.”
301-02 (Del. Ch.), aff’d, 126 A.3d;

be raised against a receiver, Id, (“no cogent reason for sparing the innocent Receiver the effect

of in pari delicto while equally inn

ocent stockholders or policyholders would be barred from

relief in the derivative context™); Knauer v. Jonathon Roberts Fin. Grp., Inc., 348 F.3d 230,

236 (7th Cir. 2003) (affirming dis

missal of the receiver’s claims against the broker dealers,

concluding that they were barred by the defense of in pari delicto).

Here, to the extent there arg

> claims against the Defendants, DenSco, into whose shoes

the Receivers steps, bears fault fof damages about which it complains. Thus, the Receiver’s
claims are barred by doctrine of Z‘pari delicto and, to the extent it specifically seeks equitable
relief, by the related doctrine of unclean hands.

Laches

A claim is barred by laches|when the delay in bringing the claim is “unreasonable under

the circumstances” given “the party’s knowledge of his or her right” and “any change in
circumstances caused by the delay has resulted in prejudice to the other party sufficient to
justify denial of relief.” Mathiey v. Mahoney, 174 Ariz. 456, 459, 851 P.2d 81, 84 (1993).
Receiver seeks to recover poten?'ally millions of dollars i alleged damages resulting from |
loans Mr. Chittick made to Menaged. DenSco would have been aware of the harms that could
befall DenSco and its investors as a result of DenSco’s loans to, and lending practices with

Menaged, by Summer 2014 at the latest. DenSco’s inaction for several years, up through th

20
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death of M. Chittick, to seek relief against any potential third party for harms suffered by

DenSco was unreasonable in light of DenSco’s knowledge. Because the Receiver steps into

DenSco’s shoes, the claims are barred.

Setoff

Clark Hill filed a proof of claim in the DenSco Receivership for unpaid fees incurred

by Clark Hill on behalf of DenSco after Mr. Chittick’s death. The Receiver improperly denied

the claim on the basis of an alleged conflict of interest. To the extent Defendants are found to

owe Plaintiff anything, that debt must be reduced any sums Plaintiff owes Clark Hill.
Additional defenses:

[ J

003652891}

Third parties, including Mr. Chittick and Menaged, over whom Defendants
have no authority or control, are at fault for any damages suffered.

Densco, in to whose shoes the Receiver steps, is at fault for any damages
suffered.

Densco, in to whose shoes the Receiver steps, assumed the risk of any actions
taken or not taken by DenSco or Mr. Chittick. Hildebrand v. Minyvard, 16 Ariz.
App. 583, 585, 494 P.2d 1328, 1330 (1972) (“A plaintiff who by contract or
otherwise expressly agrees to accept a risk of harm arising from the defendant’s
negligent or reckless conduct cannot recover for such harm . . . .”) (quoting
Restatement (Second) of Torts § 496(B) (1965)).

Receiver canrot demonstrate proximate cause or loss causation because
Defendants are not the actual or proximate cause of any damages suffered.

Any damages suffered were the result of intervening or superseding events or
causes over which the Defendants had no control and were not legally
responsible.

Receiver’s claims are barred by doctrines of waiver and estoppel.
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Discovery is continuing. Defendants may supplement.

III. WITNESSES.
Because no discovery has taken place, Defendants have not yet identified all persons it
may call as witnesses at trial, but reserves the right to call any of the following persons to

testify as a witness at trial:

1. David Beauchamp

¢/o Coppersmith Brockelman, PLC
2800N. Central Avenue, Suite 1900
Phoenix, Arizona §5004

Mr, Beauchamp is expected to testify regarding the allegations in the Complaint and
his representation of DenSco and of Mr. Chittick in his capacity as president of DenSco.

2. Peter Davis, Receiver of DenSco Investment Corporation
c/o Osborn Maledon, P.A.
2929 N. Central Avenue, Suite 2100
Phoenix, Arizona 85012

M. Davis is expected to testify regarding the allegations in the Complaint; the
Receiver’s evaluations, analyses, and determinations regarding all aspects of DenSco’s
finances, including, but not limited to, DenSco’s loans, lending practices, record keeping,
financial transactions, and solvency; the Receiver’s maintenanée of any DenSco or Chittick
records or property, including, but not Iimited to, electronic records, websites, and email
communications; the Receiver’s communications with third parties related to DenSco,
including communications with financial institutions, investors, and accountants and other
;;rofessiﬁnals; the Receiver’s determinations regarding the Receiver’s evaluation and analysis
regarding the potential fault, liability, or culpability of any third parly with respect to any
losses suffered by DenSco, including, but not limited, to Chase Bank, U.S. Bank, Yomtov
Menaged, Active Funding Group, LLC, and/or Gregg Seth Reichman. C
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3. Any witnesses disclosed by other parties.

4, Any witnesses that become known through discovery.

5. Custodian or other foundational witnesses necessary to admit exhibits.

Discovery is continuing. Defendants may supplement.
IV. ADDITIONAIL PERSONS WHO MAY HAVE RELEVANT INFORMATION.

1. Yomtov “Scott” Menaged

Scott Menaged is expected to have knowledge regarding all aspects of any personal,
financial, or business dealings he may have had with DenSco and Mr. Chittick; all aspects of
the fraud(s) he perpetrated on DenSco and Mr. Chittick, either directly, or through one of his
entities, including, but not limited to, Easy Investments, LLC, Arizona Home Foreclosures,
LLC, Furniture King, LLC, and Scott’s Fine Furniture; all aspects of actions or conduct
related to his criminal indictment, plea bargain, or sentencing in the United States District
Court for the District of Arizona; his communications with DenSco and Mr. Chittick; and his

communications with Mr. Beanchamp.

2. PMK Easy Investments, LLC
10510 East Sunnyside Drive

Scottsdale, AZ 85259

See Description for Scott Menaged.

3. PMK Arizona Home Foreclosures, LLC
7320 West Bell Road
Glendale, AZ 85308

See Description for Scott Menaged.
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4. PMK Furniture King, LLC

3200 North Central Avenue
Suite 2460
Phoenix, AZ 85012

See Description for Scott Menaged.
5. PMK Scott’s Fine Furniture

See Description for Scott Menaged.

6. Veronica Castro aka Veronica Gutierrez Reyes

c/o Thomas W. Warshaw Attorney at Law
33147 North 71t Wa
Scottsdale, AZ 8526

Ms. Castro is expected to have knowledge regarding Menaged’s personal, financial, or
business dealings with DenSco and Mr. Chittick; the fraud(s) Menaged perpetrated on
DenSco and Mr. Chittick, either directly, or through one of Menaged’s entities; Menaged’s
communications with DenSco and Mr. Chittick; Menaged’s communications with Mr.
Beauchamp; the actions or conduct related to Menaged’s criminal indictment, plea bargain,
or sentencing in the United States District Court for the District of Arizona; and Ms. Castro’s
communications with DenSco and Mr. Chittick.

7. Luigi Amoroso

Mr. Amoroso is expected to have knowledge regarding Menaged’s personal, financial,
or business dealings with DenSco and Mr. Chittick; the frand(s) Menaged perpetrated on
DenSco and Mr. Chittick, either directly, or through one of Menaged’s entities; Menaged’s
communications with DenSco and Chittick; Menaged’s communications with Mr.
Beauchamp; the actions or conduct related to Menaged’s criminal indictment, plea bargain,
or sentencing in the United States District Court for the District of Arizona; and Mr.

Amoroso’s communications with DenSco and Mr. Chittick. C
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8. Alberto Pena

¢/o Law Office of Cameron A. Morgan
4356 North Civic Center Plaza

Suite 101

Scottsdale, AZ 85251

Mr. Pena may have knowledge regarding Menaged’s personal, financial, or business
dealings with DenSco and Chittick; the fraud(s) Menaged perpetrated on DenSco and
Chittick, either directly, or through one of Menaged’s entities; Menaged’s communications
with DenSco and Mr. Chittick; and the actions or conduct related to Mr, Pena’s and
Menaged’s criminal indictment, plea bargain, or sentencing in the United States District
Court for the District of Arizona.

9. Troy Flippo
c/o Storrs Law Firm PLLC

1421 East Thomas Road
Phoenix, AZ 85014
Mr. Flippo may have knowledge regarding Menaged’s personal, financial, or business
dealings with DenSco and Mr. Chittick; the fraud(s) Menaged perpetrated on DenSco and
Mzr. Chittick, either directly, or through one of Menaged’s entities; Menaged’s
communications with DenSco and Chittick; and the actions or conduct related to Flippo’s and

Menaged’s criminal indictment, plea bargain, or sentencing in the United States District
Court for the District of Arizona.

10. Menaged family members, including, Joseph Menaged, Michelle Menaged,
J ennjiger Bonfiglio, Joy Menaged, Jess Menaged

Menaged’s family may have knowledge regarding Menaged’s personal, financial, or
business dealings with DenSco and Chittick; the fraud(s) Menaged perpetrated on DenSco '
and Chittick, either directly, or through one of Menaged’s or his Family’s entities; the use of
funds obtained from DenSco; Menaged’s communications with DenSco and Chittick; and the
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actions or conduct related to Menaged’s criminal indictment, plea bargain, or sentencing in
the United States District Coutrt for the District of Arizona.
11.  Shawna Heuer
c/o Bonnett Fairbourn, PC
2325 E. Camelback Road
Phoenix, Arizona 85016

Ms. Heuer is expected to have knowledge regarding Mr. Beauchamp’s work on behalf

of DenSco after Mr. Chittick’s death and her communications with Mr. Beauchamp. Ms.
Heuer may also have knowledge regarding Mr. Chittick and DenSco’s business, and Mr.

Chittick’s communications with Mr. Beauchamp, Menaged, or DenSco’s investors.

12, Jeff Goulder
Stinson Leonard Street
1850 North Central Avenue, Suite 2100
Phoenix, Arizona 85004

Mr. Goulder is expected to have knowledge regarding the negotiations of the
Forbearance Agreement. Mr. Goulder also may have knowledge regarding Menaged’s
businesses, business practices, and finances. Mr. Goulder also may have knowledge

regarding Menaged’s communications with Mr. Beauchamp.

13. David Preston

¢/o Gammage & Burnham
2 N. Central Avenue, Suite 15
Phoenix, Arizona 85004

M. Preston is expected to have knowledge regarding DenSco and Mr. Chittick’s
finances and tax returns. Mr, Preston is also expected to have knowledge regarding Mr.

Chittick’s retirement plan.
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14. DenSco Investors
The Investors are expected to have knowledge regarding Mr. Chittick’s
communications to the Investors and their knowledge of DenSco’s business, the status of
their investments, and the status of DenSco’s loans at all relevant times.
15.  PMK Chase Bank
3800 North Central Avenue
Suite 460
Phoenix, AZ 85012
Chase Bank is expected to have knowledge regarding Menaged’s banking practices,
including Menaged’s use of Chase Bank to perpetrate his fraud on DenSco and Chittick.
16. PMK US Bank
3800 North Central Avenue
Suite 460
Phoenix, AZ 85012

US Bank is expected to have knowledge regarding Menaged’s banking practices,
including Menaged’s use of Chase Bank to perpetrate his fraud on DenSco and Chittick.

17.  Gregg Seth Reichman/Active Funding Group
Attention: Andrew Abraham
702 East Osborn Road
Suite 200
Phoenix, AZ 85014

Mr. Reichman may have knowledge regarding Menaged’s businesses, business
practices, and finances; the fraud(s) Menaged perpetrated on DenSco and Mr. Chittick, either
directly, or through one of Menaged’s entities; and Mr. Reichman or his entities’ (including

Active Funding Group) participation in any of those frandulent schemes (as suggested by the
Receiver’s Petition No. 45).
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18.  Daniel Schenk
clo Cﬁ{;persmith Brockelman, PLC
2801N. Central Avenue, Suite 1900
Phoenix, Arizona 85004
Mr. Schenk is expected to have knowledge regarding any work he performed on
behalf of DenSco and Mr. Chittick in his capacity as president of DenSco. Mr. Schenk may
also have knowledge of Menaged’s communications with Beauchamp, Menaged
commumications with Mr. Chittick, and Mr. Beauchamp’s communications with Mr. Chittick.
19.  Robert Anderson
¢/o Coppersmith Brockelman, PLC
2802N. Central Avenue, Suite 1900
Phoenix, Arizona §5004
Mr. Anderson is expected to have knowledge regarding any work he performed on
behalf of DenSco and Mr. Chittick in his capacity as president of DenSco. ﬂ

V.. PERSONS WHO HAVE GIVEN STATEMENTS.
None at this time. Discovery is continuing. Defendants may supplement.

VI. EXPERT WITNESSES.
Defendants will identify expert witnesses in accordance with the schedule ordered by
the Court.

VII. COMPUTATION AND MEASURE OF DAMAGES.,

Plaintiff is not entitled to recover damages against Defendants.

Discovery is continning, Defendants may supplement.
VII. EXHIBITS. ]

Defendants have not yet identified which of the documents Iisted‘i_n :S::c‘don IX below
will be used at trial, and therefore expressly reserve the right to introduce any of the listed

documents as exhibits at trial. Defendants may also use any documents identified in any otherg
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party’s disclosure statement or otherwise disclosed in this matter. By reserving the right to
introduce any of the listed documents as exhibits at trial, Defendants do not waive their right
to object to the introduction of any of these documents at the time of trial. Defendants will
supplement this initial disclosure statement in accordance with Arizona Rules of Civil
Procedure 26.1(b)(2).

Discovery is continuing. Defendants may supplement,
IX. LIST OF RELEVANT DOCUMENTS.

Defendants have not yet identified any additional relevant documents. The
following documents, or categories of documents, may be relevant or lead to discovery of
admissible evidence in this action and have already been exchanged or are being produced
herewith:

1. Documents previously produced by Clark Hill bates labeled CH_0000001-

13330.

2. Additional documents produced herewith by Clark Hill bates labeled

CH_0013331-13374,

3. Documents previously produced by Plaintiff including bates labeled

DIC000001-25330, 28634-53950 and Quickbooks backup.

4, Documents previously produced by Plaintiff including bates labeled D126751-

128731 and 130972-133111.

5. Documents previously produced by Bryan Cave in response to Subpoena Duces

Tecum bates labeled BC000001-3188.

6. Documents produced herewith by Dave Preston in response to Subpoena Duces

Tecum bates labeled DP000001-601.

7. Any and all documents in CR-17-00680, United States of America v. Yomtov

Scott Menaged, et al.

8. All documents produced by any party or third party in this litigation.
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10.
11.

12,

13.

15.

16.

Defendants reserves the right to supplement the list of documents that may be relevant
as information becomes available.
X.  INSURANCE AGREEMENTS.

Defendants produce the insurance policies in effect during the relevant time period
and the November 10, 2017 correspondence from Mendes & Mount, LLP, all of which are
stamped “Confidential Materials.”

[o0365289.1 )

14.

All pleadings, filings, minute entries, orders and judgments.

All deposition or hearing transcripts in the above captioned litigation.

All transcripts from any Section 341 creditor meetings, Rule 2004 examinations,
depositions, or hearings in Yomtov Menaged’s bankruptcy pending in the United
States Bankruptcy Court for the District of Arizona at 2:16-bk-04268.
Additional documents produced by Clark Hill bates labeled
CH_000013387-13616.

Documents produced by Sell Wholesale Funding in response to Subpoena
Duces Tecum bates labeled SELL000001-766.

Documents produced by Azben Limited, LLC in response to Subpoena
Duces Tecum bates labeled AZBEN000001-5248,

Documents produced by Geared Equity in response to Subpoena Duces
Tecum bates labeled GE000001-257. (
Documents produced by Active Funding in response to Subpoena Duces

Tecum bates labeled AF000001-2448.
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DATED this 13* day of June, 2018.

ORIGINAL mailed and emailed this
13" day of June, 2018 to:

Colin F. Campbell, Esq.
Geoffrey M. T. Sturr, Esq.
Joshua M. Whitaker, Esq.
OSBORN MALEDON, P A,

2929 N. Central Ave., Suite 2100
Phoenix, AZ 85012-2793
Attorreys for Plaintiff

Mpens Gl
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Johh E. DeWulf

Marvin C. Ruth

Vidula U, Patki

2800 North Central Avenue, Suite 1900
Phoenix, Arizona 85004

Attorneys for Defendants
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VERIFICATION Q

STATE OF MICHIGAN )
) ss.

COUNTY OF Wg yie )

Edward J. IJood, being first duly sworn upon his oath, deposes and says:

I, Edward J. Hood, am General Counsel of Clark Hill PLC, a Delendant in the matter Pefer
S. Davis, as Receiver for DenSco mvestinent Corp. v. Clark Hill PLC; David G. Beauchamp and
Jane Doe Beauchamp, Maricopa County Superior Court Case No. CV2017-013832. 1 am
authorized to make this Veriﬁcation on its behalf. T have read the foregoing Defendant’s Third
Supplemental Rule 26.1 Disclosure Statement and know ils contents. The maiters stated in the
foregoing Third Supplemental Rule 26.1 Disclosure Statement are true and correct to the best of
my knowledge except as to thosc matters that are stated upon information and belief, and asQ
those matters, [ believe them to be true.

1 declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of Michigan that the
foregoing is true and correct.

DATED this 0 day of July, 2018.

I/

EdwardJ, Hood ' F

{opateris.y }




10
11
12
13

14

16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26

27

VERIFICATION

STATE OF ARIZONA )

) ss.
COUNTY OF Maricopa )

David G. Beauchamp, being first duly sworn upon his oath, deposcs and says:

I, David G. Beauchamp, am a Dcfendant in the matter Pefer S. Davis, as Receiver
Jor DenSco Investment Corp. v. Clark Hill PLC; David G. Beauchamp and Jane Doe
Beauchamp, Maricopa County Superior Court Case No. CV2017-013832. 1 havc rcad the
foregoing Defendants” Third Supplemental Rule 26.1 Disclosure Statement and know its

contents. The matters stated in the forcgoing Third Supplemental Rule 26.1 Disclosure

Statement arc true and correct to the best of my knowledge except as to those matters that
are stated upon information and belief, and as to those matters, I believe them to be true.

I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of Arizona that the

foregoing is true and correct.

DATED this l?w?ay of July, 2018.

r)mﬂé’&uﬂ

David G. Beauchamp
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Marvin C. Ruth g024220
Vidula U. Patki (030742
COPPERSMITH BROCKELMAN PL.C
2800 North Central Avenue, Suite 1900
Phoenix, Arizona 85004

T: (602) 224-0999

F: (602) 224-0620
jdewulf@cblawyers.com
mruth@cblawyers.com
vpatki@cblawyers.com

Attorneys for Defendants

SUPERIOR COURT OF ARIZONA

COUNTY OF MARICOPA
Peter S. Davis, as Receiver of DenSco No. CV2017-013832
Investment Corporation, an Arizona
corporation,
DEFENDANTS’ FOURTH
Plaintiff, SUPPLEMENTAL RULE 26.1
DISCLOSURE STATEMENT
V.

Clark Hill PLC, a Michigan limited liability
company; David G. Beauchamp and Jane
Doe Beauchamp, husband and wife,

Defendants.
Defendants Clark Hill PL.C, David G. Beauchamp and Jane Doe Beauchamp

(collectively, “Defendants”) supplement their initial disclosure statement according to
Arizona Rule of Civil Procedure 26.1. Defendants reserve the right to amend or supplement
this disclosure statement as discovery progresses. Supplements are in bold.

This case is in its infancy and thus the content of this disclosure statement is
preliminary and subject to supplementation, amendment, explanation, change and
amplification. Because the parties have just commenced discovery, there may be
information, documents, and materials related to the various allegations and defenses set forth

in the pleadings of which Defendants are presently unaware. Defendants note that they do
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not currently have access to all potentially relevant documents of the Plaintiff, or third parties,
and that this disclosure statement is based upon information currently available to
Defendants. Nothing in this disclosure statement is intended to be an admission of fact, an
affirmation of the existence of any document, or an agreement with or an acceptance of any
legal theory or allegation. The information set forth below is provided without waiving (1)
the right to object to the use of such information for any purpose in this or any other action
due to applicable privilege (including the work-product and attorney-client privileges),
materiality, or any other appropriate grounds; (2) the right to object to any request involving
or relating to the subject matter of the information in this disclosure statement; or (3) the right
to revise, correct, supplement or clarify any of the information provided below. If any part
of this statement is ever read to the jury, fairness would require that the jury be read this
introductory statement and any supplementation, amendments, explanation, changes or
amplifications which may occur or be filed subsequent to this disclosure statement.

Defendants also incorporate by reference into this disclosure statement all
interrogatory answers, responses to requests for production, responses to requests for
admission, other discovery and disclosure statements and supplements thereto in this action,
and all transcripts of any deposition taken in this action and any exhibits thereto,
L FACTUAL BASIS OF CLAIMS AND DEFENSES.

A.  Retention/Scope of Work

For more than 35 years, since graduating with honors from the University of Michigan
Law School in 1981, David Beauchamp has represented his clients in the areas of corporate
law, securities, venture capital, and private equity with distinction and integrity.

One of those clients was DenSco Investment Corporation (“DenSco”), a company
solely owned and managed by Denny Chittick. DenSco raised money from investors by

issuing general obligation notes to those investors at interest rates that varied depending on

the note’s maturity date. DenSco then invested those funds primarily by making high interest (
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short-term loans to borrowers buying residential properties out of foreclosure, which loans
were intended fo be secured by deeds of trusts on those properties. Mr, Beauchamp started
providing securities advice to DenSco in the early 2000s, while he was a partner at the law
firm Gammage & Burnham. DenSco followed Mr. Beauchamp as a client when he left
Gammage to join the law firm Bryan Cave in March 2008, and again when Mr, Beauchamp
left Bryan Cave to join Clark Hill in September 2013.

Although the various firms’ engagement letters with DenSco only specifically
identified DenSco as the client, DenSco could not operate or engage with legal counsel
except through its president and sole owner, Mr. Chittick, DenSco had no other employees;
Mr. Chittick was responsible for all aspects of DenSco’s business, and Mr. Chittick
understood that Mr. Beauchamp, as an incident to Mr. Beauchamp’s representation of
DenSco, was also representing Mr. Chittick in his capacity as president of DenSco. The
investors understood that as well. The private offering memoranda DenSco provided state
that “legal counsel to the Company will represent the interests solely of the Company and its
President, and will not represent the interests of any investor,”

Shortly after Mr. Chittick’s death, and in the midst of a chaotic time dealing with the
fallout of his passing, Mr. Beauchamp stated in an August 10, 2016 letter to an Arizona
Corporation Commission subpoena to Mr. Chittick that he had “not previously represented
Denny Chittick” and that the ACC would need to request the personal information it sought,
including Mr. Chittick’s personal tax returns, from counsel for Mr. Chittick’s estate. To the
extent that Mr. Beauchamp’s statement was not clear or that any clarification was necessary,
Mr. Beauchamp averred in an August 17, 2016 declaration under oath that he represented
DenSco and “Mr. Chittick as the President of DenSco.” Mr. Beauchamp did not represent
M. Chittick outside of his role as a corporate officer at DenSco.

Until mid- 2013, Mr. Beauchamp’s work as DenSco’s securities counsel included,

among other things, drafting DenSco’s Private Offering Memoranda and related investor
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documents; advising DenSco regarding Blue Sky laws and state and federal securities
reporting and filing requirements; advising DenSco as to the rules and regulations
promulgated by state financial and lending authorities; and advising DenSco regarding the
applicability of mortgage broker regulations. At times, it would also involve answering
DenSco’s questions regarding its Reg D filings and obligations. Although Mr. Beauchamp
helped DenSco file its first set of Reg D documents in 2003, Mr. Chittick told Mr.
Beauchamp thereafter that he did not want to pay a lawyer to review and file the Reg D
documents, and that Mr. Chittick would take on that responsibility himself. That was nota
surprising request, as Mr. Chittick repeatedly instructed Mr. Beauchamp to keep legal fees
to a minimum. Consequently, although Mr. Beauchamp’s paralegal initially helped Mr.
Chittick understand the filing process and obtain access to the EDGAR filing site, in
accordance with his client’s wishes Mr. Beauchamp did not review DenSco’s Reg D filings.

The scope of Mr. Beauchamp’s representation of DenSco and its president was
narrow. Further, the relationship was friendly, but professional. Mr. Beauchamp did not go
to dinner or vacation with Mr. Chittick or his family. They did not play golf or otherwise
socialize together,

Over the years, Mr, Chittick showed himself to be a trustworthy and savvy
businessman, and a good client. He was devoted to his business and investors, many of
whom were friends and family. Despite often complaining about the cost of legal services,
Mr. Chittick appeared to follow Mr. Beauchamp’s advice and provided information when
asked for it. Further, Mr. Beauchamp understood that DenSco utilized an outside accountant,
David Preston, to review DenSco’s books and records and file its tax returns. At no point
did Mr. Beauchamp serve as DenSco’s general corporate counsel, nor was Mr. Beauchamp

engaged to review or approve DenSco financial statements or tax returns or to investigate

borrowers,
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B. The Private Offering Memoranda

Mr. Beauchamp advised DenSco regarding its Private Offering Memoranda
(“POMs"™), which DenSco generally updated every two years. He helped draft the 2003,
2005, 2007, 2009, and 2011 POMs. The POMs, however, had similar provisions and
generally described DenSco’s historical performance based on information provided by Mr.
Chittick; set forth Mr, Chittick’s authority to determine DenSco’s “major business decisions
and policies”, and to make, amend, or deviate from those policies in Mr. Chittick’s sole
discretion; and set forth DenSco’s aspirational lending standards (including its intent to
“maintain a loan-to-value ratio below 70%” for both individual trust deeds DenSco
purchased and the aggregate loan portfolio, as well as its intent to “achieve a diverse
borrower base” with no borrower comprising more than 10-15% of the portfolio).

In early summer 2013, Mr. Beauchamp advised DenSco that it needed to update its
2011 POM given the passage of time and changes in the scope of DenSco’s fund raising. In
particular, based on Mr. Chittick’s representations to Mr. Beauchamp, DenSco either had or
would soon eclipse the $50 million maximum offering set forth in the 2011 POM.
Consequently, Mr, Beauchamp began drafting revisions to the 2011 POM, which included
updates to the maximum offering and updates on DenSco’s performance to date, among other
revisions. Mr. Beauchamp, however, was never able to finalize the 2013 POM. Although
Mr. Beauchamp asked for updated investment, loan and financial information regarding
DenSco, Mr. Chittick stalled on providing the information, preferring to wait until after he
scaled down the amount outstanding to investors. Mr. Beauchamp repeatedly advised
DenSco that an update was necessary irrespective of DenSco’s plans regarding the
outstanding amount of its offerings, but Mr. Chittick continued to delay.

C. The FREO Lawsuit

On May 24, 2013, Easy Investments, an entity owned by Yomtov “Scott” Menaged
(“Menaged™), DenSco, and Ocwen Loan Servicing, were sued by FREO Arizona, LLC

(003747204 ) 5
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(“FREQ”) regarding liens recorded by Easy Investments in favor of DenSco and Active
Funding Corporation, on a parcel of property. In a June 14, 2013 email from M. Chittick to
Mr. Beauchamp, Mr. Chittick explained that Easy Investments had purchased a property at
a trustee’s sale using a DenSco loan, which had apparently been previously purchased by
FREQ, leading to a dispute, A review of the partial Complaint provided to Mr. Beauchamp
confirms Mr. Chittick’s description. According to its allegations, the loan servicer, Ocwen,
failed to cancel a trustee’s sale and release the deed of trust after FREO had paid off the debt
and acquired the property, thereby allowing Easy Investments to purchase the property again
with DenSco’s funds. Contrary to the allegations in the Receiver’s Complaint, the FREO
lawsuit did not concern lien priority or double lien issues. Moreover, a review of the docket
reveals that Easy Investments prevailed in the FREO lawsuit when the Court granted
summary judgment in favor of Easy Investments and against both FREO and Ocwen (for
breach of its duties) on December 6, 2013.

Further, although Mr. Chittick forwarded a portion of the Complaint to Mr.
Beauchamp, Mr. Chittick did not ask Mr. Beauchamp to represent DenSco in the litigation;
nor did he ask Mr. Beauchamp to investigate the factual allegations in the Complaint. To
the contrary, he expressly stated that he merely wanted Mr. Beauchamp to “be aware” of the
lawsuit. Consequently, although Mr. Beauchamp ran the matter through Bryan Cave’s
conflict system pursuant to standard firm procedure, Mr. Beauchamp did not represent
DenSco in the litigation and did not conduct any further investigation into its merits given
his client’s instruction not to get involved.

Mr. Beauchamyp did, however, explain to Mr. Chittick that this lawsuit would need to
be disclosed in DenSco’s 2013 POM. In addition, Mr. Beauchamp advised Mr. Chittick, as
he had done previously, that Mr. Chittick needed to fund DenSco’s loans directly to the
trustee or escrow company conducting the sale, rather than provide loan funds directly to the
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explained to Mr. Beauchamp that this was an isolated incident with a borrower, Menaged,
whom Mr. Chittick described in his email as someone he had “done a ton of business

with...hundreds of loans for several years....”

D. M gleauchamp leaves Bryan Cave, hears nothing from Mr. Chittick for
months,

Mr. Beauchamp left Bryan Cave at the end of August 2013. Prior to his departure,
Mr. Beauchamp had repeatedly made clear to DenSco and Mr. Chittick that they needed to
update DenSco’s POM. On August 30, 2013, Mr. Beauchamp and Bryan Cave sent Mr,
Beauchamp’s clients, including DenSco, a joint separation letter informing them that Mr.
Beauchamp was joining Clark Hill effective as of September 1, 2013. The letter invited
those clients to either request the transition of their files to Mr. Beauchamp or affirmatively
request that the files remain at Bryan Cave. Mr. Chittick initially agreed to transfer a portion
of DenSco’s files to Clark Hill, but aside from DenSco’s authorization letter, Mr. Beauchamp
never heard from Mr, Chittick regarding the unfinished 2013 POM, or any other matter, until
December 2013.

E. DenSco contacts Mr. Beauchamp in late 2013, slowly reveals scope of
Menaged issues over several months

In December 2013, Mr. Chittick contacted Mr. Beauchamp for the first time in
months. He told Mr. Beauchamp over the phone that he had run into an issue with some of
his loans to Menaged, and specifically, that properties securing a few DenSco loans were
each subject to a second deed of trust competing for priority with DenSco’s deed of trust.
Mr. Beauchamp reminded Mr. Chittick that he still needed to update DenSco’s private
offering memorandum. After briefly discussing the allegedly limited double lien issue, Mr.

‘ [Chittick emphasized to Mr. Beanchamp that Mr. Chittick wanted to avoid litigation with

other lenders. Mir. Chittick, however, did not request any advice or help. Accordingly, Mr.
Beauchamp suggested that Mr. Chittick develop and document a plan to resolve the double

liens, and nothing more came of the conversation.
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Mr. Chittick vastly understated the scope of the problem. On January 6, 2014,
Attorney Bob Miller at Bryan Cave sent Mr. Chittick a letter on behalf of various lenders
(the “Miller Lenders™). The letter asserted that the Miller Lenders had advanced purchase
money loans directly to trustees to buy more than 50 properties out of foreclosure, and had
recorded deeds of trust to evidence their first position security interest. DenSco, however,
had likewise recorded mortgages evidencing its purported purchase money loans for the same
properties. The Miller Lenders asserted that DenSco’s claimed interest was a “practical and
legal impossibility since...only the Lenders provided the applicable trustee with certified
funds supporting the Borrowers purchase money acquisition for each of the Properties,”
demanded that DenSco subordinate its alleged interests to their interests, and threatened to
bring claims for fraud, negligent misrepresentation, and wrongful recordation,

1t seems unlikely that the issue with the Miller Lenders was a surprise to Mr. Chittick.
Although Mr. Chittick’s business journals contain hearsay and present questions regarding
admissibility, they suggest that Menaged had told Mr. Chittick about the double lien issue in
November 2013, and had explained that the issue could affect every property Menaged had
purchased using DenSco funds going back as far as 2011. Further, as set forth below, Mr.
Chittick and Menaged had apparently already reached an agreement on how to deal with the
double lien issue in November 2013 as well. Mr. Chittick, however, failed to provide that
information to Mr. Beauchamp in December. Nor did he immediately provide Mr.
Beauchamp with the full scope of the problem, or reveal the procedure he had agreed to with
Menaged to resolve that problem, in December or early January.

Instead, Mr. Chittick sent the Miller letter to Mr. Beauchamp on January 6, 2014 with

imothing more than a sparse request for Mr. Beauchamp to “read the first two pages.” The-

next day, Mr. Chittick provided Mr. Beauchamp a more expansive, if incomplete,
explanation. Inhis email, Mr. Chittick stated that he had lent Menaged a total of $50 million

since 2007 and that he’d “never had a problem with payment or issue that hasn’t been C)
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resolved.” Mr. Chittick asserted, however, that Menaged’s wife had become critically ill in
the past year, and that Menaged had turned the day-to-day operations of his companies over
to his cousin. According to Mr. Chittick, the cousin would receive loan funds directly from
DenSco, then request loans for the same property from another lender, including the Miller
Lenders. The other lenders, who had funded their loans directly to the trustee, would record
their deed of trust, as would DenSco, leaving DenSco in second position. The cousin,
unfortunately, then purportedly absconded with the funds DenSco lent directly to Menaged.
This “double lien” issue consequently jeopardized DenSco’s secured position and its loan-
to-value ratios. Mr. Chittick feared that a lawsuit with the Miller Lenders would jeopardize
DenSco’s entire enterprise.

According to Mr. Chittick’s email, Menaged purportedly found out about his cousin’s
scam in November and revealed the fraud to Mr. Chittick at the time. Yet rather than consult
legal counsel, Mr. Chittick worked out a plan to fix the double lien issue with Menaged. The
initial plan included DenSco paying off the other lenders. That required additional capital,
which Menaged and Mr. Chittick agreed would come from DenSco lending Menaged an
additional $1 million and Menaged investing additional capital, including $4-$5 million from
the liquidation of other assets, as set forth in a term sheet DenSco and Menaged signed after
having already put their plan into effect. As the scope of the problem appeared to grow, Mr.
Chittick and Menaged agreed to terms of an expanded plan, which included fusther
investment from both DenSco and Menaged, who would also continue to flip and rent homes
to raise the necessary profits needed to pay off the other lenders.

Unbeknownst to Mr. Beauchamp, and according to Mr. Chittick’s January 7, 2014
email, DenSco and Menaged had already been “proceeding with this plan since November
[2013].” That is corroborated by the Receiver, who asserts that Mr. Chittick lent $1 million
to Menaged to further their private workout plan in December 2013. In other words, by the
time Mr. Chittick approached Mr. Beauchamp with a partial disclosure of the issues in late
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2013 and early 2014, Mr. Chittick had aiready agreed to a business plan with Menaged to
work out the double lien problems, and had already advanced Menaged significant sums
pursuant to that agreement. As Mr. Beauchamp explained in a February 20, 2014 email to
his colleagues, Mr. Chittick “without any additional documentation or any legal advice.. .has
been reworking his loans and deferring interest payments to assist Borrower...When we
became aware of this issue, we advised our client that he needs to have a Forbearance

Agreement in place to evidence the forbearance and the additional protections he needs.”

1. Mr. Beauchamp tells DenSco it cannot accept new funds or roll over
prior funds.

After receiving Mr. Chittick’s January 7, 2014 email, Mr. Beauchamp was alarmed

that DenSco may be taking on new investors or rolling over prior investments without
disclosing the double lien issue or the workout to which Mr. Chittick and Menaged had
agreed. Mr. Beauchamp’s advice to Mr. Chiftick regarding disclosures Mr, Chittick had to
make to investors was immediate, clear, practical, consistent with his practice and
experience, and consistent with the standard of care: {a) DenSco was not permitted to take
new money without full disclosure to the investor lending the money; (b) DenSco was not
permitted to roll over existing investments without full disclosure to the investor rolling over
the money; and (c¢) DenSco needed to update its POM and make full disclosure to all its
investors. Mr. Beauchamp provided this advice to DenSco starting with his January 9, 2014
meeting with Mr. Chittick, and repeated it routinely over the next few months.

Mr. Beauchamp was also concerned about the source and use of the funds needed to
effectuate the Menaged-Chittick workout. Yet, as Mr. Chittick explained, the funds for the
$1 million lean (Whicp Mr Chittig:k funded prior to engaging Clark Hill) and an additional
$5 million loan Mr. Chittick and Menaged eventuall; a;;f;ed to as part of the workout, would
come from (a) Mr. Chittick’s investment of additional funds out of his retirement account,
(b) Mr. Chittick’s personal $1.5 million line of credit, and (c) DenSco’s working capital

{00374720.1 } 10
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raised as loans to other borrowers paid off. Again, and at all times Mr. Beauchamp, advised
Mr. Chittick that he could not obtain new investor funds or roll over prior investments
without full disclosure. Mr. Beauchamp also repeatedly insisted that Mr. Chittick revise his
out-of-date POM to provide disclosure to all his investors. Mr. Chittick, however, insisted
that DenSco first document the forbearance agreement so that Mr. Chittick would have a
plan to show his investors.

Further, Mr. Chittick assured Mr. Beauchamp repeatedly that he was making the
requisite disclosures to investors on an as needed basis, and that he had informed a select
group of investors as to the double lien issue and proposed workout. That would be in
keeping with Mr. Chittick’s prior approach to business. As far as Mr. Beauchamp knew, and
as Mr. Chittick had previously told him, Mr. Chittick indeed had a select group of investors
to whom he turned for advice and approval when confronted with important business
decisions, such as, for example, diversifying his investments into different types of
properties. Mr. Chittick told Mr. Beauchamp that he was seeking such advice from what Mr,
Chittick described as an “advisory council.” And again, while the letters Mr. Chittick
appears to have authored prior to his passing contain hearsay and present questions regarding
admissibility, they include various statements suggesting that Mr. Chittick may have
previously told (and received approval from) a select group of investors thathe was investing
specifically with Menaged, that he was increasing his loan concentration with Menaged
above the 10-15% concentration threshold suggested in his POMSs, and that his lending
process involved funding loans directly to borrowers, rather than a trustee or escrow account.

There was no reason for Mr. Beauchamp to question whether Mr. Chittick was in fact
providing disclosures to limited investors. Moreover, over the more than decade long strong
professional relationship Mr. Beauchamp had developed with Mr. Chittick, Mr. Chittick had
proven himself to be a trustworthy client with a strong history of sharing information and
making prudent decisions.
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2. Mr. Beauchamp advises DenSco to enter into a forbearance agreement.

Beginning in early January, and over the course of several meetings and telephone
conversations with Mr. Chittick, Mr. Beauchamp convinced Mr. Chittick that if he was going
to keep doing business with Menaged (and Mr. Chittick never wavered from his insistence
on working his way out of the double lien issue with Menaged), DenSco should at least
document the issues and workout plan in a forbearance agreement. Entering into a
forbearance agreement was sound, practical advice and consistent with the standard of care,
particularly where Mr. Chittick and Menaged had already implemented their own workout
plan. As Mr. Beauchamp repeatedly explained to Mr. Chittick, the forbearance agreement
would, among other things, (a) clarify and set forth the facts that led to the double lien issue,
(b) clarify and set forth the scope of the issue with the borrower, (c) acknowledge Mr.
Menaged’s defaults under his loan documents with DenSco, as well as the amount and
validity of any debt owed to DenSco, (d) obtain additional written commitments from (
Menaged and his entities to fund the workout Mr. Chittick and Menaged had already agreed
to; and (e) obtain additional security and other protections from Menaged and his entities to
protect DenSco and its investors. Mr, Beauchamp was crystal clear with Mr. Chittick all of
this would need to be disclosed to DenSco’s investors. Other protections Mr. Beauchamp
advocated for, including additional admissions of fault and fraud by Menaged to protect
DenSco in the event of a bankyuptcy filing by Menaged or his entities, were eventnally
stricken from the agreement at Menaged and Mr. Chittick’s insistence, and over Mr.
Beauchamp’s objections.

Mr. Beauchamp had previously drafted and negotiated countless forbearance
agreements. He reasonably anticipated that documenting DenSco’s forbearance would take
2-3 weeks. Negotiating the forbearance agreement, however, turned out to be more difficult
than Mr. Beauchamp could have reasonably imagined. For one, Menaged and his counsel
repeatedly insisted on edits and revisions that served only to undermine DenSco’s fiduciary (
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duty 1o its investors. Mr. Beaucharp repeatedly had to undo changes proffered by Menaged
or Jeff Goulder, Menaged’s attorney, aud often by Mr. Chittick at Menaged’s direction, in
order to protect DenSco’s investors. For example, Menaged (and Mr. Goulder) attempted to
restrict the type of information that could be disclosed to investors, attempted to obtain
releases for Menaged related to his defaults and conduct, and refused to provide additional
security or information regarding that additional security. Mr. Beauchamp repeatedly pushed
back on these efforts and advised DenSco and Mr. Chittick, both in writing and verbally, that
they had fiduciary duties to DenSco’s investors, which included disclosure obligations. See
e.g., February 4, 2014 email from Mr. Beauchamp to Mr. Chittick (“you cannot obligate
DenSco to further help Scott, because that would breach your fiduciary duty to your
investors™); February 14, 2014 email from Mr. Beauchamp to Mzr. Chittick (“[Goulder]
clearly thinks he can force you to agree to accept a watered down agreement and give up
substantial rights that you should not have to give up. Unfortunately, it is not your money.
It is your investors’ money. So you have a fiduciary duty™); March 13, 2014 email from M.
Beauchamp to Mr. Chittick (“we cannot give Scott and his attorney any time to cause further
delay in getting this Forbearance Agreement finished and the necessary disclosure prepared
and circulated” ).

In addition to Menaged and his counsel’s constant revisions, the number of loans
affected by the double Lien issue also kept growing. The number of loans Mr. Chittick
asserted were in issue grew from December 2013 to January 2014, and then grew again from
January 2014 to February 2014. This resulted in constant changes to the revised workout
documents, as well as to Menaged and Mr, Chittick’s agreement regarding the manner in
which to fund the workout, Mr. Chittick, however, maintained, despite multiple inquiries
from Mr. Beauchamp, that he had run the calculations and projections and was confident his
plan with Menaged would work. Mr. Chittick also told Mr. Beauchamp that he had gone
over those projections with his “advisory council.” As Mr. Chittick described it to Mr.
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Beauchamp, it was a cash flow issue, not a payment issue, and that with Menaged’s
additional investments, the workout would succeed.

Nevertheless, Mr. Beauchamp at one point became concerned enough at Menaged’s
intransigence and the apparent influence he held over Mr. Chittick, that he reached out to
third parties in late January 2014 to inquire about Menaged. Those third parties informed
him that Menaged was generally someone to be distrusted and not someone to do business
with. Mr. Beauchamp attempted to persuade Mr, Chittick of this during several heated
conversations, but Mr, Chittick ignored these admonitions, explaining that while Menaged
could be sharp and off-putting, Menaged had always performed on DenSco’s loans in the
past, and had stood by Mr. Chittick in tough times. Despite Mr. Beauchamp’s efforts, M.
Chittick could not be convinced to cut ties with Menaged.

F.  Mr. Beauchamp terminates representation of DenSco and Mr. Chittick.

When Mr. Beauchamp agreed to represent DenSco with respect to Menaged, M. (

Beauchamp made clear that Mr. Chittick had to immediately update DenSco’s POM and
make full disclosure to its investors regarding the double lien issues, the workout with
Menaged, and the potential implications thereof on DenSco’s finances and the investors’
investments. Mr. Chittick always acknowledged that responsibility and agreed to make the
full disclosure once the forbearance agreement was properly documented. As the
forbearance neared completion, Mr. Beauchamp and his associate, Daniel Schenk, began
drafting the updated POM in April and May 2014. Specifically, the draft 2014 POM would
have: provided a description of the forbearance agreement (including all the parties’ funding
obligations), the reason it was necessary, and its effect on DenSco’s books; updated
DenSco’s goals for intended loan-to-value- ratios; updated the descriptions regarding
DenSco’s loan funding and securitizations procedures; updated the number of loan defaults
triggering foreclosures; and amended the descriptions regarding DenSco’s borrower base,

among other things. Further, Mr. Beanchamp explained that the updated POM would need C
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to be accompanied with a cover letter or other communication highlighting the major
material changes, including the double lien issue and resulting workout agreement, to ensure
that investors were fully informed. Mr. Chittick, however, refused to provide the necessary
information to complete the POM and refused to approve the description of the workout or
the double lien issue, despite his prior acknowledgement that he would need to make full
disclosure to all of his investors about DenSco (as he had been doing through POMs and
newsletters since 2003).

In May 2014, Mr. Beauchamp handed Mr. Chittick a physical copy of the draft POM
and asked him what Mr. Chittick’s specific issues were with the disclosure. Mr. Chittick
responded that there was nothing wrong with the disclosure, he was simply not ready to make
any kind of disclosures to his investors at this stage. Mr. Beauchamp again explained that
Mr. Chittick had no choice in the matter and that he had a fiduciary duty to his investors to
make these disclosures. Mr. Chittick would not budge. Faced with an intransigent client
who was now acting contrary to the advice Mr. Beauchamp was providing, and with concerns
that Mr. Chittick may not have been providing any disclosures to anyone since January 2014,
Mr. Beanchamp informed Mr. Chittick that Beauchamp and Clark Hill could not and would
not represent DenSco any longer. Mr. Beauchamp also told Chittick that he would need to
retain hew securities counsel, not only to provide the proper disclosure to DenSco’s
investors, but to protect DenSco’s rights under the forbearance agreement. Mr. Chittick
suggested that he had already started that process and was speaking with someone else.

Thereafter, Mr. Beauchamp and Clark Hill ceased providing DenSco with securities
advice. Mr. Chittick accepted that, but asked that Mr. Beauchamp clean up some small issues
with the forbearance agreement before ending the relationship entirely. Other than
addressing those small forbearance agreement issues in June and July, Clark Hill stopped
working with DenSco or Mr. Chittick in any capacity until 2016, when Mr. Chittick

requested that Mr. Beauchamp assist with a very limited issue involving an audit by the
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Arizona Department of Financial Institutions - work Mr. Beauchamp had previously
performed for DenSco and that Mr. Chittick characteristically believed could be done most
cost-effectively by Mr. Beauchamp rather than by a new lawyer with no background on the
issue.

G. Meilaged continues to perpetrate fraud on DenSco, which only grows in
scale.

During the time that he represented it regarding securities matters, Mr. Beauchamp (a)
repeatedly advised DenSco that it had to make full disclosure to its investors and then
terminated his relationship as securities counsel for DenSco when DenSco refused, (b)
explained that DenSco would need to retain new counsel after Mr. Beauchamp withdrew to
provide proper disclosures and monitor the forbearance, and (c) repeatedly reminded Mr.
Chittick that he needed to fund loans directly to a trustee or escrow company, rather than to
the borrower. Mr. Chittick ignored Mr. Beauchamp’s advice. It is unclear if DenSco ever(
engaged or even talked to new counsel. It appears Mr. Chittick never issued an updated POM,
a fact which could not have gone unnoticed by DenSco’s sophisticated investors, who had
gotten used to regular updates from DenSco, not only through updated POMs, but through
monthly newsletters and periodic investor meetings. It is quite clear that Mr. Chittick
continued to loan funds directly to Menaged in direct contravention of Mr. Beauchamp’s
repeated advice.

Nevertheless, the brazen scope of Menaged’s efforts to defrand DenSco was not
foresecable. After several years of bilking DenSco and others out of millions of dollars,
Menaged was eventually arrested. The United States Department of Justice first charged
Menaged with defranding various banks through his purported furniture stores. Menaged used
fabricated receipts of purchases made at the furniture store to Obtait; credit from banks using
the names of, and personal identification information of, individuals who had recently died.
He would then incur millions of dollars in fraudulent charges on those fake
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accounts. Incredibly, Menaged acknowledged in his plea agreement that he had perpetrated
the bank fraud in order to get cash to continue defrauding DenSco.

The Department of Justice then alse charged Menaged with money laundering with
respect to the DenSco fraud. In his plea agreement, Menaged admitted that from January 2014
through June 2016, he embezzled millions of dollars without purchasing properties with the
loans obtained from Densco. He explained that Densco would wire money to purchase
propetties directly to Menaged who, in turn, would send Densco “an image of a bank cashier’s
check and a copy of a Trustee Certificate of Sale Receipt.” No sales, however, actually took
place. Menaged would simply redeposit the cashier’s check into his account and create bogus
receipts for the purchase of the property. Between January 2013 and June 2016, Menaged
admitted he obtained 2,172 loans from DenSco totaling approximately $734,484,440.67. Yet,
of the 2,712 loans made by DenSco, only 96 involved actual property transactions. Menaged
supposedly used the remaining 2,616 loans for personal expenses, gambling trips, and transfers
to his family members and associates. Menaged would also utilize new loans from DenSco to
pay back outstanding DenSco loans to conceal the embezzlement. Menaged was sentenced to
17 years in jail. As First Assistant U.S. Attorney Elizabeth Strange stated, the “lengthy
sentence is a fitting punishment for his egregious crimes.”

Menaged shamelessly duped Mr. Chiftick. Documents and recordings suggest that
Menaged never invested any money into the workout plan. He never obtained any money from
Isracl despite purportedly making numerous trips to the country for that very purpose, blatantly
lied that funds that could have been used to fund the workout were tied up in his divorce
proceedings, and ultimately invented a non-existent investment scheme involving
“auction.com” which Menaged falsely claimed was retaining most of DenSco’s money (to go
along with his fabrication of the fraudulent cousin and terminally ifl wife). Sadly, Mr. Chittick
bought into all of Menaged’s lies until his last days.

Discovery is continuing. Defendants may supplement.

{00374720.1 } 1 7




m—

WO 1 bW N

| W T O T N TR N T . TR G TS N TN SO SO e T
[ L U e W = TN = S . R B YN O T SN ¥L B & e =~

II. LEGAL THEORIES OF CLAIMS AND DEFENSES.
A. Plaintiff’s claims

Legal Malpractice

Receiver asserts that Defendants, in their representation of DenSco, committed
malpractice and breached fiduciary duties owed to DenSco. Legal malpractice requires proof
of the existence of a duty, breach of duty, that defendant’s breach was the actual and proximate
cause of damages, and the “pature and extent” of those damages. Glaze v. Larsen, 207 Ariz.
26,29 9 12 83 P.3d 26, 29 (Ariz. 2004) (citations and quotations omitted).

Receiver cannot prove breach of duty, actual and proximate cause, or resulting damages.
To prove breach of duty, Receiver will need to demonstrate that Defendants deviated from the
professional standard of care, Phillips v. Clancy, 152 Ariz. 415, 418, 733 P.2d 300, 303 (App.
1986). Defendants’ advice and conduct in representing DenSco and, in doing so, representing
Mr, Chittick as president of DenSco, was consistent with Defendants’ practice and experience,(
and consistent with the standard of care. Thus, Defendants did not breach their duties to
DenSco. Receiver will also need to prove that if Defendants had not purportedly breached the
standard of care, that DenSco would not have suffered injury. 7d. Whatever harm befell
DenSco was not an aciual or foreseeable result of the advice provided by Defendants. Thus,

Receiver’s malpractice claim fails.

Aiding and Abetting Breach of Fiduciary Duties

Recejver asserts that Defendants aided and abetted Mr. Chiftick in breaching his
fiduciary duties to DenSco. Claims of aiding and abetting require proof that: (1) the primary
tortfeasor must commit a tort that-caused injury to the plaintiff; (2) the defendant must know
that the primary tortfeasor’s conduct constitutes a breach of duty; (3) the defendant must
substantially assist or encourage the primary tortfeasor in the achievement of that breach and

(4) there must be a causal relationship between the defendant’s assistance or encouragemeuc
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and the primary tortfeasor’s commission of the tort. Wells Fargo Bank v. Az. Laborers,
Teamsters and Cement Masons Local No. 395 Pension Trust Fund, 201 Ariz. 474, 485 (Ariz.
2002); Sec. Title Agency, Inc. v. Pope, 219 Ariz. 480,491 (App. 2008). Importantly, “[blecause
aiding and abetting is a theory of secondary liability, the party charged with the tort mmust have
knowledge of the primary violation.” Wells Farge, 201 Ariz. at 485.

It is unclear from the Complaint what actions the Receiver asserts constitute a breach
of Mr. Chittick’s fiduciary duties to DenSco. In any event, as set forth above, Defendants’
advice and conduct in representing DenSco were congistent with the applicable standard of
care. Defendants did not “substantially assist or encourage™ Mr. Chittick in breaching his
duties to DenSco, Defendants did not have knowledge of Mr, Chittick’s purported “primary
violation,” nor is there a causal relationship between Defendants’ representation of DenSco
and Mr. Chittick’s purported tortious conduct with respect to DenSco. Further, as set forth
above, whatever harm befell DenSco was not an actual or foreseeable result of Defendants’
actions or inactions.

B.  Affirmative Defenses
Statute of Limitations

Both the legal malpractice claim and the aiding and abetting claim have a two-year
statute of limitations. See A.R.S. §12-542(1) (An action “[flor ixg'-uries done to the person of
another” shall be commenced and prosecuted within two years after the cause of action accrues,
and not afterward”). Receiver, who stands in the shoes of DenSco, did not file the Complaint
in this action until October 16, 2017, which was well ouiside the statute of limitations. DenSco,
and potentially the Investors, could have discovered at least as of Summer 2014, that DenSco’s
loans to Menaged (or his entities) and DenSco’s lending practices with respect to Menaged,
could give rise to potential causes of action against Mr. Chittick or his agents. Consequently,
because the statute of limitations ran, at the latest, in the Summer of 2016, the Complaint is
barred in its entirety.
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In pari delicto and unclean hands

Arizona law recognizes the doctrine of in pari delicto. Brand v. Elledge, 89 Ariz. 200,
205, 360 P.2d 213, 217 (1961) (quoting Furman v. Furman, 34 N.Y.S.2d 699, 704 (N.Y. Sup.
Ct. 1941), aff’d, 40 N.E.2d 643 (N.Y. 1942)). Inpari delicto is an affirmative defense by which
a party is barred from recovering damages if his losses are substantially caused by activities
the law forbade him to engage in.” Stewart v. Wilmington Trust SP Servs., Inc., 112 A.3d 271,
301-02 (Del. Ch.), aff’d, 126 A.3d 1115 (Del. 2015) (quotation omitted). The defense may
be raised against a receiver. Id. (“no cogent reason for sparing the innocent Receiver the effect
of in pari delicto while equally innocent stockholders or policyholders would be barred from
relief in the derivative context™); Knauer v. Jonathon Roberts Fin. Grp., Inc., 348 F.3d 230,
236 (7th Cir. 2003) (affirming dismissal of the receiver’s claims against the broker dealers,
concluding that they were barred by the defense of in pari delicto).

Here, to the extent there are claims against the Defendants, DenSco, into whose shoes(
the Receivers steps, bears fault for damages about which it complains. Thus, the Receiver’s
claims are barred by doctrine of in pari delicto and, to the extent it specifically seeks equitable
relief, by the related doctrine of unclean hands.

Laches

A claim is barred by laches when the delay in bringing the claim is “unreasonable under
the circumstances” given “the party’s knowledge of his or her right” and “any change in
circumstances caused by the delay has resulted in prejudice to the other party sufficient to
justify denial of relief.” Mathieu v. Mahoney, 174 Ariz. 456, 459, 851 P.2d 81, 84 (1993).
Receiver seeks to recover potentially millions of dollars in alleged damages resulting fromy|-
loans Mr. Chittick made to Menaged. DenSco would have been aware of the harms that could
befall DenSco and its investors as a result of DenSco’s loans to, and lending practices with,

Menaged, by Summer 2014 at the latest. DenSco’s inaction for several years, up through thC
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death of Mr. Chittick, to seck relief against any potential third party for harms suffered by
DenSco was unreasonable in light of DenSco’s knowledge. Because the Receiver steps into

DenSco’s shoes, the claims are barred.

Setoff

Clark Hill filed a proof of claim in the DenSco Receivership for unpaid fees incurred
by Clark Hill on behalf of DenSco after Mr. Chittick’s death. The Receiver improperly denied
the claim on the basis of an alleged conflict of interest. To the extent Defendants are found to
owe Plaintiff anything, that debt must be reduced any sums Plaintiff owes Clark Hill.
Additional defenses:

e Third parties, including Mr. Chittick and Menaged, over whom Defendants
have no authority or control, are at fault for any damages suffered.

¢ Densco, in to whose shoes the Receiver steps, is at fault for any damages
suffered.

e Densco, in to whose shoes the Receiver steps, assumed the risk of any actions
taken or not taken by DenSco or Mr. Chittick. Hildebrand v. Minyard, 16 Aziz.
App. 583, 585, 494 P.2d 1328, 1330 (1972) (“A plaintiff who by contract or
otherwise expressly agrees to accept a risk of harm arising from the defendant’s
negligent or reckless conduct cannot recover for such harm . . . .”*) (quoting
Restatement (Second) of Torts § 496(B) (1965)).

o Receiver cannot demonstrate proximate cause or loss causation because
Defendants are not the actual or proximate cause of any damages suffered.

¢ Any damages suffered were the result of intervening or superseding events or
causes over which the Defendants had no control and were not legally
responsible,

e Receiver’s claims are barred by doctrines of waiver and estoppel.
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Discovery is continuing. Defendants may supplement.

III. WITNESSES.
Because no discovery has taken place, Defendants have not yet identified all persons it
may call as witnesses at trial, but reserves the right to call any of the following persons to

testify as a witness at frial:

1. David Beauchamp

c/o Coppersmith Brockelman, PLC
28001\%? Central Avenue, Suite 1900
Phoenix, Arizona 85004

Mr. Beauchamp is expected to testify regarding the allegations in the Complaint and
his representation of DenSco and of Mr. Chittick in his capaéity as president of DenSco.

2. Peter Davis, Receiver of DenSco Investment Corporation
c/o Osborn Maledon, P.A.
2929 N. Central Avenie, Suite 2100
Phoenix, Arizona 85012

Mr. Davis is expected to testify regarding the allegations in the Complaint; the
Receiver’s evaluations, analyses, and determinations regarding all aspects of DenSco’s
finances, including, but not limited to, DenSco’s loans, lending practices, record keeping,
financial transactions, and solvency; the Receiver’s maintenance of any DenSco or Chittick
records or property, including, but not limited to, electronic records, websites, and email

communications; the Receiver’s communications with third parties related to DenSco,

including communications with financial institutions, investors, and accountants and other
professionals; the Receiver’s determinations regarding the Receiver’s evaluation and analysis
regarding the potential fault, liability, or culpability of any third party with respect to any
losses suffered by DenSco, including, but not limited, to Chase Bank, U.S. Bank, Yomtov
Menaged, Active Funding Group, LLC, and/or Gregg Seth Reichman. q
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3. Any witnesses disclosed by other parties.

4. Any witnesses that become known through discovery.

5. Custodian or other foundational witnesses necessary to admit exhibits.

Discovery is continuing. Defendants may supplement.
IV. ADDITIONAL PERSONS WHO MAY HAVE RELEVANT INFORMATION.

1. Yomtov “Scott” Menaged

Scott Menaged is expected to have knowledge regarding all aspects of any personal,
financial, or business dealings he may have had with DenSco and Mr. Chittick; all aspects of
the fraud(s) he perpetrated on DenSco and Mr. Chittick, either directly, or through one of his
entities, including, but not limited to, Easy Investments, LLC, Arizona Home Foreclosures,

LLC, Farniture King, LLC, and Scott’s Fine Furniture; all aspects of actions or conduct

related to his criminal indictment, plea bargain, or sentencing in the United States District
Court for the District of Arizona; his communications with DenSco and Mr. Chittick; and his
communications with Mr. Beauchamp.
2. PMX Easy Investments, LL.C
10510 East Sunnyside Drive
Scottsdale, AZ 85259
See Description for Scott Menaged.
3. PMK Arizona Home Foreclosures, LLC
7320 West Bell Road
Glendale, AZ 85308

See Description for Scott Menaged.
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4. PMK Furniture King, LLC

3200 North Central Avenue
Suite 2460
Phoenix, AZ 85012

See Description for Scott Menaged.
5. PMK Scott’s Fine Furniture

See Description for Scott Menaged.

6. Veronica Castro aka Veronica Gutierrez Reyes

¢/o Thomas W, Warshaw Attormey at Law
33147 North 71 Wa
Scottsdale, AZ 8526

Ms. Castro is expected to have knowledge regarding Menaged’s personal, financial, or
business dealings with DenSco and Mr. Chittick; the fraud(s) Menaged perpetrated on
DenSco and Mr, Chittick, either directly, or through one of Menaged’s entities; Menaged’s
communications with DenSco and Mr. Chittick; Menaged’s communications with Mr.
Beauchamp; the actions or conduct related to Menaged’s criminal indictment, plea bargain,
or sentencing in the United States District Court for the District of Arizona; and Ms. Castro’s
communications with DenSco and Mr. Chittick. ‘

7. Luigi Amoroso

Mr. Amoroso is expected to have knowledge regarding Menaged’s personal, financial,
or business dealings with DenSco and Mr. Chittick; the fraud(s) Menaged perpetrated on
DenSco and Mr. Chittick, either directly, or through one of Menaged’s entities; Menaged’s
communications with DenSco and Chittick; Menaged’s communications with Mr, - -
Beauchamp; the actions or conduct related to Menaged’s criminal indictment, plea bargain,
or sentencing in the United States District Court for the District of Arizona; and Mr.

(

Amoroso’s communications with DenSco and Mr, Chittick. c
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8. Alberto Pena

c/o Law Office of Cameron A. Morgan
4356 North Civic Center Plaza

Suite 101

Scottsdale, AZ 85251

Mr, Pena may have knowledge regarding Menaged’s personal, financial, or business
dealings with DenSco and Chittick; the fraud(s) Menaged perpetrated on DenSco and
Chittick, either directly, or through one of Menaged’s entities; Menaged’s communications
with DenSco and Mr. Chittick; and the actions or conduct related to Mr. Pena’s and
Menaged’s criminal indictment, plea bargain, or sentencing in the United States District

Court for the District of Arizona.

9. Troy Flippo
¢/o Storrs Law Firm PLLC

1421 East Thomas Road
Phoenix, AZ 85014
Mr. Flippo may have knowledge regarding Menaged’s personal, financial, or business
dealings with DenSco and Mr. Chittick; the fraud(s) Menaged perpetrated on DenSco and
Mr. Chittick, either directly, or through one of Menaged’s entities; Menaged’s
communications with DenSco and Chittick; and the actions or conduct related to Flippo’s and

Menaged’s criminal indictment, plea bargain, or sentencing in the United States District
Court for the District of Arizona.

10. Menatged family members, including, Joseph Menaged, Michelle Menaged,
Jennifer Bonfiglio, Joy Menaged, Jess Menaged

Menaged’sfamily may have knowledge regarding Menaged’s personal, financial, or
business dealings with DenSco and Chittick; the fraud(s) Menaged perpetrated on DenSco
and Chittick, either directly, or through one of Menaged’s or his Family’s entities; the use of
funds obtained from DenSco; Menaged’s communications with DenSco and Chittick; and the
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actions or conduct related to Menaged’s criminal indictment, plea bargain, or sentencing in
the United States District Court for the District of Arizona.
11.  Shawna Heuer
c/o Bonnett Fairbourn, PC
2325 B. Camelback Road
Phoenix, Arizona 85016
Ms. Heuer is expected to have knowledge regarding Mr. Beauchamp’s work on behalf
of DenSco after Mr. Chittick’s death and her communications with Mr. Beauchamp. Ms.
Heuer may also have knowledge regarding Mr, Chittick and DenSco’s business, and Mr.
Chittick’s communications with Mr. Beanchamp, Menaged, or DenSco’s investors.
12.  Jeff Goulder
Stinson Leonard Street
1850 North Central Avenue, Suite 2100
Phoenix, Arizona 85004

Mr. Goulder is expected to have knowledge regarding the negotiations of the
Forbearance Agreement. Mr. Goulder also may have knowledge regarding Menaged’s
businesses, business practices, and finances. Mr. Goulder also may have knowledge

regarding Menaged’s communications with Mr. Beaychamp.

13. David Preston
c/o Gammage & Burnham

2 N. Central Avenue, Suite 15
Phoenix, Arizona 85004
Mr. Preston is expected to have knowledge regarding DenSco and Mr. Chittick’s
finances and tax returns. Mr. Preston is also expected to have knowledge regarding Mr.

Chittick’s retirementplan.
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14.  DenSco Investors
The Investors are expected to have knowledge regarding Mr, Chittick’s
communications to the Investors and their knowledge of DenSco’s business, the status of
their investments, and the status of DenSco’s loans at all relevant times.
15.  PMK Chase Bank
3800 North Central Avenue
Suite 460
Phoenix, AZ 85012

Chase Bank is expected to have knowledge regarding Menaged’s banking practices,

including Menaged’s use of Chase Bank to perpetrate his fraud on DenSco and Chittick.
16. PMK US Bank
3800 North Central Avenue
Suite 460
Phoenix, AZ 85012

US Bank is expected to have knowledge regarding Menaged’s banking practices,
including Menaged’s use of Chase Bank to perpetrate his fraud on DenSco and Chittick.

17." Gregg Seth Reichman/Active Funding Group
Attention: Andrew Abraham
702 East Osborn Road
Suite 200
Phoenix, AZ 85014
Mr. Reichman may have knowledge regarding Menaged’s businesses, business
practices, and finances; the fraud(s) Menaged perpetrated on DenSco and Mr. Chittick, either
directly, or through one of Menaged’s entities; and Mr. Reichman or his entities” (including
Active Funding Group) participation in any of those fraudulent schemes (as suggested by the

Receiver’s Petition No. 45).
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18.  Daniel Schenk
c/o Ci:\)]ppersmith Brockelman, PLC

2801N. Central Avenue, Suite 1900
Phoenix, Arizona 85004
Mr. Schenk is expected to have knowledge regarding any work he performed on
behalf of DenSco and Mr, Chittick in his capacity as president of DenSco. Mr. Schenk may

also have knowledge of Menaged’s commmications with Beauchamp, Menaged

communications with Mr. Chittick, and Mr. Beauchamp’s communications with Mr. Chittick,

19.  Robert Anderson

clo Cﬁppersmith Brockelman, PLC
2802N. Central Avenue, Suite 1900
Phoenix, Arizona 85004

Mr. Anderson is expected to have knowledge regarding any work he performed on
behalf of DenSco and Mr. Chittick in his capacity as president of DenSco.

V. PERSONS WHO HAVE GIVEN STATEMENTS.

None at this time. Discovery is continuing. Defendants may supplement.
VI. EXPERT WITNESSES.

Defendants will identify expert witnesses in accordance with the schedule ordered by -
the Court.

VII. COMPUTATION AND MEASURE OF DAMAGES.

Plaintiff is not entitled to recover damages against Defendants.

Discovery is continuing. Defendants may supplement.
VIII. EXHIBITS. o

Defendants have not yet identified ;:vhich of the documents listec-l m éécﬁon IX below
will be used at trial, and therefore expressly reserve the right to introduce any of the listed

¢

documents as exhibits at trial. Defendants may also use any documents identified in any other
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party’s disclosure statement or otherwise disclosed in this matter. By reserving the right to
introduce any of the listed documents as exhibits at trial, Defendants do not waive their right
to object to the introduction of any of these documents at the time of trial. Defendants will
supplement this initial disclosure statement in accordance with Arizona Rules of Civil
Procedure 26.1(b)(2).

Discovery is continuing. Defendants may supplement.
IX. LIST OF RELEVANT DOCUMENTS.

Defendants have not yet identified any additional relevaut documents. The
follbwing documents, or categories of documents, may be relevant or lead to discovery of
admissible evidence in this action and have already been exchanged or are being produced
herewith:

1. Documents previously produced by Clark Hill bates labeled CH_0000001-

13330.

2. Additional documents produced herewith by Clark Hill bates labeled

CH_0013331-13374.

3. Documents previously produced by Plaintiff including bates labeled

DIC000001-25330, 28634-53950 and Quickbooks backup.

4. Documents previously produced by Plaintiff including bates labeled D126751-

128731 and 130972-133111.

5. Documents previously produced by Bryan Cave in response to Subpoena Duces

Tecum bates labeled BC000001-3188.

6. Documents produced herewith by Dave Preston in response to Subpoena Duces

Tecum bates labeled DP000001-601.

7. Any and all documents in CR-17-00680, United States of America v. Yomtov

Scott Menaged, et al.

8. All documents produced by any party or third party in this litigation.
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10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19,

Defendants reserves the right to supplement the list of documents that may be relevant

as information becomes available.

{00374720,1
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All pleadings, filings, minute entries, orders and judgments.

All deposition or hearing transcripts in the above captioned litigation,

All transcripts from any Section 341 creditor meetings, Rule 2004 examinations,
depositions, or hearings in Yomtov Menaged’s bankruptcy pending in the United
States Bankruptcy Court for the District of Arizona at 2:16-bk-04268.
Additional documents produced by Clatk Hill bates labeled CH_000013387-
13616.

Documents produced by Sell Wholesale Funding in response to Subpoena Duces
Tecum bates labeled SELL000001-766.

Documents produced by Azben Limited, LLC in response to Subpoena Duces
Tecum bates labeled AZBEN000001-5248.

Documents produced by Geared Equity in response to Subpoena Duces Tecum
bates labeled GE000001-257. l
Documents produced by Active Funding in response to Subpoena Duces Tecum
bates labeled AF000001-2448. .
Documents produced in Defendant Clark Hill’s Responses to Plaintiff’s
First Set of Requests for Production bates labeled CH_0013617-13623
(previously produced to counsel on 6/21/18).

Documents produced in Defendant David Beanchamp’s Responses to
Plaintiff’s First Set of Requests for Production bates labeled CH_0013624-
13946 (previously produced to counsel on 6/21/18).

Additional documents produced by Clark Hill bates labeled CH_0013947-
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X. INSURANCE AGREEMENTS.

Defendants produce the insurance policies in effect during the relevant time period

and the November 10, 2017 correspondence from Mendes & Mount, LLP, all of which are

stamped “Confidential Materials.”

DATED this 11" day of July, 2018.

COPPERSMITH BRGCKELMAN PLC

By:

ORIGINAL hand-delivered and emailed this
11* day of July, 2018 to:

Colin F. Campbell, Es%.
Geoffrey M. T. Stwr, Esq.
Joshua M. Whitaker, Esq.
OSBORN MALEDON, P.A.

2929 N. Central Ave., Suite 2100
Phoenix, AZ 85012-2793
Attormeys for Plaintiff

s
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John E. DeWulf

Marvin C. Ruth

Vidula U. Patla

2800 North Central Avenue, Suite 1900
Phoenix, Arizona 85004

Attorneys for Defendants
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VERIFICATION Q)

STATE OF MICHIGAN );

} ss.
COUNTY OF W{é gnc )

Edward J. Hood, being first duly sworn upon his oath, deposes and says:
I, Edward J. Hood, am General Counsel of Clark Hill PLC, a Defendant in the matter Pefer
S. Davis, as Receiver for DenSco Investment Corp. v. Clark Hill PLC, David G Beauchamp and
Jane Doe Beauchamp, Maricopa County Superior Couri Case No. CV20{7-0{3832. 1 am
authorized lo make this Verification on its behalf. I have read the foregoing Defendant’s Fourth
Supplemental Rule 26.1 Disclosure Statement and know its contents. The mafters stated in the
foregoing Fourth Supplemental Rule 26.1 Disclosure Statement are true and correct to the best of
C

my knowledge except as to those matters that are stated upop information and belief, and as

g

those matters, 1 believe them to be true.
I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of Michigan that the
foregoing is true and correct.

DATED this 20 day of July, 2018.

ned®

Edward J. Hood e

fooaygrio 1}
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VERIFICATION

STATE OFF ARIZONA )
} ss.
COUNTY OF Maricopa )

David G. Beauchamp, being first duly sworn upon his oath, deposes and says:

I, David G. Beauchamp, am a Defendant in the matter Peter S. Davis, as Receiver
Jor DenSco Investment Corp. v. Clark Hill PLC; David G. Beauchamp and Jane Doe
Beauchamp, Maricopa County Superior Court Case No CV2017-013832. T have read the
foregoing Defendants’ Fourth Supplemental Rule 26.1 Disclosure Statement and know its
contents. The matters stated in the foregoing Fourth Supplemental Rule 26.1 Disclosure
Statement arc true and correct to the best of my knowledge except as to those matters that
are stated upon information and belief, and as to those matters, I believe them to be true.

I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the Stale of Arizona that the
foregoing is true and correct.

DATED this §2) _day of Tuly, 2018.

Dyl 6. Beaekary

David G. Beauchamp /

{00276255.1 )
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Ketly 8. Oglesby CR 50178

John E, DeWulf (006850)
Marvin C. Ruth 5024220

Vidula U. Patki (030742
COPPERSMITH BROCKELMAN PLC
2800 North Central Avenue, Suite 1900
Phoenix, Arizona 85004
T: E602 224-0999
F: (602) 224-0620
jdewulf@cblawyers.com
mruth@cblawyers.com
vpatki(@cblawyers.com
Attorneys for Defendants
SUPERIOR COURT OF ARIZONA
COUNTY OF MARICOPA
Peter S. Davis, as Receiver of DenSco No. CV2017-013832
Investment Corporation, an Arizona
corporation,
DEFENDANT DAVID BEAUCHAMP’S
Plaintiff, RESPONSES TO PLAINTIFE’S FIRST
SET OF NON-UNIFORM
V. INTERROGATORIES

Clark Hill PL.C, a Michigan limited liability
company; David G. Beauchamp and Jane
Doe Beauchamp, husband and wife,

Defendants.
Defendant David G. Beauchamp responds as follows to Plaintiff’s First Set of Non-

Uniform Interrogatories dated May 15, 2018.
GENERAL OBJECTIONS
Each of Mr. Beauchamp’s responses, in addition to any specifically stated objections,
are subject to and incorporate the following General Objections, The assertion of these or
similar objections, additional objections, or a partial response to an individual Interrogatory
does not waive any of Mr. Beauchamp’s General Objections.
1. Mr, Beauchamp objects to these Interrogatories to the extent the Plaintiff seeks

information that is protected from disclosure by the attorney client privilege,

{00372194.1 }
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locate and review documents identified by Mr. Beauchamp in response to an
interrogatory, not Mr, Beauchamp’s duty to replicate the contents of such
documents. Mr. Beauchamp will disregard that portion of Instruction No. 4 that
imposes obligations on Mr. Beauchamp that go beyond the scope of Rule 33.

INTERROGATORY NO. 1:

Defendants’ Initial Disclosure Statement states, on page 5, lines 21-23, that
“Mr. Beauchamp repeatedly advised DenSco that an update was necessary irrespective of
DenSco’s plans regarding the outstanding amount of its offerings, but Mr. Chittick continued
to delay.”

Are you aware of any document that contains such advice or reflects that it was given?

RESPONSE:

Yes. Mr. Beauchamp not only repeatedly advised DenSco that an update to the Private (D
Offering Memoranda (“POMs™) and related investor documents was necessary, but he
worked diligently to update such documents throughout his relationship with DenSco, Mr.
Beauchamp drafted DenSco’s first POM in 2001 and updated it approximately every two
years between 2001 and 2011 to reflect changes in the economy and DenSco’s business. For
example, the 2007 POM was issued in June of that year, Less than two years later, in April
2009, Mr, Beauchamp began updating the POM to reflect changes in “the economy and real
estate collapse” and the updated POM was issued in June once again. Less than a year after
the 2009 POM had been prepared, Mr. Beauchamp began work on the 2011 POM.

It is therefore unremarkable that on May 1, 2013, Mr, Beauchamp again began the
process of updating the POM to reflect material changes with respect to DenSco, including
the size of its portfolio. An invoice sent by Mr. Beauchamp to Mr. Chittick in June 2013,
while Mr, Beauchamp was at Bryan Cave, confirms that Mr. Beauchamp worked on the 2013
POM throughout May of that year and that Mr. Beauchamp met with Mr. Chittick for severalc

(003721941 } 3
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the double liening issue and the Forbearance Agreement, as well as updates to investors on .
DenSco’s finances. When Mr. Beauchamp presented Mzr. Chittick with a draft of the updated
POM, however, Mr. Chittick balked at disclosing the information regarding the double liens
ot the Forbearance Agreement and refused to proceed with the updated POM. At that point,
Mr. Beauchamp terminated the attorney-client relationship.

INTERROGATORY NO. 2:

If you answered “yes” to Interrogatory No. 1, please list and identify each such
document.

RESPONSE:

Mr. Beauchamp objects to this Interrogatory on the ground that is it overly broad and
unduly burdensome. See, e.g., Steil v. Humana Kansas City, Inc., 197 T.R.D. 445 (D. Kan.
2000) (contention interrogatories which seek “every fact and document” to support a
contention are ovetly broad and unduly burdensome). Without waiving the foregoing
objection, relevant information regarding the contention identified in Interrogatory No. 1 can
be found in the following documents, in addition to others: DIC0000965, DIC0006068,
DIC0006528, DIC0006625, DIC0006656, DIC0006703, DIC0006707, DIC0006738,
DIC0006803, DIC0006904, DIC0008660, DIC0008802, DIC0008874, BC_OGOOOS,
BC 000756, BC_000296, BC_001614, BC_002005, BC_002027, BC_002082, BC_002982,
BC 003087, BC_003091, RECEIVER_000016, RECEIVER_000049, RECEIVER_000054.

Defendants reserve the right to supplement this response as discovery progresses.

INTERROGATORY NO. 3:

Defendants® Initial Disclosure Statement states, on page 6, lines 23-26, that
“Mr. Beauchamp advised Mr. Chittick, as he had done previously, that Mr. Chittick needed

to fund DenSco’s loans directly to the trustee or escrow company conducting the sale, rather

(003721941 ) 5
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DenSco loans to borrowers had to be sent to the Trustee or Title Company, as applicable, in
order to both comply with Mr, Chittick’s fiduciary duty to DenSco investors and protect

DenSco’s recording position. That advice obviously went unheeded.

INTERROGATORY NO. 4:

If you answered “yes” to Interrogatory No. 3, please list and identify each such
document.

RESPONSE:

Mr. Beauchamp objects to this Interrogatory on the ground that is it overly broad and
unduly burdensome. See, e.g., Steil v. Humana Kansas City, Inc., 197 FR.D. 445 (D. Kan.
2000) (contention interrogatories which seek “every fact and document” to support a

contention are overly broad and unduly burdensome). Without waiving the foregoing

objection, relevant information regarding the contention identified in Interrogatory No. 3 can(

be found in the following documents, in addition to others: DIC0000965, DIC0002508,
DIC0004474-75, DIC0007125-26, BC 000296, CH_001511, RECEIVER 000190,

Defendants reserve the right to supplement this response as discovery progresses,

INTERROGATORY NO. 5:

Defendants’ Initial Disclosure Statement states, on page 7, lines 17-26: “In December
2013, Mr. Chittick contacted Mr, Beauchamp for the first time in months. He told
Mr. Beauchamp over the phone that he had run into an issue with some of his loans to
Menaged, and specifically, that propetties securing a few DenSeo loans were each subject to
a second deed of trust competing for priority with DenSco’s deed of trust. Mr. Beauchamp
reminded Mr. Chittick that he still needed to update DenSco’s private offering memorandum.

After briefly discussing the allegedly limited double lien issue, Mr. Chittick emphasized to

Mr. Beauchamp that Mr. Chittick wanted to avoid litigation with other lenders. Mr. ChittickC)

{00372494,1 ) 7
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RESPONSE:

Mr. Beauchamp objects to this Interrogatory on the ground that is it overly broad and
unduly burdensome. See, e.g., Steil v. Humana Kansas City, Inc., 197 FR.D. 445 (D, Kan.
2000) (contention interrogatories which seek “every fact and document” to suppott a
contention are overly broad and unduly burdensome), Without waiving the foregoing
objection, relevant information regarding the contention identified in Interrogatory No. 5 can
be found in the following documents, in addition to others: DIC0007135 — DIC0007143,
CH_0000637, CH_0000708, CH_0009800 - CH_0009809. Defendants reserve the right to

supplement this response as discovery progresses.

INTERROGATORY NO. 7:

Defendants’ Initial Disclosure Statement states, on page 10, lines 13-20:
“Mr. Beauchamp’s advice to Mt, Chittick regarding disclosures Mr. Chittick had to make to
investors was immediate, clear, practical, consistent with his practice and experience, and
consistent with the standard of care: (a) DenSco was not permitted to take new money without
full disclosure fo the investor lending the money; (b) DenSco was not permitted to roll over
existing investments without full disclosure to the investor rolling over the money; and (c)
DenSco needed to update its POM and make full disclosure to all investors. Mr, Beauchamp
provided this advice to DenSco starting with his January 9, 2014 meeting with Mr. Chittick,
and repeated it routinely over the next few months.”

Are you aware of any document that contains the advice you say was given on
January 9, 2014 or reflects that it was given?

RESPONSE:

Yes. Throughout 2014, when Mr. Beauchamp was preparing the Forbearance
Agreement and later the updated POM that would apprise investors of the double liening issue
and Mr, Chittick’s plan to resolve it, Mr. Beauchamp consistently reminded Mr. Chittick of

{00372194,1 } 9
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Forbearance Agreement and the related documents. Under normal circumstances, this should
be finalized and signed before you advance all of this additional money.”

Then, as negotiations regarding the language of the Forbearance Agreement stretched
on between February and April 2014, Mr. Beauchamp consistently rejected changes to the
Rorbearance Agreement proposed by Mr. Chittick and Mr. Menaged in favor of Mr. Menaged
that did not comport with Mr. Chittick’s fiduciary obligations. On February 4, 2014, for
instance, Mr. Beauchamp rejected proposed changes to the Forbearance Agreement by Mr.
Menaged’s counsel, Mr. Goulder. Mr, Beauchamp explained that those changes
“transfer[red] significant risk to [Mr. Chittick] and [his] investors™ and that if even a portion
of the changes proposed were allowed to remain, the Forbearance Agreement would no longer
have a description of the double liening issue “that you HAVE to provide to your investors.”

That same day, Mr. Beauchamp reminded Mz, Chittick that he needed to be clear about what

he could and could not do with regards to the Forbearance Agreement “without going back (D

to all of [his] investors for approval.” Mr, Beauchamp acknowledged that while DenSco had
helped Mr. Menaged in the past on the double liened properties, Mr. Chittick could not
“OBLIGATE DenSco to further help Scott, because that would breach your fiduciary duty to
your investors,”

On February 7, 2014, Mr, Beauchamp again rejected changes proposed by Mr. Goulder
explaining that “the agreement needs to comply with Denny’s fiduciary obligations to his
investors.” Mr. Beauchamp clarified that though the parties “had intended to make the
document as balanced as possible,” the Forbearance Agreement needed “to set forth the
necessary facts for Denny to satisfy his securities obligations to his investors.” Two days
later, Mr. Beauchamp again reminded Mr, Chittick that his ability to force DenSco to assume
risk or liability related to the double liened properties in the Forbearance Agreement was

limited by his fiduciary duty to his investors.

{00172194.1 } ]. 1
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work on the POM. For example, in mid-March, Mr. Beauchamp warned Mr. Chittick that he
was “very late in providing information to your investors about this problem and the resulting
material changes from your business plan. We cannot give Scott and his attorney any time to
cause further delay in getting this Forbearance Agreement finished and the necessary
disclosure prepared and circulated.” Similarly on March 11%, Mr. Beauchamp discussed with
Mr, Chittick a cover email to the POM that would explain the double liening issue. Finally,
after the Forbearance Agreement was executed, Mr. Beauchamp moved swifily to include in
the revised 2013 POM a detailed description of what had occurred. In the prior performance
section of the POM, Mr. Beauchamp explained the work out agreement, the total amount of
outstanding loans, and why a work out was the most beneficial approach for the investors,
M. Chittick chose to never complete the POM and Mr, Beauchamp promptly terminated the

attorney-client relationship.

INTERROGATORY NO, 8:

If you answered “yes” to Interrogatory No. 7, please list and identify each such
document.

RESPONSE:

Mr. Beauchamp objects to this Interrogatory on the ground that is it overly broad and
unduly burdensome. See, e.g., Steil v. Humana Kansas City, Inc., 197 F.R.D. 445 (D. Kan.
2000) (contention interrogatories which seek “every fact and document” to support a
contention are overly broad and unduly burdensome). Without waiving the foregoing
objection, relevant information regarding the contention identified in Interrogatory No. 7 can
be found in the following documents, in addition to others: DIC0005439, DIC0005442,
DIC0006068, DIC0006528, DICO006625, DICO006656, DIC0006703, DICO006673,
DIC0006803, DIC0006904, DIC0007085, DIC0008874, RECEIVER_000051. Defendants

reserve the right to supplement this response as discovery progresses.

{o0312194.1 } 13
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money (whether in the form of a new investment or rollover of an existing investment), M.
Chittick appears to have informed Mr. Beauchamp that he had done so, telling him in a
January 12, 2014 email, shortly after the initial January 9, 2014 meeting where Mr.
Beauchamp first instructed Mr. Chittick that disclosures were required prior to accepting
additional funds, that “I’ve spent the day contacting every investor that has told me they want
to give me more money.” The clear implication was that Mr. Chittick was contacting those
investors to make adequate disclosures.

In the following months, as Mr. Beauchamp worked with Mr. Chittick, Mr. Menaged,
and Mr. Menaged’s counsel to finalize the Forbearance Agreement and POM, Mr.
Beauchamp continually reminded Mr. Chittick of his fiduciary obligations With_ respect to
executing the Forbearance Agreement and updating the POM, as well as his obligations to

keep his investors apprised of the double liening issue. For example, on January 21, 2014, as

M. Chittick continued to work out the loan issues with the other hard money lenders who (

had threatened suit earlier in the month, Mr. Beauchamp reminded Mr, Chittick that the
Forbearance Agreement needed to be finalized and that he was “very concerned about the
payoffs geiting so far ahead of the documentation. I have authorized the preparation of the
Forbearance Agreement and the related documents. Under normal circumstances, this should
be finalized and signed before you advance all of this additional money.”

Then, as negotiations regarding the language of the Forbearance Agreement stretched
on between February and April 2014, Mr. Beauchamp consistently rejected changes to the
Forbearance Agreement proposed by Mr. Chittick and Mr, Menaged in favor of Mr. Menaged
that did not comport with Mr. Chittick’s fiduciary obligations. On February 4, 2014, for
instahce, Mr. Beauchamp rejected proposed changes to the Forbearance Agreement by Mr.
Menaged’s counsel, Mr. Goulder. Mr. Beauchamp explained that those changes
“transfer[red] significant rigk to [Mr. Chittick] and [his] investors™ and that if even a portion

of the changes proposed were allowed to remain, the Forbeatance Agreement would no longeIC)

(003721541 } 15
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In late Februgry 2014, while still negotiating the Forbearance Agreement, Mr.
Beauchamp learned that the double liening issue was much bigger than Mr. Chittick had
suggested initially. As noted in Mr. Chittick’s corporate journal (the admissibility of which
is not conceded), “I told david the dollars today, he about shit a brick,” Mr, Beauchamp once
again advised Mr, Chiftick to disclose the issue to his investors. As documented in Mr,
Chittick’s journal, Mr. Chittick recognized that “I have to tell [my investors] and hope they
stick with me.” On February 21%, Mr. Beauchamp advised Mr. Chittick to inform his
investors of what he knew regarding the double liening issue at DenSco’s upcoming annual
investors meeting on March 8, Mr, Beauchamp encouraged Mr, Chittick to explain the issue
in person at the meeting, as well as provide a summary of the issue in the notice that was sent
to the investors before the meeting. Whether Mr. Chittick followed Mr. Beauchamp’s advice
is unknown, as Mr. Beauchamp was expressly uninvited from the meeting that year, but Mr.
Beauchamp again discussed with Mr. Chittick on February 27® what Mr. Chittick should
include in the notice to the investors.

Throughout March, Mr. Beauchamp continued to be clear in his advice that M.
Chittick needed to keep his investors in the loop about the double liening issue and get to
work on the POM. For example, in mid-March, Mr, Beauchamp warned Mr. Chittick that he
was “very late in providing information to your investors about this problem and the resulting
material changes from your business plan, We cannot give Scott and his attorney any time to
cause further delay in getting this Forbearance Agreement finished and the necessary
disclosure prepared and circulated.” Similarly on March 11%, Mr. Beauchamp discussed with
M. Chittick a cover email to the POM that would explain the double liening issue. Finally,
after the Forbearance Agreement was executed, Mr. Beauchamp moved swiftly to include in
the revised 2013 POM a detailed description of what had occurred. In the prior performance
section of the POM, Mr. Beauchamp explained the work out agreement, the total amount of

outstanding loans, and why a work out was the most beneficial approach for the investors.

{0e372194.1 ) 17
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DenSco’s operations. Though the admissibility of Mr. Chittick’s suicide letter to his investors
is not conceded, it documents the many times Mr. Chittick approached this gtoup of investors
for advice on DenSco’s operations. For example, the letter notes that DenSco weathered the
2008 housing crash by “talk[ing] to a few of you to help me make decisions on what I should
do. ... Gladly after consultations from several of you, you agreed with my strategy .. .”

With respect to Mr. Menaged specifically, Mr. Chittick requested permission in 2012
from a select group of investors that he be allowed to waive the 10-15% loan cap to any one
borrower for Mr. Menaged. Mr, Chittick explained that after he “talked to a few of you
investors and got a positive response,” and based on Mr, Menaged’s “track record, the down
payments etc, the comfort level was there.” Mr. Chittick’s also noted that “many” of the
investors were aware of how DenSco was making loans directly to Mr. Menaged rather than
to a trustee. The letter recites that “for efficiency [sic] sake,” Mr. Chittick would fund loans
directly to borrowers like Mr, Menaged and that “[m]any of you [investors] knew this and Ig
told you this is how I operated. Some of you that were also borrowers and investors have
experienced this way of doing business and know it’s common.” Mr. Chittick also informed
his investors that he may have to return some of their investments in DenSco because
DenSco’s portfolio was reaching the $50 million limit due to the loans made to Mr, Menaged.

Mr. Chittick even sought advice from individual investors regarding updates to his
investor offering documents. In 2011, for example, Mr. Chittick updated the POM with the
advice and consent of one of his investors named Warren Bush. Mr. Chittick would send to
Mr. Bush the revisions that Mr, Beauchamp had made and solicit Mr, Bush’s opinion on those
changes. It was ultimately Mr. Bush that approved of the revisions to the POM, directing Mr.
Chittick “time to wrap it up.”

In addition to seeking explicit advice from his investors for various company actions,
Mr. Chittick also kept his investors apprised of DenSco’s processes and the issues with Mr,

Menaged specifically. Generally, Mr. Chittick met with DenSco’s investors periodically ¢

{00372194.1 ) 19
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RESPONSE:
After Mr. Chittick made clear in May 2014 that he would not issue a revised POM,

Mr. Beauchamp terminated the attorney-client relationship and no further securities work was
done on behalf of DenSco other than cleaning ul; the documents related to the Forbearance
Agreement that had been executed in April 2014, The Clark Hill invoices make clear that
Mr. Beauchamp did not take on any new work on behalf of DenSco after May 20,2014, Once
a clean up of the Forbearance Agreement documents was complete in July 2014, the invoices
show that no further work was done for DenSco until March 2016 when the Arizona
Department of Financial Institutions (“ADFI”) informed Mr. Chittick that DenSco was being
investigated and Mr, Chittick reached back out to Mr, Beauchamp,

The communications between the parties corroborate that the attorney-client
relationéhip was terminated. The parties did not exchange any written communications
between July 2014 and March 2016, save for a few emails in March 2015, and a single email
exchange in September 2015 that related to spam being sent to Mr. Beauchamp from Mr,
Chittick’s email address. After a single meeting in March 2015, the parties did not speak for
nearly a year until Mr, Chittick approached Mr. Beauchamp about the ADFI investigation.
Though the admissibility of Mr. Chittick’s _business journal is not conceded, it confirms these

facts.

INTERROGATORY NO. 14:

Please list and identify any document through which you conveyed to persons within
Clark Hill that you had “informed Mr. Chittick that Beauchamp and Clark Hill could not and
would not represent DenSco any longer?

RESPONSE:

Mr. Beauchamyp objects to this Intetrogatory on the ground that is it overly broad and
unduly burdensome. See, e.g., Steil v. Humana Kansas City, Inc., 197 FR.D. 445 (D. Kan.

{c0372194.1 } 21
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VERIFICATION

|STATE OF ARIZONA )
) ss.
COUNTY OF Maricopa )

David G. Beauchamp, belng first duly sworn upon his oath, deposes and says:

I, David G. Beauchamp, am a Defendant in the matier Pefer S Davis, as Receiver
for DenSco Investment Corp, v. Clark Hill PLC; David G. Beauchamp and Jane Doe
Beauchamp, Maricopa County Superior Court Case No. CV2017-013832. 1have read the
foregoing Defendant David Beauchamp’s Responses to Plaintiff's First Set of Non-
Uniform Interrogatories and know its contents. The matters stated in the foregoing
Responses are frue and correct to the best of my knowledge except as fo those matters that {
are stated upon information and belief, and as to those matters, I believe them to be true,

I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of Arizona that the
foregoing is true and correct,

DATED this 2/t day of June, 2018,

'DMGM

David G. Beauchamp
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John E. De Wulf (006850)

Marvin C. Ruth (024220

Vidula U. Patki (030742
COPPERSMITH BROCKELMAN PLC
2800 North Central Avenue, Suite 1900
Phoenix, Arizona 85004

T: (602) 224-0999

F: (602) 224-0620
jdewuif@cblawyers.com
mruth@cblawyers.com
vpatki(@cblawyers.com

Attorneys for Defendants

Peter S. Davis, as Receiver of DenSco
Investment Corporation, an Arizona
corporation,

Plaintiff,
V.

Clark Hill PL.C, a Michigan limited liability
company; David G. Beauchamp and Jane
Doe Beauchamp, husband and wife,

Defendants.

INTERROGATORY NO. 9:

{00372903.1 )

Defendants® Initial Disclosure Statement states, on page 10, lines 13-20:
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SUPERIOR COURT OF ARIZONA
COUNTY OF MARICOPA

No. CV2017-013832

DEFENDANT DAVID BEAUCHAMP’S
AMENDED RESPONSE TO
PLAINTIFE’S NON-UNIFORM
INTERROGATORY NO. 9

Defendant David G. Beauchamp responds as follows to Plaintiff’s First Set of
Non-Uniform Interrogatories dated May 15, 2018.

“Mr
.

Beauchamp’s advice to Mr. Chittick regarding disclosures Mr. Chittick had to make to
investors was immediate, clear, practical, consistent with this practice and experience, and
consistent with the standard of care: (a) DenSco was not permitted to take new money without
full disclosure to the iﬂvestor lending the money; (b) DenSco was not permitted to roll over

existing investments without full disclosure to the investor rolling over the money; and (c)
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DenSco needed to update its POM and make full disclosure to all investors. Mr. Beauchamp
provided this advice to DenSco starting with his Janvary 9, 2014 meeting with Mr. Chittick,
and repeated it routinely over the next few months.”

Are you aware of any document that contains the advice you say was routinely given
after January 9, 2014 or reflects that it was given?

RESPONSE:

Yes. Throughout 2014, when Mr, Beauchamp was preparing the Forbearance
Agreement and later the updated POM that would apprise investors of the double liening issue
and Mr. Chittick’s plan to resolve it, Mr. Beauchamp consistently reminded Mr. Chittick of
his fiduciary obligations to his investors, his obligation to provide full disclosure to his
investors (including his obligation to inform investors as to what had occurred prior to taking
new investor money or rolling over investor money), as well as his obligation to update the
2013 POM as soon as possible.

This is evidenced first by the fact that Mr. Beauchamp diligently worked to update the
2013 POM between May and August of 2013, until he was ordered to stop by Mr. Chittick.
Once Mr. Chittick reinitiated contact with Mr, Beauchamp in mid-December 2013 and
informed him of the allegedly limited double liening issue, Mr. Beauchamp immediately
advised Mr. Chittick of his general obligation to disclose the problem and his specific
obligation to disclose the problem to any investors from whom he was receiving additional
money (whether in the form of a new investment or rollover of an existing investment). Mr.
Chittick appears to have informed Mr. Beauchamp that he had done so, telling him in a
January 12, 2014 email, shortly after the initial January 9, 2014 meeting where Mr.
Beauchamp first instructed Mr. Chittick that disclosures were required prior fo accepting
additional funds, that “I’ve spent the day contacting every investor that has told me they want
to give me more money.” The clear implication was that Mr Chittick was contacting those

investors to make adequate disclosures.

(003729031} 2
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In the following months, as Mr. Beauchamp worked with Mr. Chittick, Mr. Menaged,
and Mr, Menaged’s counsel to finalize the Forbearance Agreement and POM, Mr.
Beauchamp continually reminded Mzr. Chittick of his fiduciary obligations with respect to
executing the Forbearance Agreement and updating the POM, as well as his obligations to
keep his investors apprised of the double liening issue. For example, on January 21, 2014, as
Mr. Chittick continued to work out the loan issues with the other hard money lenders who
had threatened suit earlier in the month, Mr. Beauchamp reminded Mr. Chittick that the
Forbearance Agreement needed to be finalized and that he was “very concerned about the
payoffs getting so far ahead of the documentation. I have authorized the preparation of the
Forbearance Agreement and the related documents. Under normal circumstances, this should
be finalized and signed before you advance all of this additional money.”

Then, as negotiations regarding the language of the Forbearance Agreement stretched
on between February and April 2014, Mr, Beauchamp consistently rejected changes to the
Forbearance Agreement proposed by Mr. Chittick and Mr. Menaged in favor of Mr. Menaged
that did not comport with Mx. Chittick’s fiduciary obligations. On February 4, 2014, for
instance, Mr. Beauchamp rejected proposed changes to the Forbearance Agreement by M.
Menaged’s counsel, Mr. Goulder. Mr. Beauchamp explained that those changes
“transfer|red] significant risk to [Mr. Chittick] and [his] investors™ and that if even a portion
of the changes proposed were allowed to remain, the Forbearance Agreement would no longer
have a description of the double liening issue “that you HAVE to provide to your investors.”
That same day, Mr. Beauchamp reminded Mr. Chittick that he needed to be clear about what
he could and could not do with regards to the Forbearance Agreement “without going back
to all of [his] investors for approval.” Mr. Beauchamp acknowledged that while DenSco had
helped Mr. Menaged in the past on the double liened properties, Mr. Chittick could not
“OBLIGATE DenSco to further help Scott, because that would breach your fiduciary duty to

your investors,”

{00372903.1 } 3
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On February 7, 2014, Mr. Beauchamp again rejected changes proposed by Mr. Goulder
explaining that “the agreement needs to comply with Denny’s fiduciary obligations to his
investors,” Mr. Beauchamp clarified that though the parties “had intended to make the
document as balanced as possible,” the Forbearance Agreement needed “to set forth the
necessary facts for Denny to satisfy his securities obligations to his investors.” Two days
later, Mr. Beduchamp again reminded Mr. Chittick that his ability to force DenSco to assume
risk or liability related to the double liened properties in the Forbearance Agreement was
limited by his fiduciary duty to his investors.

On February 14% Mr. Beauchamp reminded Mr. Chittick yet again that the
Forbearance Agreement had to comply with Mr. Chittick’s fiduciary obligations to his
investors. He warned Mr. Chittick explicitly that Mr. Menaged was trying to get him to accept
a “watered down agreement” where DenSco “give[s] up substantial rights that [DenSco]
should not have to give up,” but that he could not do so because “it is not your money. It is
your investors’ money. So you have a fiduciary duty.” Mr. Beauchamp further admonished
Mr. Chittick and reminded him that his “duty and obligation [was] not to be fair to Scott, but
to completely protect the rights of your investors. I am sorry if Scott is hurt through this, but
Scott’s hurt will give Scott the necessary incentive to go after his cousin. Your job is to
protect the money that your investors have loaned to DenSco.”

In late February 2014, while still negotiating the Forbearance Agreement, Mr.
Beauchamp learned that the double liening issue was much bigger than Mr. Chittick had
suggested initially. As noted in Mr, Chittick’s corporate journal (the admissibility of which
is not conceded), “I told david the dollars today, he about shit a brick.” Mr. Beauchamp once
again advised Mr. Chittick to disclose the issue to his investors. As documented in Mr.
Chittick’s journal, Mr. Chittick recognized that “I have to tell [my investors] and hope they
stick with me.” On February 21%, Mr. Beauchamp advised Mr. Chittick to inform his

investors of what he knew regarding the double liening issue at DenSco’s upcoming annual

(0037250.1 ) 4
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investors meeting on March 8", Mr. Beauchamp encouraged Mr. Chittick to explain the issue
in person at the meeting, as well as provide a summary of the issue in the notice that was sent
fo the investors before the meeting. Whether Mr. Chittick followed Mr. Beauchamp’s advice
1s unknown, as Mr. Beauchamp was expressly uninvited from the meeting that year, but Mr.
Beauchamp again discussed with Mr. Chiftick on February 27% what Mr. Chittick should
include in the notice to the investors.

Throughout March, Mt. Beauchamp continued to be clear in his advice that Mr.
Chittick needed to keep his investors in the loop about the double liening issue and get to
work on the POM. For example, in mid-March, Mr. Beauchamp warned Mr. Chittick that he
was “very late in providing information to your investors about this problem and the resulting
material changes from your business plan. We cannot give Scott and his altorney any time to
cause further delay in getting this Forbearance Agreement finished and the necessary
disclosure prepared and circulated.” Similarly on March 11*, Mr. Beauchamp discussed with
Mr, Chittick a cover email to the POM that would explain the double liening issue. Finally,
after the Forbearance Agreement was executed, Mr. Beauchamp moved swiftly to include in
the revised 2013 POM a detailed description of what had occurred. In the prior performance
section of the POM, Mr. Beauchamp explained the work out agreement, the total amount of
outstanding loans, and why a work out was the most beneficial approach for the investors.
M. Chittick chose to never complete the POM and Mr. Beauchamp promptly texminated the

attorney-client relationship.

(003729021 ) 5
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DATED this 17 day of July, 2018.

COPPERSMITH BROCKELMAN PLC

By: |

(‘
John E. DeWulf ¥ N
Marvin C. Ruth
Vidula U. Patki
2800 North Central Avenue, Suite 1900
Phoenix, Arizona 85004
Attorneys for Defendants

ORIGINAL mailed and emailed this
17" day of July, 2018 to:

Colin I'. Campbell, Esq.
Geoftrey M. T. Sturr, Esq.
Joshua M. Whitaker, Esq.
OSBORN MALEDON, P.A.
2929 N. Central Ave., Suite 2100
Phoenix, AZ 85012-2793

ys for Plaintiff

100372503, 1 } 6
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YERIFICATION

STATE OF ARIZONA )
) ss.
COUNTY OF Maricopa )

David G. Beauchamp, being first duly sworn upon his oath, deposes and says:

1, David G. Beauchamp, am a Defendant in the matter Peter S. Davis, as Receiver
Jor DenSco Investment Corp. v. Clark Hill PLC, David G. Beauchamp and Jane Doe
Beauchamp, Maricopa County Superior Court Case No. CV2017-013832. 1 have read the
foregoing Defendant David Beauchamp’s Amended Response to Plaintiff’s Non-Uniform
Interrogatory No. 9 dated July 17, 2018 and know its contents. The matters stated in the
foregoing Amended Response are true and correct to the best of my knowledge except as to
those matters that are stated upon information and belief, and as to those matters, I believe
them to be true.

I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of Arizona that the
foregoing is true and correct.

DATED this Ist day of February, 2019.

David G. Beauchamp v

{00415836.1 }
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Beauchamp, David G. -2} L
[~ _—'& A——— M S — M — X tﬂh% Or,ll%nslv CR 50178
From; Kevin R, Merritt <KMerritt@gblaw.com>

Sent: Friday, September 23, 2016 4:56 PM

To: Beauchamp, David G.

Subject: RE: Ryan Anderson

OK. P'm just going to say that 1 don’t know what or how much you're going to copy, and leave the issue open. Meetings
in Ohio?

Kevin R. Memitt
602.256.4481 Direct { KMemtt@obiaw.com

From: Beauchamp, David G, [mailto:DBeaychamp@Clarkill.com)
Sent: Friday, September 23, 2016 4:54 PM
To: Kevin R, Merritt

Subject: RE: Ryan Anderson

Kevin:

We should wait on that untjl after my meetings on Monday and Tuesday in Ohio. 1wl try to get some clarification on

ipat diregtion.
Thanks, David

David G. Beauchamp .

CLARK HILLPLC

44850 N Scotsd=le Rd | Sulte 500 § Phoenix, Arizona 85254
480,684.1126 {diracl) | 480,684,166 (fax) | 602.319.5602 (call)
dheaychamp@clarkhil,com | www.clarkhill.com

From: Kevin R. Menitt {mailto:kMenitt@ablaw,com)
Sent: Friday, September 23, 2016 4:51 PM

Ta: Beauchamp, David G.

Subject: RE: Ryan Anderson

Am 1 at [iberty to disclose that CH has determined not to preserve a copy of the complete files {without going into detail
beyond that}? Or would you prefer | didnt say anything and just played dumb?

Kevin R. Marmritt
602.256.4481 Direct | KMerdttGablaw.com

From: Beauchamp, David G. {mallte:DBeauchamp@ClarkHIll.com]
Sent: Friday, September 23, 2016 3:47 PM

To: Kevin R. Merritt

Cc: Sifferman, Mark S,

Subject: RE: Ryan Anderson

Kevin:

DICC010463
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- 1 had expected to hear from Ryan afte®n& talked to the Receiver, butl have not h;Q anything about the issues from
my conversation with Ryan. With respect to you email, | am not sure that } am remembering Ryan's message to you

from last Friday.

! just talked to Mark Sifferman, who is just back today after a couple of weeks in Italy. Mark does not want me to spend
the money to digitize the files for the Receiver and he does not want me to spend the time to review all of the files for
attorney-client information. He just wants me to review and make copies of the portions of the file that I need to
protect against a securities claim against me and the firm. Since that is different than what you and | had discussed, |
wanted to mzke sure that you knew what | am being told to do.

Sorry that Tony never called.
Best regards, David

David 6. Beauchamp

CLARK HILL PLC

14850 N Scolisdale Rd | Sulte 500 | Fhoentx, Aflzona 85254
480.554.1126 {direct) | 480.684.1166 {fax) | 602.319.5602 (cell)
gbeauchanmo@clarkhill.com | wwee,clarkhill com

From: Kevin R, Mersitt [mailto:KMerrit@ablaw,comi
Sent: Friday, September 23, 2016 3:30 PM

To: Beauchamp, David G.

Subject: Ryan Anderson

I need to give Ryan an answer to his message from last Friday. We have handled other matters with the same
understanding as to the privilege of the Estate, Just wanted to give you a heads-up. Did anything develop further after
your call was cancelled last Wednesday? . @

Also, never heard a peep from Tony.

Kevin R. Memitt
602.256.4481 Direct | KMerritt@ablaw,com | Brofils

GAMMAGE & BURNHAM

World Clocy Cosal Axfrong Roots,
2 North Centrel Ave., 15th Foor | Phoenix, AZ 85004
602,256.0566 | 602.256.4475 Fax | yowwy, gblaw.com

TH ESSa0E AN Sy &F LS Bitachert cbx & Lrone the brw trmof Gaeirnage § Sieiamy, PLC, h3! may be axslitents
2acfor priviboed. I you &re ot e mﬂmnﬂ}'wm ongy; s, orube Biis lifrmation, and to pviioe Nas boen walved
by your lnadvertaot racopt. If yo lave aecatved Bils bansmistion k1 eoror, plasse potly the sancy By reply o andt tien deleles s mwisags

LEGAL NOTICE:*This e-mail » along with any attachment(s), is considered confidential and may be legally
privileged. If you have received it in eror, please notify us immediately by reply e-mail and then delete this
message from your system. Please do not copy it or use it for any purposes, or disclose its contents to any other
person. Thank you for your cooperation.

DIC0010464
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CLARK HILL

NEW BUSINESS [NTAKE FORM

A. Select one:

- A —

[ i R R TR T

New Client
To Identify related clients, please link this new dient to client # _

o ——— T

P

Is New Client an Insurance Company?  If ves, Insurance Conflicts Committee member muost approve this

opening.
D New Matter for an Existing Client :
Client Name: .. _ .. . e emme o CHent#: .. . - - B E
B. Clzent lnformatrag(ALL Jields required for new cllents only}: o .
— . F
True Legal Name;  Estate of Denny J. Chittiek... .. . .. . e o ey e e G
Cllent name for billing {if different from true legal name)& . :
Attention: _ _ ;
Address: 8400 W, Thompson Rogd - T :ﬁ ] " o i
City: CoewDAlene ~ ~ ™" " ““Stater Idaho ~ Zip: ~ B8gT4 Country United States .
Contact Name (&4/R purposes) _ Contact Emall Addresss _ . coee,
~ " Contact Telephone No.: S I
NAICS Code: . * Industry Descrliption: . ’
Client Originator Timekeeper:
Single originator, list pame;  David Beauchamp L .
Shared origination, list names and %7 . -
C_Motter Information: __ o

Practice Group Assigned: Personal Legal Services Matter Type: Probate m !
Nature of Assignment (Explain In sufficient detail the nature of the work)‘ :

Probate e s e s _ e = . L ,

Matter Name: Probale R T S— 2 ey

Matter Contact Name and Email Address (A/R Purposes, if different from Client Contact)s ™~
Contact Name; Contact Emai} Address: A
Contact Telephone No3t . . 7 )

- LT k-

Referred By; INT - Intemal Source ProvideName = Referral Name:  Dayld Beauchamp .
Matter Originator Timekeeper {must be different from Cllent Originatar if belng assigned):
Single originator, list name: Michelle Tran
Shared orlgination, list names and %:

Client Responsible [Billing) Timekeeper (senlor level timekeeper only}):
Primary client responsible timekeeper, listname:  DavidBgsuchamp ., . .. e ..
Shared cllent responsible timekeepers, list names and %: __

supervising Timekeeper (senior level timekeeper In practice group for type of work being performed):
Single supervising timekeaper, fist name: Michelle Tran i e eme
Shared supervising timekeepers, list names and %:

Attorney({s) Assigned to perform the work: Micb,elle Tran e - CH.0018014 - - - .



Estate of Denny J. Chittick

CLARK HILL

Probeata
D._ Billing Information: _
BILLING SPECIFICS:
Estimate tota! fee billings for this matter (REQUIRED): S 25008000 . ...,
Blling Arrangement: Hourly __ 8Billing Frequency: “'\.’JLOQ?!}H .
Retainer (REQUIRED FOR ALL NEW CLIENTS), speclfy amount: $‘ 200 7
If fixed fee, specify amount: - P e
Will the matter be billed in .25 hour increments? ves[ ] No
Which state will receive benefit of services performed: Other f et e e

gy = w e, v e

Wil the matter be billed at rates other than standard? If yes, please complete and attach  Yes il No
the approved Negotiated Rate Request Form,

Does Negotiated Rate apply ta all matters for this client? Yes{ | No

Will the matter be billed electronically? ves[ ] No ;
If yes, please provide the name of the ebilling system:

Task Codes Required: Yes[ | No Activity Codes Required: Yes[_] No[X]
Task Code: SelectOne . e . Activity Code: Select One i -
Are there special billing guidelines? Yes[_] No E

if yes, please attach a copy of billing guidelines.

Client Reference No.;

WHERE TO SEND INVOICE IF DIFFERENT FROM CLIENT ADDRESS IN SECTION B ABOVE:
Is this matter to be billed to an address other than the client level address? Yes[_] No :

If yes, please provide billing address and contact Information. Please attach additional sheet if there are more
billing addresses. {ALL fields requlired)

Name:

Attention: ) . _:-, . e syt e

—— e, . a L e

Address: e 3 e . NN

City: State: Zip: Countrys

E-MAIL ?
Does Client want involce to be e-mailed? If yes, please provide e-mall address

CH_0018015
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Estate of Denny J. Chittick

CLARK HILL re

PAYOR {Who will pay our invoices? List Payor nume and percentoge):

Payor Name: ShawnaHeuer B ) Percentage; 100
Payor Name; - e - . Percentage: o
L e et : S,

Payor Name: _ . . . ) L . . Percentage:

Payor Name; _ Percentage: ...,

Payor Name: e C . _ 777 Percentage:
= + T T s : : R

Payor Name! e Percentage: )

INSURANCE CONMPANY AS PAYOR:

Will any of the fees be paid by an insurance company, either currently or

potentially In the future? ves[] No
if yes, please provide the name of the Insurance company: N

T T T ameal Y

Is any portion of the fees belng pald by this payor subject to any agreement that

has conflict provisions that have not yet been approved by the insurance

Conflicts Committee? Yes[ | No
If yes, Insurance Conflicts Committee must revlew and approve this matter opening,

MULTIPLE REPRESENTATIONS:
If this matter is being billed as part of a multi-cllent representation (see User's Guide for explanation), and the
Client/Matter Identified on this form are the Primary, please check this box: [_]

I Client/Matter identified an this form are not the Primary, please identify both the Primary Client Number and
Primary Matter Number to which to link this new Client and Matter:
Primary Clienti#: 7 . Primary Matter #:

L

E. Risk Assessment:

CGonflics
Yes No
1, [C] Hasacheck been run for any dient, Issuz or business conflict and 21l iInvolved partners using the

Firm’s methods?

If not, explain whys ___ .

Is there any potential for a claent lssue or business conflict? !f yes explain how they Were
resolved (walver letter or other written documentation evidencing resolution of potential conflict
must be attached)
By representing this client, does Clark Hill thereby also represent any other entity(s) within this
client’s corporate tree? If yes, contact General Counsel to obtain approval to proceed.

is this client a party to a Jolnt Defense Agreement for this new matter or is such an agreement
fikely for this matter? If yes, please refer to the User’s Gulde for proper submission of conflict
check with this form.

S
i
£

e
Lk
ESRES!

Billing: and Collectian
5. %] 1] Engagementletter attached. (REQUIRED FOR ALL NEW CLIENTS)
6. E] Has an Orbis credit report been requested from Donna Klelar, reviewed and attached as
applicable?
If not, explain why; Not i\lﬁedﬂd., g
NOTE: An Orbis credit report Is required for any new client that isa bus!ness or orgamzatmn, NOT required for an
individual or start up company. CH._0018016
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Estate of Denny J, Chittick O

Probate

Yes No
7. []:+ ¥l Isthisaninvestigation, a litigation matter, or a matter that has the potential to lead to litigation?
If yes, the client may need to be informed of and/or assisted with specific preservation
ubligations. Please attach documentation sufficient to demonstrate the client’s awareness of and
compiiance with any preservation requirements (Internal hold policles, correspondence or other .
communication between Clark Hlll and client, etc.).
if no notice given, explaln why: e mee S -

8. l___l WH| this matter require discovery or other document review and/or management? if yes, ftis
likely that electronically stored Information {ES!) will need to be evaluated for preservation,
collection, and productlon purposes. Tha Discovery Services Group wlll contact you to discuss
actlon steps for this data.

T e a-

Other

g. LI

o

Does a Firm lawyer or relztive hdve an equity interest or management position with the cllent? I
yes, please attach the appropriate autherization documentation. Refer to CHIPP Section 9.1

s the Firm substituting for other counse] whose services have been terminated?

Is the Flrm serving only as local counsef In this matter?

B

[l

F. Approvals:

‘M@mw&»ﬁ L Davld Beaughamp .. ame N

CI:ent&Q sponsible TWTgned ’ "Print Name Date
r

A

Practice Group Leadér or Delegat®, Signed ‘Print Name ’ ) ’ ) Date

Additional Approvals Required:

For Contingent or Pro Bono Matters, applicable Committee Member must sign;

For shared Timekeepar Arrangements, Applicable PGLs and Sharing Timekeepers mustsign;

If representing entities within this Client's corporate tree (if answer to Risk Assessment Q3 Is yes} GC must sign;

If Insurance Confllcts Committee is required to review this form, mambey of Insurance Conflicts Committes must sign;
For Engagement Letter Waivers, GC must sign;

For Retainer Waivers, Financial Operatlons Manager and PGL/PGD must sign,

e

Print Name Date ;

Wehalls, TR 32k

Bl 0 = e e e

= - STia - e - - L —— - P

G. Form Completed By (print name):

CH_0018017



_Lopez, Leslie L.

From: MacFarlane, J. Thomas

Sent; Friday, August 12, 2016 7:27 AM

To: Lopez, Lestie L

Subject; approved

Attachments: New Business Intake Form for Ching Ling Chang ; New Business Intake Form for Amy

Avery ; New Business Intake Form for John and Laura Garcia ; New Business Intake Form
for Mildred Hudrick ; New Business Intake Form for Michael and Tara Moore ; New
Business Intake Form for the Estate of Denny J. Chittick ; New Business Intake Form for
Keith Phillips (Credit Claim) ; New Business Intake Form for Keith Phillips (Deferred
Payment)

All approved

J. Thomas MacFarlane

CLARK HILL PLC

151 S Old Woodward | Suite 200 | Bimingham, Michigan 48008
248.988.5846 (direct) | 248.988.1833 (fax) | 24B.709.2136 {cell)
imacfarane@clarkhill.com | wiww. clarkhill.com

CH_0018018
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CLARK HILL
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Clark HI PLC
14859 N Scottsdale Road
Suita 500
scotsdale, arfzona 85254
Michelle Maegolles Tran T480.684.1100
T 480-822-6745 F 480,684,119
F 48D-6B4-1169
Email. mtran@ClarkHill.com clarkhill.com
August 2, 2016
Shawna Heuer

5400 W. Thompson Road
Coeur d’Alene, ID §3814

Re: Estate of Denny J. Chittick

Dear Shawna:

I am sending you this engagement letter with the firm’s billing policles and
procedures. After you have reviewed it, please sign and return it to me by email, fax, or
regular mail. if you mail it, please keep a copy. If making your own copy is not convenient,
please let me know and I will send a copy back to you.

The hourly rates and contact information for the attorneys and legal staff in our
group are listed at the end of this letter. | may also receive assistance from one or more
other attorneys or legal assistants in our office. Their hourly rates vary depending on their
experience and level of expertise. Legal fees as well as out-of-pocket expenses which we
incur on your behalf (filing or recording fees, publication charges, any court costs, etc.}, will
be billed on a monthly basis and will be due upon presentment,

I suggest that we start with an initial advance of $200.00. Upon our receipt of this
amount we will apply it against our first invoice in payment of costs and attorneys’ fees
incurred. I assure you that we will endeavor to work efficiently to keep costs as low as
possible without jeopardizing the quality of our legal services.

This letter is supplemented by our Standard Terms of Engagement for Legal
Services, attached, which are incorporated in this letter and apply to this matter and other
matters for which you engage us.

If you have an accountant, financial advisor, or family members with whom you
would like us to be able to share information about your planning, there is also a place at
the end of this letter to list those persons. If you do not wish to have us share information
about your planning, then please leave that section blank. You may revoke this consent at
any time.
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In addition, by signing this engagement letter, you are cottfirming that the legal
services that Clark Hill is providing to you in this er any future matter will not render you
insolvent such that you are unable to pay any known or reasonably expected creditors. We
are unable to assist you in glving away or structuring your assets in a manner that results
in you having insufficient assets available to meet your legal obligations.

One year after our last communication from you in this matter we will consider your
file inactive. After that time, we will be available to help you at any time you may request,
but we will no longer be responsible for sending you follow up letfers or reminders about
ocutstanding issues.

We appreciate your business. If you have any questions or concerns, please do not
hesitate to telephone me to discuss them.

Sincerely,

CLARK HILL PLC

Enclosure O

Shawna Heuer hereby accepts and agrees to be bound by the foregoing.

Date: A‘a‘-g. QME)?,O/[Z

Siéna’cure

Until further written notice is given, the attorneys and staff of Clark HIll PLC may
discuss my estate, tax, and business planning, as well as other matters involved in my legal
representation by Clark Hill, with the following persons who are acting on my behalf. i

Zidon V. Chittek Carlgne G ClacttieK
H&\CHT e leams

CLARK HILL O
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2016 Hourly Rates

Attorney Darra Raynden
Attorney Michells Tran
Attormey Ely Sluder
Diane Morgan

Jeanne Harris

Leslie Lopez

Contact Information

Darra Rayndon
Michelle Tran
Ely Sluder
Diane Morgan
Jeanne Harris
Leslie Lopez

CLARK HILL

204859865.1 09992/0999%-030018

480.822.6746
430.822.6745
480.822.6751
480.822.6743
480,822.6747
480.822.6748

390.00/hour
360.00/hour
345.00/hour
200.00/hour
155.00/hour

80.00/hour

drayndong@clarkhill.com
mtran@elarkbill.com
esluder@olarkhifl.com
dmorgan@elarkhill.com
jharris@elarkhill.com
Hopez@eclarkhill.com
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Estate of Denny J. Chittick

CLARK HILL , .

L R Y.

__FiiE LABEL REQUEST FORM

Which of the following barcoded Inserts do you need?
Ix] correspondence
]: Drafts
1] tLegal Authority
[j Memoranda
Attorney Notes
E Misc, & Extra Coples

1 Pleadings
[[] Research
(%] client Documents
%] oOther (please specify) _INDEX OF DOCUMENTS
F__l; NO FOLDER REQUIRED T - T T
[ ] NOINSERTS REQUIRED

File Location (Pittsburgh Files ONLY) - - ——
e i e = e e A i
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" CLARK HILL o) R e
e A T
NEw BUSINESS INTAKE FORM Kelly &, o?:e}b, 3§m

A. Selectone:

|

New Client
To identify related clients, please link this new client to client #

1s New Client an Insurance Company?  if yes, insurance Conflicts Committee member must approve this
opening.

New Matter for an Existing Glient
Client Name: DenSco Investment Corporation Client#: 43820

B. Client Information (ALL fields required for new clients only):

True Legal Namae:
Client name for billing {if different from true legal name}:

Attentlon;,
Address:
City: ) State: Zip: Country:
Contact Name [A/R purposes): Contact Email Address:
Contact Telephone No.:
MAICS Code: Industry Description;
Client Originator Timekeeper:
Single originator, list name:
Shared origination, list names and %:
C. Matter information:
Practice Group Assigned: Corporate Matter Type:

Nature of Assignment [Explain In sufficlent detall the nature of the work):
Wind down of businass matters

Matter Name: ' Pusinegs_Wind cowin

Matter Contact Name and Emall Address {A/R Purposes, if different from Cllent Contact):
Contact Name: Contact Email Address:

Contact Telephone No.:

Referred By: N/A - Existing Client Referral Name:

Matter Originator Timekeeper {must be different from Client Qriginator if being assignad):
Single originator, list nama:
Shared orlgination, list names and %:

Client Responsible {Billing) Timakeeper (seaior level timekeeper only):
Primary client responsible timekeepey, list name:  David Beauchamp .
shared cllent responsible timekeepers, list names and %:;

supervising Timekeeper (senior level timekeeper in practice group for type of work being performed}):
Single supervising timekeeper, list name. David Beauchamp
Shared supervising timekeepers, list namas and %:

Attorney(s) Assigned to perform the worlk; David Beauchamp

June 2016
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DenSco Investment Corporation

CLARK HILL a0 (S)

Wind down
D. Billing Information:

SILLING SPECIFICS:

Estimate total fee billings for this matter [REQUIRED): $ |20 K

Billing Arrangement: Hourly Billing Frequency: Monthly
Retalner (REQUIRED FOR ALL NEW CUENTS), specify amount: $ nfa existing client

If fixed fee, specify amount: S nfa

WIIl the matter be billed in .25 hour increments? Yes[ | No[¥]

Which state will receive benefit of services performed: Other

Wil the matter be billed at rates other than standard? If yes, please complete and attach  Yes E_] No Izl
the approved Negotfoted Rate Request Form.

Does Negotiated Rate 2pply to ali matters for this client? Yes EI No E

Will the matter be billed electrenically? Yes[] No
If yes, please provide the name of the ebilling system:

Task Codes Required: Yes[] No E Activity Codes Requlred: ves[ | No
Task Cote: Selsct One Activity Code: Select One )
Are there spedial billlng guidelines? Yes[ ] No ©

If yas, please attach a copy of hilling guidelines.

Client Reference No.:

WHERE TC SEND INVOICE IF DIFFERENT FROM CLIENT ADDRESS IN SECTION B ABOVE:
Is this matter to be billed to an address other than the client level address? Yes [} No

If yes, please provide billing address and contact information. Please attach additional sheet if there are more
billing addresses. {ALL fields reguired)

Name:

Attention:

Address:

City: State: Zip: Country:

E-MAIL?
Does Cllent want invoice to be e-mailed? If yes, please provide g-maif address n/a

-2- . June 2016
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DenSco Investment Corporation
43820
% CLARI{ HIL Wind down

PAYOR {Who wili pay our invoices? List Payor nome and percentage):

Payor Name: payor Percentage: 100
Payor Name: Percentage:
Payor Name: Percentage:
Payor Name; Percentage:
Payor Name; Percentage:
Payor Name: Percentage:

INSURANCE COMPANY AS PAYOR:
Will any of the fees be paid by an Insurance company, either currently or

potentially in the future? Yes D No
if yes, please provide the name of the Insurance company:

Is any portlon of the fees being paid by this payor subject to any agreement that
has conflict provisions that have not yet been approved by the Insurance
Conflicts Committee? Yes[ ] No [¥]

if yes, Insurance Conflicts Committee must review and approve this matter opening.

MULTIPLE REPRESENTATIONS:
If this matter Is being billed as part of a multi-client representation {ses User's Guide for explanation), and the
Client/Matter identified on this form are the Primary, please check this bos: [ ]

If Client/Matter identified on this farm are not the Primary, please identify both the Primary Client Number and
(D Primary Matter Number to which to link this new Client and Matter:

Primary Client #: Primary Matter #:

E. Risk Assessment:

Conflicts
Yeos No
1. [_—_] Has a check been run for any client, issue or business conflict and all involved partners using the
Firm’s methods?
If not, explain why:
2. E Is there any potential for a client, issue or business conflict? f yes, explain how they were

resolved (waiver letter or other written documentation evidencing resolution of potential conflict
must be attached): '

By representing this client, does Clark Hill thereby also represent any other entity(s} within this
client's corporate tree? If yes, contact General Counsel to obtain approval to proceed.

Is this client a party to a Joint Defense Agreement for this new matter or is such an agreement
likely for this matter? If yes, please refer to the User's Guide for proper submission of conflict
check with this form.

E B

|
3. [
]

Billing_and Collection

3. D [E] Engagement letter attached, {REQUIRED FOR ALL NEW CHENTS)
6. [:] E] Has an Qrbis credit report been requested from Donna Kielar, reviewed and attached as
applicable?
If not, explain why: existing client
NOTE; An Orbis cradit report is veguired for any new client that Is a business or organization; NOT required for an
Cp individual or start up company.
-3 June 2016
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DenSco Invastmeant Corparation Q

CLARK HILL s

Wind down
Praeservation and Discovery Need

Yes No

7. D Is this an investigation, a litigatloh matter, or a matter that has the potentlal to lead to litigation?
if yes, the client may need to be Informed of and/or assisted with specific preservation
obligations. Please attach documentation sufficlent to demonstrate the cllent’s awareness of and
compliance with any preservation requiraments (internal hold policles, correspondence or other
communication between Clark Hill and client, etc.).
If no notice given, explain why:

8. [ [¥] will this matter require discovery or other document review and/or management? [f yes, itls
lkely that electronically stored Information {ESI} will need to be evaluated for preservation,
collection, and production purposas, The Discovery Services Group will contact you to discuss
action steps for this data.

Other

. [

o U

Does a Firm lawyer or relative have an equity interest or management position with the client? If
yes, please attach the approptiate authorization documentation. Refer to CHIPP Section 9.1

1s the Firm substituting for other counsel whose services have been terminated?

Is the Firm serving only as local counsel in this matter?

FE &

F. Approvals:

D 6 Pl David Beauchamp 81232016

Client Responsible Timekeeper, Signed Print Name Date

John Ermanni @
Practice Group Leader or Delegate, Signed Print Name Date

Additional Approvals Reguired:

For Contingent or Pra Bono Matters, applicable Committee Member must sign;

For Shared Timekeeper Arrangements, Applicable PGLs and Sharing Timeksapers must sign;

If represanting entities within this Client’s corporate tree {if answer to Risk Assessment O3 is yes) GC must sign;

if Insurance Conflicts Committee is required to review this form, member of Insurance Conflicts Committee must sign;
For Engagement Letter Walvers, GC must sign;

For Retainer Walvers, Financial Operations Manager and PGL/PGD must sign.

Signed Print Name Date

G, Form Completed By (print name): Lindsay Grove

-4= June 2015

CH_0018000



DenSco Investment Comporation
CLARK HILI, e
Wind down

FILE LABEL REQUEST FORM

Which of the followlng barcoded Insetts do you need?
z] Correspondence
¥] Drafts

Legal Authority

Memoranda

Attorney Nates

Misc. & Extra Copies

Pleadings

Research

Client Documents

Other {please specify}

£

EY

[] NO FOLDER REQUIRED
[} NOINSERTS REQUIRED

File Location (Pittsburgh Files ONLY)

ForRecords Use Only L .
Client #: Matter#: . Date Records Recelved:,
Records Initlals: Date Linked by Conflicts: . Conflicts Initials; .

-5. June 20156
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New Business Intake Page 1 of 3™ )

Client (Trua Legal)

43820 DenSco Investment Cotp

oration
Address DenSco Investment Corporation
Attr: Denny Chittick
6132 W. Victoria Place
Chandler, AZ 85226
Gy Chandler  State AZ
Zip B5226

A L T IR M L N R e o L o

1482  Bemschamp, bavid G,

Chent Responsible

Report Type O Al Relatlongiups Report (@
Direct Conflicts Report
Nature of Matter wind dewn of business matters

Conflicr Check Type

Conflicts Found?

None of the above

@ Yes O No

e,

No. of Conflicts
Reports

(ERHLst RamelGempanyass

1 |The william and Helene Alber Family Trust Adverso Atcapt 1
> iBrinkman Family Trust Adverse tAccept 1
3 [Cralg & Tomiz Brown Living Trust » A Adverse Accept 1 .
':_1 Desert Classic Invesiments, LLC Adverse Accept i
& JBunger o Steven G. Adverse  JAccept 1
i3 |Steven G. and Mary E Bunger Estate Adverse lAccept 1
1 |Burdett _ T mtheny  |Adverso  [Accept [
£ Burkhart __ i T Kannen Adversa _ tAceept 1
5 " [Bush T R Adverse _ lAccept i
12 Buller Mary Adverse  Accept 1
J1 |gutler Van Adverse [Accept 1
42 [Thomas & Sara Byme Living Trust Ardverse IAccept 2
13 _|Cero McDowell Revocable Trust — Adverse Accapt 2 .
J4 [Erln Carrick Trust Adverse _ JAccept 2
1. jGreichen P, CarTick Trust Adverse Aceept 2
16 |Cate, Jr. [Avarill J. Adverse Accapt 2
17 larden & Nina Chittick Famlly Trust | Adverse Actapt 2
13 Mo & Sam Chitlick Family Trust Adverse Accept 2
12 jCohen Revocable Trust . iAdversa pt 2
20 |Cohen R . _ _[Ellesn Adverss t 2
Davis Glen Adverse Actept 2

hitp://chvgmetastormpr/SmartClient-Elite-CH/Defanlt.aspx?FolderID=050006000000000... 8/2224318018002



New Business Intake Page2 of 3
2Z |Detota ]Scott D, Adverse Accapt 3
A |[Duks Tt _!f\my lAdverse JAccepl 3
24 |Dirks Bradlay Adverse Accept 3
26 |Dupper Russ H, Adverse Accept 3
26 |Todd F. Einck Trust Adverse Accept 3
27 |Four Futvres Corporation Adversa Accapt 3 —
208 |Grant Stacy Adversa JAccept 3
24 [Michael & Diang Gumbert Trust Adversa IAccept 3
20 [Hafiz Nihad Adverse \Accept 3
31 |Robert & Elizabeth Hahn Family Trust Advarst Accapt 3
32 |Hahn — Robart Adverse [Accapt 4
53 [Hey Relph Adverso lAccapt 4
a4 [Hickman B Dala Adverse  |Accapt 4
25 [Hood e Craiy Adverse Actapt 4
25 [Howze Doris Adverse iAccept l4
37 [Imdieke Revocable Trust . Bdverse lAccept 4
3¢ |Imdleke Brian Adverse Accapt 14
32 Llelten ) James Advetse Accept 4
@ Fones ___|Michael _ |Adverse  |Acospt 4
A falser T [Ratph Agvorse  [Accept 15
A2 jkent IMary Advarss \Aocept 5
43 Paul A. Kent Family Trust . Adverse Accept B
41 lKoehler Robert Z. Adversa __|Accept |5
45_|LeRoy Kope! Revocable Living Trust Adverse Accapt 5
46 [Kopel Lermma Adverse Accapt 5
afepel o Roy  iAdverse Accept 5
44 [Howzs Lee Adverse JAcoapt i4
59 |Bush Fay Adversd Accept 1

E o ATprotal TYPE S B Sltned Dnle e e | SIS R R I e S e
Conflicts DBH5/2018 !Approva_Conflicts _
JWELCH Conflicts 0BM5{2016 |Approve_Senior,_Conflicds
TDBEAGGHAMP Atlorney 082212016 ]ﬁp;)__myevcgrlﬂiqts_Report
Finalization
225152,
225753,
225154,
225755,
Search Batch iD 225756

NISE A G e Ny S At R R S SR
08/1672016 1243 |Successtully created prospective search batch
dlarkhilplciwalchioy 225752,225753,225764,225765,225756).

o i F o = T} !
i . T T s . 5 3

AR PR L T NG Y AN TR T T P %‘ LS TRVECEIRES ‘5 s o prae s eer 2L
!\Ioat'es%ct\f%'r N .(5. REN ﬂ.sn g_&%@v 3 -, R :‘i_tﬁ. et Sgdti aals

Froms: clarkhillplcygrove
Sent: 08/22/2018 0402 PM
Stages Form_Entras

All names have been pre-validates by ¥ Klish, Thank you.

O

http://chvgmetastormpr/SmartClient-Elite-CH/Defauit.aspx?FolderID=09000000000000... 8/2204419018003
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New Business Intake Page 1 of 2
NBIEGD4.
Chieat {True Legal) 43820 DenSeo Investment Corp
ortion
Address DenSco Investment Corposation
Attr: Denny Chittick
6132 W. Victoria Place
Chandler, AZ 85226
City Chandler State AZ
Zip 85226

Clieni Responsible 1482 Beauchamp, David G,

A T R TR
a’ttg?a“ftla'sig.

et o T AT

Report Type (O Al rehtionships Report (®

DBirect Conflicis Report

Nzture of Matter Wiap up of business

Conflict Check Type  None of the above

Conflicts Found? ® ves O o No. of Conflicts

Reports 3

2 e L A
1 eiskopf \Advarse [Accept H
2 |Welskopt Thomas D. Adverse Accepl 1
3 [Wellman Family Living Trust Adverse coept 1
4  {Wellman Garol Advarse ceepl 1
5 gliman Michael _|Adversa Accepl 1
6 |B &G Wenlg Family Trust Adverse Accept 1
7 [Wenig Brian M. IAdverse Accept 1
8 [Wenig Cafla Couch IAdvierse Accept 1
g |Wenig _ Mark Alan lAdverse Accepl 1
10 Wenig Debbie Ellen Adverse|Accept 1
il [Zones — IMichael Advesse Actapt 2
iz lAngel's Investors LLC Adverse Accept 2
13 frikdiz Yusef Adverse Accept 2
14 18LL Capital, LLC Adverse Accept 2
15 [uchtel Bamy Adverse Accept 2
16 |LJL Capltal, LLC [Adverss LAccopt 2
14 [uchtal ” Landon Adverse Ancept 2
18 [Brinkman Robert Adverse Accepl 2
1 [Smith Tom Adverse Accept 2
20 IDavis Jack J, Advarse Accept {
21 |Griswold Russel] Adverse AstEDt 3

http://chvgmetastormpt/SmartClient-Elite-CH/Default.aspx?FolderID=09000000000000.., 8220418018005



New Business Intake Page2of2® »  *

Z_lsiin {Branson lAdverse Accept ]
23 {Hughes Bill Bryan Adverse Accapt 3
24 [Hughes . Judy Kay [Adverse JAccapt 3
26 lLocke Willlam F, Adverse Accept 3
26 |Preston David M. Adverse Acoept 3
2f iLeo [Tery JAdverse Accept 3
2t [McArdls Jim Adverse Accapt 3
23 IStefling Denald E. _ Adverse  lacoept 3

Y LI
- ““?é: ad

P A A Uy G | B R Sidnad: DEB RIS EhEREn
JWELCH Conﬂicls 08/1{5,2016 Approve_Conflicts
JWELCH Condlicts 01572018 |Appreve. Senior_Conflicls
DBEAUCHAMP Atlarnay 0872212035 Approve,_ Confllcts_Report ]
Finzlization
25774,
225775,

Search Batch ID 225776

s
SRR t»:?

SN A Dw ot fad

ES ATl 3

l .

4

ﬁ ﬁ{- n '_‘“ i ‘q_-i"-' .. e
Se230 amz 3}

From: cackhilipidigrove
Sentt 08/15/2016 10:57 AM
Stage: Foumn Entries

Please link to NBIEEOA0S
Pastios # 1-17 have been pre-validated by K. Rlisch. Parties 18 on are new names to be conflicted.

Thank you.

Frozm: clarkhiliplcjwelch
Seqt: 08/1572016 0220 PM
Stage: Conilcts Clerk

MEIEG0435: We were unatla to validate the namas Tem Smith or Jim Mcardle, so they were run as Is. If you lajer obtaln more Information ebout these pasties, pleas
submil & supplemental if necessagy.

3

http://chvgmetastormpr/SmartClient-Elite-CH/Default.aspx?FolderID=09000000000000... /2272916018006



New Business Intake Page 1 of 3

T o e AR e A e e e A i €
L B T L Tl e e UL R P D L R SO R
R R e Ep NG A TR
Chent {True Legah) 43820 DenScolnvestrnent Corp
gration
Address DenSco Investment Corporation
Attrc Denny Chittick
6132 W. Victorla Place
Chandler, AZ 85226
City Chandler  State AZ
Zip 85225

Chient Responsible 1482 Besuchamp, David G.

P T R e L LD
RN

A

"
SR e T Y

Fe aan ik e PR

Repoit Type € All Relationships Report (@)
Direct Conflicts Report

Nature of Matter Wrap up of buslness
Conflict Check Type  None of the above

Conflicts Found? No, of Conflicts
@ Yos O No Reports 4

D 2] ARG OMPE HEe

I lLawson Robert F. verss  tAcgept 1

2 _{Wayne J Ledet Revocable Trust Adverse  fAccept 1

2 _|Ledet e fWNayna . Adverse  jAceept 11
4_|The Lee Group, Inc., . IAdverss  lAccept 1
5 |Cent _ . e L5an Kdversa _ |Accept |1

5 [lent e Manuel A, Adverse [Accept 1

7 jlLocke Jean Adversa |Adcept 1

% IlJames & Leslay McCoy Trust {Adverse  lAccept 1

::; Tha Marvin G Miller & Pat S Miller 1989 Trust IAdverse Accept 1

40 JLF Fund Marvin Mifler & Pat S Millar — Adverse  |Accept 1

11 [Moss Famlly Trust Adverse  |Accept 2
12 [Moss Kaylens Adverse  tAcoepl 2
13 IMuscat Family Trust } Adverse  lAccept 2
iq IMusat | Vincent!, ~—_ iAdverse lAccept 12
15 |Museat T - Shamy M. |Adverse Accept 2

106 |Non-Lethal Defensz, Inc. N Adverse  |Accept |2
17 |Dubay e David Karl Advarse  lAccepl 2

i8 |Odenthat Brian Adverse  -Accept 2

15 [Odanthal ~_ . . ... - ke [Adverss Acoept 12
AU |Page Jalene _ ddierse  lacdept 12 .
2iPaxten _ _ Malers (Advérse  JAccept 13

http://chvgmetastormpr/SmartClient-Elite-CH/Default.aspx?FolderID=09000000000000... 8/2274818018007



New Business [ntake Page 2of £ s

Pleeace oL N ariend adverse  lApeept |3 "
73 [DorAmn Davis LivingTrust =~ 7~ 7 T jAduerse | IAccept |3
aPhaenFamy st __ 1 7 "|adverse lAceept 3
7% {Phalen e I Jalfrey J. Adverse  |Accept 3
76 {Preston Revocabls Living Trust . Adverse __ lAceapt I35
ZReonex o . __ _lpetera | Adverse  lAccept 3
28 {Sailire, LLG Adverse  iAccept 3
29 (Shariff - Stawart W. Adverse  |Accept 3
0 |Sherff i - Willam Stewart___|Adverse _ |Accept |3
3 |sanders JGAND Adverse  |Accepl | [4
22 |8chiloz Mary _ Adverse  |Acoept |4
23 15chloz _|Stanley Advarse  |Accept 4
24 {Schloz Famliy Trust - - Adverse  |Accept |4
25GB12LLC Adverse  JAccept 14
35 |Scroggin _ —_— lAnnstta Adverse  |Accept 4
7 [Scoggin _ Michael thdverse  |Agcept 14
39 [Siegford Judith E. Adverse  JAccept 14
39 1Siegford e Gary D. Advarse _ jAccept 4
A0 [CarysnSmih Trust I Adverse Accept 4
o1 jMcKenna Smith Trust . e Adverse_ JAccept 14
47 \Branson & Saundra Spath Trust | (Adversa  |Accept &
43 1switz *” =7 7 INancy Adverse _ lAccept {5
Aq [Long Thme Hetdings, TLC ™~ T L Advorse IAccept {5
faiswitz e wram Adverse  Accept 8
aThompson ___ _ _ _ ... _ . . . _[Cerslee _ _ |Adverss Accept |5
47 {Thompson — . (Sary Adverse  lAccept 5

Trainor . James R. \Adverse lAccept 6

fTutle T T T T T [Stephen Adverse TAccept 15 _
Underwood ade IAdverse  Accept 5

R I

e R LA TR R e (g AR 2] ey PRl R A e r e e X L 08

Approval History

AERGVETASRRIE {Apriovals
JWELCH Conlicls 08152016

JWELGH Conflicts N&FTG/2016 Approve_Senior_Confiicls -
DBEEAUCHAMP Altnrney 082212016 {Approve_Confilcts_Report
Finalizaﬂm; T ) T ’
225762,
225763,
225764,
225765,
Search Batch ID 225765

e I0BMS/2018 02:02  |Successfully created prospective search oatch
cladhiliplciwalchipy (225762,225763,225764,225765,225766).

From: cladhTipic\igrove
Sent: 08/15/2016 10:36 AM
Stage: Foemn_Entries

All parties pre-validated by K Klsch
birk to NBIES0405,
There will ba another confBct check to follow with additional names as well,

htip:/fchvgmetastormpr/SmartClient-Elite-CH/Default.aspx ?FolderID=09000000000000.., 8/2225418018008
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EXH.NO.___ "] 09

2~ Z—)9

Keily 5. Oglesby CR 50178

3

EX!-; NO.’iﬁa—

Message

From: Tran, Michelle M. [/O=CLARKHILL/OU=EXCHANGE ADMINISTRATIVE GROUP Yooty s.ﬂo;!esh;“ 60178
(FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=MTRAN)

Sent: 8/10/2016 8:06:50 AM

To: Beaucharnp, David G. {dbeauchamp@clarkhill.com}]

Subjact: Fwd: Estate of Chittick

Attachments: Tran_Ltr.pdf

Importance:  High

Lesley, please print the attachment twice, one for me and one for David. Deliver David's copy to him. | can't getit
open. Thanks!!i

Sent from my Verizon 4G LTE smartphane

--—-—QOriginal message ---—--

From: "Scott A. Swinson"” <scott@swinsonlawaz.com>
Date: 8/9/16 12:23 PM (GMT-07:00)

To: "Tran, Michelle M. <MTran@ClarkHili.com>

Cc: Rob Brinkman <rbrinkman®yahoo.com>

Subject: Estate of Chittick

Ms. Tran

Please see attached letter and Request for Notice regarding the above referenced estate.

Scott A. Swinscn

SCOTT A. SWINSCN, P.A

2400 E. Arizona Biltrnere Circle
Suite 1300

Phoenix, AZ 85016
602-957-6740 Office
602-522-3946 Fax

This e-mal, including any attachments, may contain confidential and/or proprietary information. If the reader of this e-
mail

is not the intended recipient, or his or her authorized agent, the reader is hereby notified that any dissemination,
distribution

or copying of this e-mail is prohibited. if you have received this e-mail in error, please notify the sender by replying to
this

message, followed by deleting this message immediately.

CH_0009219



SCOTT A. SWINSON, P.A.
A PROFESSIONAL ASSOCIATION

FILE N, 1139.00

SENT VIA E-MAIL TO MTRAN@CLARKEILL.COM

Aungust 9, 2016

Michelle Tran, Esq,
CLARK HILL, P.C.
14850 N. Scottsdale Road
Suite 500

Phoenix, AZ 85254

Re: DenSco Investinent Corporation, Ine.
Dear Ms, Tran:

I represent Rob Brinkman as an investorfereditor of Densco Investments Corporation. He has
forwarded to me the various e-mails regarding Densco generated by Mr. Beauchamp. From sote
of the statements Mr. Beauchamp has made in hi, e-mails, it sounds as though your firm represented
either Mr. Chittick and/or Densco prior to Mr. Chittick’s death.

i this is in fact the case, I would appreciate a confirmation from your firm that you have considered
the potential of a conflict of interest in your representation of the Chittick estate and you
determination that no conflict exists,

If you have any questions regarding this malter, please do not hesitate to contact me.

Respectfully,
SC T}wﬁqw, PA~
o X .V”-f; '
=< ,{ﬁ: LG s e =
',ﬁg{mt{
SAStham
Enclosures

2400 E. ARIZONA BILTMORE CIRCLE, SUITE 1300 » PHOENIX, ARIZONA 88016-2155
(602) 857-6740 » FAX (602) $22.3946
E-MAlL: SWINSONSAGAZBAR.ORG

CH_0009220
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Scott A. Swinson (Bar No. 9321)
SCOTT A. SWINSON, P.A.

2400 B. Arizona Biltmore Circle
Suite 1300

Phoenix, Arizona 85016

{602} 957-6740
swinsonsa@azbar.org

Attorney for Rob Brinkman

IN THE SUPERIOR COURT OF THE STATE OF ARIZONA
IN AND FOR THE CCUNTY OF MARICOPA

n the matter of the estate of,

. NO. PB2016-051754
DENNY J. CHITTICK,
REQUEST FOR NOTICE
Deceased.

S g L gt S S

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN pursuant to A.R.S. §14-3204 that ROB
BRINKMAN, by and through his attorney undersigned, having a
financial or property interest in the above referenced estate,
requestse notice of any order or filing pertaining to the estate be

sent t¢ her/his undersigned attorney.

DATED this ﬁziq% day of August, 2016.

.By: J/;;:' fo'.;dﬂzdz;zikglﬁﬂh"“

rizona Biltmore Circle
Suite 1300

Phoenix, Arizona 85016-2195
Attorney for Rob Brinkman

CH_0009221

O



Yo \a: LS Y- T Y N -

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17]
18
19
20
21
22
23
2%
25
26

27

28

A COPY of the fgregoing
MAILED this 27% day of
August, 2016, to:

Michelle Tran, Esq.

CLARK HILL, P.C.

14852 N. Scoittsdale Road

Suite 500

Phoenix, A% 85254

Attorney for Personal Representative

G\ Contract\1139. 00\Hot-Raq. pro}

CH_0009222
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EXH. NO. 10
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Kelly 8. Oglesby CR 50178

Message
From: Tran, Mithelle M. [fO=CLARKHILL/OU=EXCHANGE ADMINISTRATIVE GROUP
(FYDIBOHF235P DLT)/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=MTRAN]
Sent: 8/10/2016 11:46:47 AM
To: Scott A. Swinson [scott@swinsonlawaz comy]
cc: Rob Brinkman [rbrinkman@yahoo.com]; Beauchamp, David G. [dheauchamp@clarkhill.com]
Subject: RE: Estate of Chittick
Scott,

Thank you for your letter. We are in the process of addressing this concern. Our immediate objective was to open the
probate so that there would be a party in place as Personal Representative with authority to act on behalf of the
Estate. | recommend that you file your Demand for Notice with the probate court so that suhsequent counsel for the
Estate, if and when that change occurs, is aware of and hound by your demand as well.

Michelle Margolies Tran

CLARK HILE PLC

14850 N Socitsdale Rd | Suite 500 | Scottsdale, Arizena 85254
480,822 6745 (direct) | 480,684 1168 (fax)}

mirap@clarihii.com | blo | www.cladkhill.com

Blmingham = Chicago « Delrojt « Grand Rapids « Lansing « Philadelphfa »
Phoenix = Fitisburgh » Princelon = Washinglon DC » Morgantowns Wilmington

From: Scott A. Swinson [maiito:scott@swinsonlawaz.com]
Sent: Tuesday, August 09, 2016 12:24 PM

To: Tran, Michella M.

Cc: Rob Brinkman

Subject: Estate of Chittick

Ms. Tran
Please see attached letter and Request for Notice regarding the above referenced estate,

Scott A Swinson

SCOTT A, SWINSON, P-A

2400 E. Arizona Biltmore Circle
Suite 1300

Phoenix, AZ 85016
602-957-6740 Office
602-522-3946 Fax

This e-mal, including any attachments, may cantain confidential and/or proprietary information, If the reader of this e-
mail

CH_0010228



is not the intended recipient, or his or her authorized agent, the reader 15 hereby notified that any dissemination,
distribution

or copying of this e-mail is prohibited. If you have received this e-mail in arror, please notify the sender by replying to
this

message, followed by deleting this message immediately.

CH_0010229



EXH. NO. Z } l

2-3-19

Kelly S, Oglasby CR 50178

CLARK HILL

eieia-ig
Kelly 5

e C912sby CR 5017g

Clark Hill pLC
14350 N. Seottsale Road
Sudte 500
Seottsdale, A 85254
Ryan J. Lorenz T 480,684,1100
T4B0.684.1167 F 480.684,1199
£480.684.1167
Ervall; Horenz@olarkhiloon clarkhill.com

=

Tune 22, 2017

Delivered via Certified Muil, return receipt requested,
and First Class Mail

Peter S, Davis

DenSco Receiver

Simon Consuiting, LLC

3200 N, Ceniral Avenus, Ste, 2460
Phoenix, AZ 85012

Re:  Arizona Corporation Commission v, DanSco Investment Corporation,
Maricopa County Superior Court Case Ne. CV2016-014142

Mt Davis:

Enclosed are two proofs of claims filed with your office as permitied by the court’s oxder
granting petition no. 19 in the above-reference litigation in which you are appointed receiver. We
have sent these proofs of olains to you by certified mail, retutn receipt and first class mail. On
the assumption that you receive both of these mailings, please mail us back the copies sent via
firgt class mail bearing a file-stemp of some kind for your office. We are including a SASE for
that purpose.

Very Truly Yours,

3

RYl:slo
Enel.



PROOF OF CLAIM

DanSco Invastment Corporation Recelvership
Casa No. CV 2018-D14142
Peter §, Davis, Recelver

This clatm 15 betng solldted pussuant te Petition No 18, A datmant Is a parsen entitled to assart a nght of payment or clalm
agalnst DanSco Investment Corparation or agalnst any Recalvarshlp Assat, For additional Information, please access the
Recetver's website ut denscomecelverd podaddysites.com o denseolnyestment com, or cohtact the Recetver in wirting st the

address below,
[l Replaces
Chackhera lfthis Clalm: [ Amends A previousty flad clatm dated:
[ 1 supplements
Claimant information:
Nama: ARKHILL LG * URGENT MATTER *
Address! ""“ R’“"“ "’“‘"‘E el Rt 600 CLAYV: FORIV] NIUST BE PROVIDED
Soollsdals, A7 85954 TO THE RECEIVER ON OR BEFORE
Emal;  FregtRillon JUNE 80, 2017
Telephone: _aessitor
" NONINVESTOR CLALV] '*

A Non-Investar CIaVm 15 & clalm that does NOY, arlse from the placement of oan of the ClAIMERY's own fnds With Dansco
invesiment Corporation pursuant to Confldential Private Offering Memoranda.

Basis fop Your Cla it

[C] Administrativg €laim related to costs ar [1Goods Purchased

expanses Incurred on of aiter August 18, [X] Services Perfonued
2016 on bahalf of the Recewar or DenSea 1] Money Loansd
Investment Corporation {otfer than [AWages, Salarles, and Compensation
Adminlstrativa Claims of the Recelver or the . [l Other Form of Contract
Racaivar's agents) [ 0ther Typa of Ciaim

Betalls of Your Clalmg )

Relevant Datas: From: _June 1, 2016 To: _Adgust 17, 2018

Is Your Claim Secured? A Secured Clalm Is secured by a proparty parfectad lian op Recejvership Assaty, An Unsecured
Clalm s a Claim agalnst DanSca Investment Corporation or 2 Recelvership Asset other than an Investor Clajm,

11 hava & Spoured Clalm (Attach Evidence of Sectity). Securad Claim Amount:  $

] 1 have an Ynsecured Claln, Unsecured Clalm Amounts  $ 53,620.00
Description: Please provida below all refevant detals ragarding the basis for your elalm, such as the type of goods
purchasad or services parformed, the purpose of the lean, the natura of the cantraet, ete

giarKHrll provided leasl sewioes ta DensCo !nvesmag’: Corm, InJuna. July, August, Saatember 2[}18 The werk oet

Do menta on of You lalm'
Please attach coples of all documents 1 suppurt of this caim, such as Invoices, statements, cottracts, notes, guarantees,
Judements, evidenca of security, or any other dacuments esteblishing the indebtedness of DénSco wvestment Corperation

or tha Recelvership Estate to you, Do not file orlginal dasuments with your Glaltm. If a supporting document s not avallable,
you must attach an explanation as to why tha document Is net avallable.

CLAIMIANY OATH

| have personal knowledge of the facts set forth abova snd | declare, under the penalty of perjury,
that the abeva informatien Is true angd corract.

Mame (Print):_Ryan J. Lorenz . Signature! Date:_,June 21, 2017
Date:

Name {Print): Signatura:

Provide your completed and slgned Proof of Cialm and coples of ail dacttments supporting your clalm.
to the Recalver oi or befora June 80, 2017,
PLEASE MAILTO: DenSco Recewer
Sirron Constilting, LC
3200 North Cantra] Avanue, Stite 2460
Phoenix, Artzong 85012




Affidavit of Ryan L;orenz

STATE OF ARIZONA. )

) 8.
Maricopa County )

Ryan Lorenz, first duly sworn, upon his oath, deposes and states as follows:
1. 1 am over the age of nineteen years, am competent to give sworn testimony, and
have personal knowledge of all matters set forth in this affidavit,

2. I am a 1999 graduate of Crelghton University School of Law and was admitted to
practice before courts of the state of Arizong in 1999,

3. In 2002, 1 was admitted to practice before the courts of the state of Neveda. 1 have
also been admitted to practice before the United States Distriet Court for the Districts of Arizona,
Nevada and Colorado; the United States Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuity the United
States Supreme Court; and a dozen tribal coutts in Arizona,

4, I have never had my privilege to practice suspended or terminated. 1 have never
been subject to discipline by any court.

5. I am familiar with the requitement of reasomablencss of aitorneys’ fees as
provided by ER 1.5, Rule 42, Arizona Rules of the Suprems Court, I am also familiar with
houtly rates, billing practices, and the requirement to docnment and communicate accurately and
completely the amount an attorney is billing and justification for such billing,

6. 1 am g member in the firm of Clark Hill PLC (“Firm™) and have been with the
Firm singe 2009. David Beanchamyp is a member of the Fimm in its corporate practice group and
has been with the firm since 2013. Mr, Beauchamp has been admitied to practice in Arizona
gince 1981,




7. In 2016 and earlier, the Firm represented DenSco Investment Corporation
{“DenSco”). The subject matter of the Firm’s work for DenSco was general business advice and
representation, . '

8. The Firm accrued unpaid attorneys’ fees for work performed by Mr. Beaucharap.
These fees were documented by invoices attached to this affidavit and reflect the time and offort
expended by Mr. Beauchamp. The Firm is owed $2,300 for 5.0 hours of attorney time at
$460/hour, for its invoices reflecting services in June and July 2016,

9.  After the death of DenSco’s prineipal, Denny Chittick, in July 2016, the Firm
transitioned the subjeet matter of its work {o advice and guidaoce to DenSco to assist it in
winding down its business, Through Auguest 17, 2016, Mr, Beanchamp expended 112.0 bhours on
intensive daily work to support and advise DenSeo. At $460/hour, the Firm accrued $51,520 in
billing. Prioz to August 18, 2016, the fotal of unpaid fees remaining owing is $53,820.

10.  On and afier August 18, 2016, the Firm continued to provide services to DenSeo,
but at 2 reduced level of intensity, due to the appoiniment of a receiver to manage its affairs, and
the retention by the receiver of separate counsel. During the remainder of August 2016, Mt
Beanchanp expended 48.8 hours at $460/hour for a fotal of $22,448 in fees.

11.  In September 2016, Mr. Beauchamp expended 3.1 hours in further assisting and
advising DenSce. Howsver, Mr. Beauchamp marked 1,8 hours as “no charge”, thereby reducing
the amount of fees incurred to 1.3 hours at $460/hour, for a total of $598. Between Augpst 18
and September 30, 2016, the Firm accrued $23,046.

12. Between pre-Aungust 18, 2016, and post-August 17, 2016 fees, the Fim’s
outstanding balance for work performed by Mr. Beanchamp is $76,866.



o6

13.  For purposes of asserting a claim against DenSco’s receivership estate, the Firm
has bifurcated these amounts info $53,826 for pre-Angust 18, 2016 and $23,046 for post-August
17, 2016 fess. The Firm claims that the Latter fees were inourred on behalf of DenSto and ars,
therefors, administrative in nature,

14.  Based upon my review of the time entries documented mnd discussed above, it is
my opinion, based upon my knowledge, experience and inferaction with other attorneys of
similar or greater experience that the fime quentities and hourly rate are reasonable. It is my
further opinion that the fee amounts discussed above are reasonable and incurred for DenSeco’s
pre- and post-receivership benefit,

Further affiant sayeth nanglit,

Dated this 21 day of June 2017.

CLARK HILL PLC

@n Lorenz
Member

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN TO before me this 21 day of June 2017, by Ryan Lorenz,

Aot e, Okt

Notary Public

as a member of Clatk Hill PLC.




o CLARK HITL &

ATTORNBYSE AT LAW

14850 N, Scottsdals Road, Smts 500

Scottsdaln, AZ 85254
Telephons (480) 634-1100
Pod 1D § 33-0425840
INVOICE
Invoice # 663658

Dendceo Imvestment Corporation dJuly 22, 2016
Attn: Denny Chittick Client: 43820
6132 W. Victoria Place Matter: 170145

Chandlexr, A2 85226

SnnsaEln =i ===

RE: PRusiness Matters

FOR SERVICES RENDERED through June 30, 2016
Total Sexrvices: 81,886.00 @

IRVOICE TOTAL $1,886.00

TOTAL AMOUNT DUR $1,886.00

e

-t tt

PAYABLE UPON RECEIRPTIN U 8 DOLLARS 6



Re

CLARK HHLL ryic

DenSco Investment Corporation
Business Matters

July 22, 2016

INVOICE # 663658

Page 2

06/02/16 DEB

06/03/1.6 DGB

06/24/16 DEB

06/28/16 DEB

DEB David @¢. Beauchamp

DETAILED DESCRIPTION OF SERVICES

Review and respond to emalls; prepare, work
on and revise detalled xesponge to ADFI and
send to D, Chittick for approval; work on
information to submit to ADFI.

Review and respond to geveral emalls
concerning supplemental £1ling with aDFI;
attach exhibits and file response. :

Review and respond to email f£xom D, Chittilck;
review document.

Review and respoud to email from D. Chittick;
review documents and HOD-1; ewail questlons
regarding HUD-1L.

TIMEEEEPER SUMMARY

4,10 hours at $460.00

n

.60

.BO

51,886.00

$1,886.00

roa

ER RN



CLAR§ HILL

ATTORNEYS AT EFATW

14850 N, Seottsdnle Road, Sute 500

Seottsdalo, AZ B5254
Telephous (480) £84-1100
Ted D # 330425840
INVOICE
Invoce # 666138
DenSco Investment Corpoxation august 10, 2016
Attn: Denny Chittiok Cliamnt: AR820
6132 W. Victoria Place Matter: 170145

Chandler, AZ 85226

Y e s=a =
= ] ==

e gt g 2 1

RE: Business Matters

FOR SERVICES RENDERED through July 31, 2016

Total Services: 8414,00
INVOICE TOTAL §414,00

07/22/16 663658 £1886.00
Qutstanding Balance: £1,886.00
TOTAL AMOONT DUR $2,300,00
=3 =—3 1§ t=3-f--§_1_]

EBAYARLE UPON RECEPTIN U.8 DOLLARS



1

(:Zi) CLARK HILL rrc.

DengSco Invegtment Corporation
Blusinegs Matters

August 10, 2016

INVOICH # 666138

Paga 2

DETATLED DESCRTIPTION OF SERVICES

07/30/16 DGEB Telephone call with R. Koehlexr and 8. Heuer
regarding transition after death of D.
Chittick; review recoxds and obligations,

07/31/16 DEB Review and respord to several emails concerning

meeting and questiong; revliew and respond to

emails from 8. Heuer regarding notice to
investors.

PIMEREEPER SUMMARY

Ci) DEB David G. Beauchamp 0.90 bours at $460.00 =

.80

$414 .00

$414.00




, CLARK HILL

ATTORNBYS AT LAW

14850 N Seottsdels Road, Suns 500
Beotiedals, Arrzopa R5254
“Teiephans (480) 684-1100

Fed XD # 880425840

INVOICE

DenSco Inveatment Corporation
attn: Pater Davig, Recelver
gimon Consulting

3200 N. Central Avenue

Buite 2460

Phoenix, AZ 85012

2 ot e e e

Tnvowcs# 670634
Beptember 12, 2016
Client: 43820
Matter; 307376

=g —d

RE; Businesg Wind Down

FOR SERVICES RENDERED thwough August 31, 2016

Total Sexrvices:

INVOICE TOTAL

PAYABLE UPON RRCEIFT I U § DOLLARS

$73,968.00

£73,968,00

-
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CLARK HILL rxyc.

Dengco Investment Coxporation
Buginess Wind Down

September 12, 2016

INVOICE # 670634

Faga 2

DETATIED DESCRIPTICN OF SERVICES

08/01/16 DGB Review emalls, documents, information and

08/02/16 DGR

08/03/16 DGB

chronology of events; telephone call with R.

Roehler; geveral telsphone calls with 8, Heuex;

prepara for and wmeeting with &. Heuer and R.

Eoehler regarding events, issues, procedure and
regquirements; review documents and informatien;

outline follow up and procedura; review emall
instructions from D, Chittick; outline ispues

and follow up; review information £rom DenSco's

£iles; woxk on follow up.

Review, woxrk on and respond to sgeveral emails
and text megsages; review notes, information
from 8., Heuer and work on information; meeting
with 9. Heuer and review documents and
information; review Menaged Bankruptoy Docketb
information and requirements; work on
information for status email to Investors;
outline email and research information for
email; work on requirements and outline
procedure for compliance; geveral telephone
calls with &, Heuer regarding information and

procedure; telephone call with office of R.
Koehlex.

Review, woxk on and regpond to sevexal emaills
and text mesfages; review notes and
information fxom 8. Heuar and R. Koehlex
regarding informatlon for wupdate to
Investors; work om and prepare detalled
update to Ianvestors; extended telephone call
with @, Clapper at AZ Securities Division;
geveral telephone calls wlth R, Roehlexr;
geveral telephone calls with 5. Heuer
regarding updated emaill to Investors, issues
and procedure; Treview message Lrom Y.
Fielding; telepbone call with Y. Fileldlng
regarding Investor information; work on and
revigse detailed update te Investors; transmit
detalled update.

8,10

6.70

7.80

wr st



CLARK HILL ric.

Dengco Investment Corporation
Buginegs Wind Down

September 12,

2016

INVOICE # 670634

Page 3

08/04/16 DGB

08/08/16 DGB

08/06/16 DGB

08/07/16 DGB

08/08/16 DEB

Review, work on and respond to several emails

and text wessages; extended telephone call with

8. Heusr regarding new informatlon from
Investors and AZ Securltles Division; work on
information for Investoxs, procedure and
requirements; review messagas from K, Johnson;

telephone call with K. Johnson regarding status

of statubtory Agent, notices and recquirements;
review correspondende from W. Coy of A%
Securities Division; work on inforwation £rom
VenSco £iles; work on information from
Invegtors; outline guestions to addresa.

Review, work on and regpond to meveral emadlas
and text mesmages; review documents and work
on igpues and information; sevexal telephone
callg with W. Coy regarding badkground
information, requirements, procedure aud
status of Nenaged Bankruptcy, igpues aud
procedurs; extended telephone call with 8.
Heuaer regarding DenSco documents, f£iles and
infoxmation; telephone call with W. Ledut
regarding status and procedure foxr investors;
prepare detailed atatus ewmail to all

Inveptors; work on and revise email; transmit
same.,

Review, work on and respend to several emalls
and text mepsages; review measages; review
documents and information from Investors;
reviaw DenSco files; xelay informatlon to
Investors from DenSco filles.

Review, work on and regpond to geveral emalls
and text mesdages; review messages; review
documents and information from Investors;
review information from DropBox.

Review, work on and respond to several emaille
and text wmesgsages; review geveral messages;
gaveral telephone calls with L. Shultz and
other investors doncerxning procedurs to take

action against 8. Menaged; review Subpoena From

AZ pecurities pDivision; forward Subpoena to
required parties; review Subpoena and outline
information and gources to obkailn informatilon
for subpoena; prepare for and extended
telephone call with W. Coy regarding Subpoena,

g.80

2.%0

wT
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CLARK HILL »zLc

Denfco Invesbment Coxporation
Business Wind Down

September 12, 2018

INVOICE # 670634

Page 4

08/09/16 DEB

08/10/16 DGB

08/11/16 DGB

Wednosday wmeeting, imsues and procedure;
prepare detailed email update to Investors to
respond to guestilons and provide update.

Review, woxrk on and xespond to several emalls
and text megsages; prepare for meeting with
AZ Securities bivision; work on imsues and
cutline follow up; review wessngeg; review
datailed mesaage from ¢, Gorman regarding
selection of Recelver, Menaged Bankruptcy:
extended telephone call with ¢, Goxrman
regarding’ possible Receivership; several
telephone calls with K. Merritt; telephone
call with P. Exbland; work on questiong from
Investors and respond to Invegtors wvia emall;
work on information and questions to discuss
concexning Subpoena with A% Ssouritiles
Divigion; review £iles and infoxmation.

Review, work on and respond to several emails
and text messages; review saveral messaged;
prepare for and meeting with 8, Heuer regardi
preparations for mesting with A% Becurities
Division; prepare and transmit letter to W. Coy
regaxding response to Subpoena; yeview megsages
Prom 8. Heuer; geveral telephone calls with 4.
Heuer regarding benfco boxes and proceduxe,
issues foxr meeting and schedule; meeting with
#. Heuer; meebing with W. Coy, G. Clapper and
B. Woarner {with 9. Heuer on phone) Lo digpauss
issues, background, Receivership, cash, interim
instructions, Subpoena and procedure; review
and work on boxes; review £ilings from Menaged
Bankruptcy.

Review, work on and respond to several emails
and text megsages; review documents and
information for loan payoffs; review files,
doouments and worxk on informatiom fox response
to Subpoena; conference call with 8. Heuer, J.
Polese and K. Merritt regarding documents,
privilege log and procedure; telephone call
with R. Eoehler regarding intformation £or loan
payoff, proceduxre and requirewents for DenSco
boxes in possession of R. Koehlex; review
Menaged Bankruptcey docket and issues; review
documents from Baukruptoy affecting DenSco;
raview negsages for loan payoifs..

7.80

2.50

7.90



CLARX HILL pic.

DenSco Investment Corporation
Business Wind Down

September 12, 2016

INVOICE # 670634

+ Page 5

08/12/16 PGB

08/13/16 DeB

08/14/16 DGB

08/15/16 DGERB.

Review, work on and respond to several emails
and text mesgages; review documents and
information; review mesgage from W. Coy;
telephone call with W. Coy regarding procedure
for Receliver, issues and regquirements;
conference call with J. Polese and K. Mexrritt
regarding procedure with DenSco boxep, mesponse
to Svbpoena from A% Securities Divigion,
pogeible receivables and reguirements and
stetus of Inveeptor f£ileg; revlew message from
G, Clapper; review megsage from B. Edwaxds of
MainStay Trust; telephone call with office of
B. Edwards; review detalled wessage from X.
Merritt; review message from offlce of J.
Polege; telephone oall with office of X,
Merritt; coordinate and work with the transfer
of Dengco boxes; review correspondence from J.
Polese; review and respond to questions from
Investors viel email; work on loan payoff
information. ]

Review emall; telephona call with K, Mexritt
regavding delivery of D. Chittick's computer,
additional £iles, Denfco mail and dociments;
review information and ocutline £ollow up.

Review, work on and regpond to several
enaile; work on information concerning loan

payoffsg; xeview speveral emails from Investors
and regpond to zame.

Review, work on and respond to several emalls
and text measages; review and work on documents
and Information; review mesgages and
information concerning loan pay-offs; sevexal
telephone conversationg with borrowers, escrow
agents and real estate agents; work om
information Eor loan pay-offs; review £iles and
docvments; work on information and izsuss for
regponse to subpoena from 2% Securities
Divigion; review measage from K. Merritt;
telsphone ¢all with office of K. Mexrritt;
arrange for transfer of D. Chittick'a computer;
review meggage from @, Clapper; telephone call
with G. Clapper regarding Forbearance
Agreement; arrange for copy for @. Clapper,

.90

5.80

ap e



CLARK HILL ric.

DenSco Investment Corporation
Business Wind Down

deptember 12, 2016

INVOICE # 870634

Page 6

08/18/16 DGB Review, work on and respond to geveral emails

08/17/16 DGB

4.20
and text messages; veview medsages; several

telephone conversatlons with escrow agents,
title ofificersg, real estate agents and
borrowexs; xeview £lles and documents; work on
information and issues for regponse to Subpoena
from AZ Securities Division; telephone call
with office of R, Koehler regarding payoff
calculation; review guestion f£rom Investor and
respond; review notes and informaticn from B.
Luchtel; telephone call with B, Imchtel,

Review, work on and respond to geveral emalls 11.70
and telephone wmegsages; review messages:

- peveral telephone calls with escrow agents,

borxowers and neal aptate agente; work on and
revige Declarxation; review POM and £lle )
documents to confimm information for
Declaration; sign and traunswmit Deolaratilon;
geveral telephone calls with 6. Clapper and W,
Coy; conference call with J. Polese and K.
Mexritt RE: motlon for and hearing to appoint
receiver; raeview documents; work on isgsues and
information cobncerning regponse to gubpoena
from A% Securities Division; review wessage
from L. Schultz; geveral telephone calls with
L, S8chultz regarding loan payoffs, issues and

procedure; follow up with emalls; review

Ca01/20456 ~
messaged from B, Edwards; telephone call with 08/17/2018
office of B. Edwards; review medsage Loxrm M.
Blackbird regarding loan payoffs; several Subfofal:
telephone calls with M. Blackbird regarding
loan payoffs; telephorme call with R. Koehlex $12.0hs @

rogarding loan payoffs; review mepgsage from P. $460/hr =
Crawford; telephons call with K. Merxitt

regarding loan payoffs and information; 854,620
talephone call with P, Crawford regarding Daedd

of Releage and documentation for releage.

08/18/16 DGR

Review, work on and respond to geveral emalls 12.50
and text medsages; review messages; sSeveral

telephone calls with W. Coy and G. Clapper 0RI1E/2018 -
regarding information for hearing; travel to 0813112016
and attend heaxing; work with @. Clapper
concerning loan files; discums issues and Subtotak
progedure with W. Coy; meeting with K.
Merritt to discuss attorney-client pxivilege 48.8 s @
log and regponse to subpoena fxom AZ $4600hr =
dacurities Divigion; work on lssueg and

$22 448

wpat




CLARK HILY: z.1.c.

DenSao Inveptment Corporatlion
Buginess Wind Down

September 12, 2016

INVOICE # 670634

Page 7

08/18/16 DEB

o8/20/16 DEB

08/21/1e DGB

08/22/16 DGCB

information for response to subpoena; several
telephone ozlla with ¥, Hall regarding
documentation for relsage of loan esorow;
review loan flles; insert loam payoff
information from R. Xoehler and transmit
payoff lnformation; review documents and
information from W. Coy.

Review, work on and remppond to several emalls
from Investors, borrowers and third parties;
review several messaged; geveral telephons
calls with escrow agenta, borrowers and real
estate agents concerning loan payoffs, ilssues
and procedure; review files and documents: woxrk
on information concerning response to subpcena
from AZ Securities Division; telephone call
with R. Anderson regarding representation of
Receilver; prepare email with introduction to R,
Koehler and to esarow agents; wozrk on loan
payoff information for escrows to close;
telephone call with office of K. Merritt;
review f£iles for information for K., Merritt and
W. Cov.

Raview, work on and respond to peveral
emails; review £iles and documents; work on
information concerning response to subpoena
from A% Securities Divigion; work on
information concerniug borrower loane,

Review, work on and respond to several
emallds: work on information concerning
regponse to Subpoena from A¥ Seouxrilties
Divipion; work on information concerming
borrower loans,

Review, work on and respond to several emalls;
review geveral messages; telephone calls with
Bscrow Agents, Real BEstate Agents, borrowers
and Title Company staff regarding loan pay
offg, imgues and procedure; review files and
documentg; work on informatlion concerming
responsa to Subpoena from AZ Securities
Division; review several messages from M.
Blackford; several telephone calls with M.
Blackford; review message from D, Woods;

5.80

2,69

1.60

©

wyoa



CLARK HILY: rr.c

DenSco Investment Corporation
Buginess Wind Down .
Septewber 12, 2016

INVOICE # 670634

Page 8

telephone call with office of D. Woods;
telephone call with D. Woods regarding loan pay
oEfas for Denfoo; review mesgage from XK.
Mexritt; work on loan pay offg information;
telephone call with office of D. Jackman; work
on dooumentsg from fileg for K. Merritt,

08/23/16 DGB Review, work on and respond to meveral 6

enzila; review several messages; several

telephone calls with Edcrow Agentr, horrowers

and real eatate agents regarding loan pay

offs, issues and procedure; review Ffilazs and

documents; work on lnfoymation recuested by

Recelver, other attorneys and for Yedponse to .

Subpoena from AZ Securities Divigilon;

telephone ¢all with D. Jackman regarding loan

.pay off procedure; review several wmesgages

from D, Woods; telephone call with D. Woods;

revilew megsage from M, Blackiord; telephone

call with M., Blackford; review mesgage from

Sara (S8imon Consulting) regarding plck up of

boxes; doordinate sams; forward loan pay off

requests to C. Schmidt; review files to

confirm inforxmation recuested.

.60

08/24/16 DEB Review, work on and respond te geveral 1.60
emails; review messages from borrowers,
egcrow agents and real estate agents; send
emails to direct them to office of Recelver's
aoumepel; xeview and wozk on notes concerning

regponse to Subpoena from AZ Securities
Divislon.

08/25/16 DGR Review, work on and respond to several 2.20
ewails; review meppages; several telephone
calls with borrowers, escrow agents and real
estate agents; review and work on f£iles and
information to respond to Subpoemz from AZ
Secuxities Diviasion.

16 DGB Review, work cn and respond to several 3,80
08/26/ emails; review draft pleadings and proposed
order from R. Anderson; review messages;
review and work on £iles, Qocuments and
information for Receiver and to respond to
Subpoena from AZ Securitles Divieion.

nut



CLARK HILL prc.

DenSce Investment Corporation
Business Wind Down

Septembexr 12, 2016

INVOXCE # 670634

Page 9

08/27/16 DCB Review email and information concerning
police report and lunformation for Reaceiver;
review information concerning 341 Hearing.

08/29/16 DEB Review telephone mazgage Lrom boxrrower;
review, work on and respond to emalls;
forward boxrrower informztion to ¢, Schmidb;
review, work on and respond to several
emalls; review correspondence and pleadings
from R.. Anderson; review information foxm J.
Polegse gnd K, Merritt; review emzlls and
¢ueptiona from Investord.

08/30/16 DGB Review messages from Stewart Title regarding
loan payoff; telsphone call with X, Wettering
regarding loan payoff igsues and procedure;
review email and forward to C., Bchmidt;
review message from K. Merritt; telephone
call with office of K. Merritt; work on files
for trangmittal to Recelver; discuss lsgueg
and procedure with M. Sifferman; review, woxrk
on and regpond toc geveral emails; telephone
call with K. Merritt regarding email, issues
and procedure for privilege log; review
Proposed Administrative Procedure Ordar;
review emails and forward links to K. Merxitt
regarding Zotive Funding Group and partners
of 8., Menaged,

08/31/16 DGB Review message from title company concerning
loan payoif; telephons gall with T, Hall
regaxding same; work on information for £ile

transition,
IIMEREEPER HUMMARY
DGB David &, Beaunchaump 160.80 hours at $460.00 =

.40

2.%0

.90

$73,968.00

873,968,00



&> CLARK HILL

ATTORWBYS AT LAVW

14850 N, Sottsdala Road, Surtts 500

Boottedaic, AZ B5254
Telophons (480) 684-1160
Tod ID £ 33-0425240
INVOICH
Tnvelce f# 677709
DenS¢o Investment Corporation Octcber 18, 2016
Attn: Peter Davie, Recelver Client: 43820
gimon Consulting Matter: 307376
3200 N. Cembtral Avemae
fulte 2480
Thoenix, AZ 85012
=i ] A=t -1t e =
RE: Busginessg Wind Down
FOR SERVICES RENDERED through Septembexr 30, 2016
Total Services: $598.00
INVOICE ‘TOTAL §598.00
e9/1z/1s 570634 $739€68.00
Outstanding Balance: _$73,968.00
TOTAY, AMOUGHT DUE $74,568.00
=3 T =

PAYARLE UPON RHCEIPT IN U 8, DOLLARS

ELAR



CLARK HILY, rrc.

DenSco Inveatment Coxrporation
Businesa Wind Down

Ddtobax 18, 2016

INVOICE # 677709

Fage 2

09/08/16

09/08/16

09/05/16

09/10/18

0s/12/16

09/13/16

08/13/16
09/14/18

DEB

DGEB

DEB

DEB

LGB

pale:]

ETAILED DESCRTPTTION OF SHERVICES

Review and work on f£illes for transition (1.8 no
charge) s telephone call with K, Merritt
regarding Common Sense Agreement;
attorney~client review of documents and
procedure (0.5 no charge).

Work on information and procedure for
transition of files to Recelver; discuss
lpsues and procedurs with M, Sifferman (2.8
uo charge),

Review and respond to emalls £xom M.
Blackford and escrow agemt (0.3); review and
work on files for f£ile transition {1.7 no
chargs).

Review and respond to email Erom M. Blackford
regawding loan payoff (0.1); review and work on
£iles for tramgiltion (2,1 no charge).

Review and resgspond to emall from &. Beretta
in Recelver's office (0.2); veview and
ragpond to ewmall from K. Merritt regarding
files for review; meveral telephone calls
with K. Merritt regarding regarding £iles for
review for attorney-olient infoxmation; work
on flle transition (3.2 no charge).

Review files and confirm infoxrmation of
Receiver; review and respond to emall from 8.
Beretia in Receiveris Office.

Work on £ileg for trangition {2.1 no charge).

Conference call with 8, Beretta in office of P,
Davis (0.1 no charge); sxtended conference ¢all
with XK. Merritt regaxrding attormey-olient
issues and procedurs with Clark Hill files;
prepare for conference call with P. Davils and
woxk on £ile trangition {1.5 no charge).

10

+ 10

.30

- 10

20

.70

.10
10

L3

ur 1 L]



(::Zi) CLARK HILL ryc,

*Dengco Investment Corporation
Businegsg Wind Down

October 18, 2016

INVOICE # 677702

Page 3

08/15/16 DEB Review files information and work on transfer .10
of f£iles (3.2 no charge).
08/16/16 DGR Review emalls and gorrespondence; telephone
call with R, Anderson regarding lssues
concerning requirements for transmittal of
files and prior obligations under AZ
Securities Division gubpoena; wveview ewalls
concerning Common Sense Agreement and
Attorney-Client issues (1.6 no chaxge).

.0

09/23/16 DEB Review and regpond to several emalls concerning 1.20

procedure for Attorney-Client review of files
(1.2 no charge).

TIMEKEEPER SUMMARY
DEB David &. Beauchamp 1.80 houxs at $0.00 =
c:j:) DGR David @, Beaughamp 1.30 hourg at $460.00 =

$598,00

g0.00
$598.00

17



PROOF OF CLAIM

Densco lsvestment Corperation Recsivership
Case No, CV 2015-014142
Peter S, Davls, Recefvar

‘This daim 18 batng sollclted pursyant to Petition Ne 38, A claimsant s 2 person ent{tlad te assert a rght of payment or clalm

against DehSco Mvestmant Carporation or against any Racelvership Asset, For additional Infermation, please access the
Recerver's website at denscorecelveri.podaddysites com or denscalnvestment eom, or eontact the Recewsr i witing at the

address baltw, -
Replaces
Checkhera [fthis Clalmt ] Amends Apraviously$iled claim dated:
[_1supplements =
Claimant Informatiom

NAE  exaomor . %URGENT MAYTER ®
Address; SRl " CLAIV FORVE MUST BE PROVIDED

Scofladin, AZ 85254 TO THE RECEIVER OGN OR BEFORE
Emall; Rlaerg Gk Eloon JUNE 80, 2017
Telephone: soeststor

NON-{MVESTOR CLARVI

& Non-Investar Clglm Is a ¢lalm that does NOY atisa from the placament or lean of the Clalmant's ewn funds with DenSco
lavestment Cotporation pursttand to Confldential Private Offering Memerantda,

Basls for Your Ciaim:

{X} Administrative ¢fai related to gosts or [} Goods Purchased

axpanses insured on or after August 48, <} services Performad
2016 on behalf of the Recavar or DenSeo {IMonsyLoanad
investmant Corporatian {other than ] Wages, Salarfes, and Compensation
Administrative Clalins of the Recelver or the [C) Other Form of Contract
Recawar's egents) [(Jother Type of Clalm

Detalls of Your Slaim; *

Relevant bates: From: August 18, 2646 To: Sggge‘g‘ig_er 38, 2018

ts Your Clalm Sacuyed? A Sectred Clalm Is secured by g property parfactad lian on Recelvarship Assats, An Unsesured
Claimis g Claim against DenSco lnvestment Carporetion or a Recelvership Asset othar than en thvestor ¢lalm,

31 hava a $eenred Clalm {Attach Baidence of Secvity). Socured Ciglm Amount:
Thava an Unsecured Clalm. Unsecured Clalm Amounts  § 23,045.00

Bascription: Plgase provide bejeaw al) relevant details regarding the basis for your elalmy, such as the type of gacds
purchased ar sanviess performed, the purpose of the loan, the natura of the 2ontrast, ete.

Clatk Hn][ gmuded Iecsaj semees ta DengCo lﬁgestneat Cetn. lg June, Julv, Auaust Sedvtember 2016, The wers per-

anumentat!ag of Your Clain:

Plaase attach coples of all decuments in support of this daim, stch as Invoices, statements, contracts, notes, guarantees,
Judgments, evidence of securlty, or any ether documents establishing the indebtedness of DenSeo Investment Corporation
or the Receiverslily Estate to yout, Do not file eriginal decuments with yaur Clalm, If a supporting dosument 15 not avaliable,
you must stéach an explanation as to why the dectumentIs not avaliable,

CLAIMIANT OATH

Ihave personel knowledge of the facts setforth abova and | declare, under the penaliy of perjury,
that the above information Is true and correck,

Namee {(Print}: Ryan J. Lorenz Siprature: . Pate: Juns 24, 2047
Name (Prng};_ Signature; ~ . Date:

Tt

Provida your completed and slgwed Proofof Clalm and coples of all documents supporting your daim
to the Recelvar pn orbaforg fime 30, 2017,
PLEASE MAILTO: DenSco Recawver
Simen Cansulting, L1C
5280 North Central Aventie, Suite 2460
PFiroeniy, Arfzona 85012




Affidavit of Ryan Lorenz

STATE OF ARIZONA )

} 88,
Maricops County )

Rysan Lorenz, first duly sworn, upon his oath, deposes and states as follows:

1. I am over the age of nineteen years, am competent to glve sworn testimony, and
have personal knowledge of all matters set forth in this affidavit.

2. Tama 1999 graduato of Creighton University School of Law and was admitted o
pragtice before courts of the state of Arizona in 1999.

3. In 2002, T was admiited to procfice before the courts of the state of Nevada. I have
also been admitted to practice before the United States District Court for the Districts of Arizona,
Nevada and Colorado; the United States Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit; the United
States Supreme Court; and a dozen tribal courts in Arizona,

4,  1have never had my privilege {o practice suspended or terminated. I have never
been subject to discipline by any couxt.

5. I am fanilisc with the requirement of reasonableness of atforneys’ fees as
provided by ER 1.5, Rule 42, Azizona Rules of the Supreme Court. I am also familiar with
houtly rates, billing practices, and the requirement to document and communicate accurately and
completely tho amount en atierney is billing and justification for such bﬂlmg

6. I am a member in the firm of Clark Hill PLC (“Firm™) and have been with the
Firm since 2009, David Beauchamyp is a member of the Firm in iis corporate practice group and
has been with the firm sinee 2013, Mr, Beauchamp has been admiited to practice in Arizona
since 1981,



7. In 2016 and earlier, the Firm represented DenSco ;nkunent Corporation
(*DenSco™). The subject maiter of the Firm’s work for DenSco was general business advice and
representation,

2. The ¥irm accrued vnpaid attorneys® fees for work performed by Mr. Beauchamp.
These fees were documented by invoices attached fo this affidavit and reflect the fime and effert
expended by Mr. Beaucharap, The Firm is owed $2,300 for 5.0 hours of affomey time at
$460/our, for its invoices refleciing services in June and July 2016,

9. After the death of DenSco’s principal, Denny Chittick, in July 2016, the Firm
transitioned the subject maiter of its work to advice and gnidance to DenSco to assist it in
winding down. its business. Through Angust 17, 2016, Mr. Beauchamp expended 112.0 hours on
intensive daily work to snpport and advise DenSco. At $460/hour, the Firm accrued $51,520 in
billing, Prior to Angust 18, 2016, the total of unpaid fees remaining owing is $53,820,

10.  On and afier August 18, 2016, the Fim continued to provide services to DenSco,
but at a reduced level of intensity, due to the appointment of 2 receiver fo manage its affairs, and
the retention by the receiver of separate counsel. During the remainder of August 2016, Mx.
Beauchamp expended 48,8 hours at $460/kour for a total of $22,448 in fees, -

11.  In September 2016, Mr. Beaughamp expended 3.1 houts in further assisting and
advising DenSco, However, Mr. Beauchamp marked 1.8 hous as “no charge”, thereby reducing
the amount of fees incurred to 1.3 hours at $460/hour, for a total of $598, Betwesn August 18
and September 30, 2016, the Firm accrued $23,046,

12.  Between pre-August 18, 2016, and post-August 17, .2015 fees, the Fim’s
outstanding balance for work performed by Mr. Beauchamp is $76,866.



D

13.  For purposes of asserting a claim against DenSco’s receivership estate, the Firm
has bifurcated these amounts into $53,820 for pre-Angust 18, 2016 and $23,046 for post-Augnst
17, 2016 fees, The Firm claims that the Jater fees were incurred on behalf of DenSeo and are,
therefore, administrative in nature.

14.  Based upon my review of the time entries docmmented and diseussed above, it is
my opinion, based upon my knowledge, experience and imteraction with other atforneys of
similar or greater experience that the time (uantities and howrly rate are reasonable, It is my
further opinion that the fee amounts disenssed gbove are reasonsbie and incurred for DenSco’s
pre- and post-receivership benefit.

Further affiant sayeth naught,

Dated this 21 day of June 2017,

CLARK BILL F1LC

Lorenz
Member

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN TO before me this 21 day of Jane 2017, by Ryan Lorenz,

as a member of Clark Hill PLC,

/

Notary Public




CLARK HILL

ATTORNEYS AT LAW

14350 N, Scottsdala Road, Suts 500
Seottsdnle, AZ 85254
Telsphons (4303 684-1100
Pad 1D ¥ 380425840

INVOICE

Denfco Investment Corporation
Attn: Denny Chittick

5132 W. Victoria Pplace
Chandlex, AZ 85226

Imvotce ¥ 663658

July 22, 2016
Client: 43820
Matter: 170145

== mEmaREREeeIE SERNEDODSEET ===

RE: Business Matters

FCR EERVICES RENDERED through June 3¢, 2016

Total Sexrvices:

INVOICE TOTAL

TOTAL AMOUNT DUE

PAYABLE UPCN RECHIPTIN U § DOLLARS

$1,886.00

§1,886.00

-t



O

CLARK HILL zi.c.

DenSce Investment Corxporation
Businegs Mattexrs

guly 22, 2016

INVOICE # 663658

Page 2

06/02/18 DEB

DETATLED DESCRIPTION OF SERVICES

Review and respond to emails; prepare, work
on and revige detailed response to ADFI and
send to D, Chittick for approval; work on

) information to submit to ADFI.

06/03/16 DEB

06/24/16 DEB

96/28/16 DEB

DCEB David ¢. Beauchawp

Review and respond to several emails

concerning supplemental £lling with ADPI;
attach exhibits and file response.

Review and respond to email from D. Chitbick;
review document.

Review and respond to smail from D. chittdck;
raeview documents and HUD-1; emall questions
regaxrding HUD-1.

TIMERKEEPER SUMMARY

4,10 hours at $460.00

-80

.30

A0

31,886.00

$1,886.00

t1e

“e



CLARK HILL

ATTORNEYS AT LAW

14850 N, Scottadale Roed, Smis 500
Scoltsdals, AZ B3254
"Telephors (430) 63¢-1160
el 1D £ 55-0425840

INVOICE

DenSco Inveptment Corporation
Attn: Pemny Chittick

6132 W. Vietoria Place
Chandler, AZ 85228

e o e

—eaRSRrESsSRxRso=nnos

Invoics # GGEI38

August 16, 2016
Client: 43820

Matter: 170145

RE: Buginess Matters

FOR SERVICES RENDERED through July 31, 2016

Total Services;
INVOICHE TOTAL

07/22/18 663658 §1886.00
Outgtanding Balance:

TOTAL: AMOUNT DUE

PAYABLY UPOR RECEBIPT IN U8 DOLLARS

—_—eeNERRERSRs

$4314.00

$414.00

81,886.00

§2,300.00

—maRRsomEemen



&

CLARK HIIL raxc.

DenSce Imvaptment Corporation
Buaingsg Matters

August 10, 20Le

INVOICH # 666138

Page 2

DETATLED DESCRIPTION OF SERVICESD

07/30/16 DCB Telephone call with R. Koehlexr and . Heuerx
regarding transgitlon after death of D.
Chittiek; review recoxds and obllgations,

07/31/16 DEB Review and xespond to geveral emails concexning
meeting and questlong; review amd respond to

emalls from &. Heuer regarding notice teo
investors.

TIMEKEEPER SUMMARY

DeEB David &. Beauchamp 0.90 bours at $460.00 =

.80

$414.00

£414.00



| CLARK HILL

ATTORNBYS AT LAW

14850 ¥ Scotiedals Road, Suis 500
Scottodats, Arirone B5254
"Teleghono (480) 684-3100

Fed.ID # 38-0425840

INVOICE

DenSco Investment Corporation
Attn: Petar Davis, Receiver
Sinon Comsulting

3200 N. Central Avenus

Suite 2460

Phoenix, A% 85012

o gt o -

Invorce # 670634
September 12, 2016
Cdlient: 43820
Matter: 307376

- = e

RE:; Buginess Wind Down

FOR SERVICES RENDERED through August 31, 2016

Total Serxrvices:

INVOICE TOTAL

PAYARLE UPON RECEFT 1N U 8 DOLLARS

$73,968.00

$73,968,00



D

D

CLARK HIII pi.c,

DenSco Investment Corporatiom
Buginess Wind Down

Septewber 12, 201§

INVOICE # 670634

Fage a

DETATLED DESCRTPTION OF SERVICESD

08/01/16 DGB Review emalls, documentg, lnformation and

08/02/16 DEB

08/03/16 DCB

chreonology of events; telephore ¢all with R,

Koehlexr; smeveral telephone calls with 8, Heuern;

prepare for and meeting with 2, Heuwer and R.

Koehler regarding events, issues, procedure and
requirements; review documents and information;

cutline follow up and procedure; review email
instructions f£rom D. Chittick; outline igsues

and follow up; review information from DendScols

files; work on follow up.

Review, work on and respond to sevaral emails
and text megsaged; review notes, information

from 8. Heuer and work on iuformetion; meeting

with 5. Heuer and review documents and
information; review Managed Bankruptcy Docket
Information and requirements; woxrk on
information for status emaill to Investors;
outline emzil and regearch information foxr
email; work on requirements and outline
procedure for compliance; several telephone
callg with 8. Heusr regarding information and

procedure; telephone c¢all wlth office of R.
Koehler.

Revlew, work on and respond to several emails
and text mesdages; review notes and
information from 8. Heuer and R. Kuehlex
regaxrding information for wupdate to
Investors; work on and prepare detalled
update to Invegtorsg; extended telephone call
with G. Clapper at AZ Securities Division;
several telephone calls with R. Koehler;
several telephone calls with 8. Heuer
regarding updated email to Investors, issues
and procedure; review message from ¥.
Fielding; telephone call with ¥, Flelding
regarding Investoxr information; work on and
revise detailed update to Investors; transmit
gotalled update.

6.70

7.80

LT



CLARK HILL ri.c

- DenSco Investment Corporation
Business Wind Down

Septewber 12, 2016

INVOICE # 670634

Page 3
08/04/16 DGB

08/08/16 DGB

08/06/16 DER

08/07/16 DGB

08/08/16 DaB

Review, work on and respound to several emalls

and text wmessages; extended telsphone call with

8. Heuver regarding new information Ffrom
Invesgtors and AZ Secuvrities Division; work on
information for Investors, progedure and
requirements; review mesgsage £rom K, Johnson;

telephone call with X, Johnson regarding sptatus

of Btatutory Agent, notices and requirements;
raview correspondence from W. Coy of A%
Securities Division; work on inforxmation from
DenSco f£iles; work on information from
Investors; outline questions to addreess.

Review, work on and respond to several emails
and text mesdages; review documents and work
on isgueg and inforwmatlon; several telephone
callg with W. Coyv regarding background
informatlon, requirements, procedure and
ptatug of Menaged Bankruptoy, Lesues and
Procedure; extended telephone call with 8.
Heuer regarding Denfco doctuments, €iles and
information; telephone c¢all with W. Ledut
regarding status and procedure for investors;
prepare detailed status email to all
Investors: woxk on and revise emall; transmit
game.,

Review, woxk on and respond to several emails
and text mesagages; review messages; review
documents and Ilnformation from Investors;
review DenSco files; relay information to
Invegtors from DensSco filles.

Review, work on and respond to several emails
and text meggages; review mesmages; xeview
documents and information from Iuvestors;
review information from DropBox.

Review, work on and regpond to several emails
and text wesgages; review seversl messages;
several telephone calls with L. Shultz and
other investors concerming procedure to take

action agaimst 8. Memaged; review Subpoena from

AZ gecurities Divisilon; foxward Subpoena to
regquired parties; review Subpoena and oukline
information and sources to obtain information
for Subpoena; prepare for and extended
telephone call with W. Coy regarding Subpoena,

8.80
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08/08/16 DEB

0e/10/16 DEB

08/11/16 DGB

Wednerday meeting, issues and procedure;
Prepare detalled ewall update to Investors to
regpond to questions and provide update.

Review, work on and respond to several emalls
and text megsages; prepare for meeting with
AZ Securities Division; work on igsues and
outline follow up; review messages; review
detalled wessage from ¢. Gorman regaxding
selectlon of Receiver, Menaged Bankruptcy;
extended telephone call with C. Gorman
regarding possible Receivership; several
telephona calls with K. Merritt; telephone
call with P. Erbland; work on questiops firom
Invegtors and respond to Invegstors viag ewail;
work on information and questions to discuss
concerning Subpoena wilth AZ Securities
Diviglon; review £iles and information.

Review, work on and rveppond to several emallg
and texXt wessages; review several meggages;
prepare for and meeting with 8. Hewer regarding
prepaxations for meeting with A% Securities
Division; prepare and transmit letter to W. Coy
regarding response to Subpoena; review messages
from 8. Heuer; geveral Ltelephone calls with 2.
Heuer regarding DenSco boxes and procedure,
igsues for meeting and aschedule; meeting with
8. Heuer; meeting with W. Coy, @. Clapper and
B. Woerner {with &. Heusr on pbone) to discugs
igoues, background, Recelvership, cash, lnterinm
instructiong, Subpoena and procedure; review

and work on boxes; review f£ilings E£rom Menaged
Bankrupbay,

Review, work on and respond to several emails
and text messages; roview documents and
information for loan payoffs; review files,
documents and work on information for response
to Subpoena; conference call with 8, Heuwer, J.
Polege and K. Merritt regarding documents,
privilege log and procedure; telephone call
with R. Xoehler regzrding information f£or lozn
payoff, procedure and requirements for DenSco
boxes in posgession of R. Koehler; review
Menaged Bankruptoy docket and igsues; review
documents from Bankruptey affecting DenSco;
review messgages for leoan payoffs..

2.50

7.90
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08/12/16 DEB

08/13/16 DGR

08/14/16 DGEB

08/15/16 DEB

Raview, work on and respond to several smaills
and text megsages; review documents and
information; review message E£xom W. Coy;
telephone call with W. Coy regarding proecedure
for Receiver, isgves and requirements;
vonfarence call with J. Polege and K. Merritt
regarding procedure with Denfco boxes, respohse
to subpoena from AZ Securities Division,
poasible receivables and requirements and
status of Investor files; review mesgsage from
@, Clapper; review message from B. Bdwards of
MainStar Trust; telephone call with offlce of
B, Edwards; review detailed mespsage from K.
Merritt; review message from office of J.
Polese; telephone call with offlce of K.
Merritt; coordinate and work with the transfex
of Dengco boxes; review corregpondence fxom .
Polede; review and respond to questions from
Inveatore vial emall; woxik on loan payoff
information.

Review emall; telephone call with K. Merritt
regarding delivery of D. Chittick's computenr,
additional £iles, DenSco mail and documents;
review information and outline follow up.

Review, work on and respond to several
emalls; work on information concerning loan

payoffs; review geveral emalls from Investors
and respond to same.

Review, work on and respond to geveral emalls

and text megepages; review and work on documents

and information; review messages and
information concerning loan pay-offg; several
telephone conversationg with borrowers, escrow
agents and real eestate agents; work on
information for loan pay-offs; review files and
documents; work on information and issues for
regponge to subpoena from AZ Securitiles
Divigion; weview message fxom K. Merritt;
telephone call with office of K. Merritt;
arrvange for transfer of D. Chittick's computer;
review message from @. Clapper; telephone aall
with G. Clapper regarding Forbearance
Agreemeni; arrange for copy for 6. Clappexr.

B.20
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08/16/16 DeB

08/17/16 DEB

Review, vwork on and respond to several emails 4,20
and text messages; review messages; several
telephone converpations with egcrow agents,
title officers, real estate agents and
boxrowers; review £iles and documents; work on
information and igsues for response to Subpoena
from AZ Securities Divigion; telephons call
with offide of R. RKoehler regerding payoff
calculation; review question from Investor and
respond; review notes and information from B.
Inchtel; telephone call with B, Imchtel.

Review, work on and regpond to geveral emails 11.70
and telephone mepsages; xeview messages;
geveral telephone calls with escrow agents,
borrvowers and real estate agents; work on and
revise Declaration; review POM and file
documents to confirm information For
Declaration; sign and transmit Declaration;
several telephome callg with G. Clapper and W.
Coy; conference call with J, Polese and K.
Merritt RE: motion for and hearing to appoint
recelver; review docduments; work on lssues and
information concerning resgponse to subpoena
from A% Securitiles Division; raview messgage
from L. Bchuitz; several telephone calls with
L. Schultz regarding loan payoffs, ipsues and

procedure; follow up with emalls; review 0BO12016 -
megsages from B. Edwarde; telephone call with DaM7I2018
office of B. Edwards; review mesbage Fform M,
Blacgkbird regarding loan payofils; several

Subbobal:
telephone calls with M, Blackbird regarding
loan payoffs; telephone call wlth R. Koehlerxr 142.0hrs @
regarding loan payoffs; revlew message from P. 8460/ =

crawford; telephone call wilth K. Merritt
regarding loan payoffs and information; $54,520
telephone call with P. Crawford regarding Deeds

of Releage and documentatlon for release.

08/18/16 DGB

Review, work on and respond to several emalls  12.50
and text messages; Yeview messages; several

telephone calls with W. Coy and &. Clapper DRI4&/2016 -
regarding information for hearing; travel to 081312016
and attend hearing; woxrk with €. Clapper )
concermning loan fileg; discuss issues and Subtotat:
procedure with W. Coy; meeting with K,
Merritt to discuss attorney-client privilege 18.8trs @
log and regponse to subpoena from AZ $460/hr =
gfecurities Division; work on ilgsues and

$22.448

up b
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08/15/16 DGB

08/20/16 DEB

08/21/16 DEB

08/22/16 DEB

information for response to subpoena; geveral
telephone calls with T. Hall regarding
documentation for releasgse of loan escorow;
review loan £iles; insert loan payoff
information from R, Koshler and transmit
payoff information; review documents and
information From W, Coy.

Review, work on and respond to several emzils
from Imvestors, borrowers and third parties:
review geveral messages; several telephone
calls with escrow agents, borrowers apnd real
estate agents concerning loan payoffs, ilssues

and procedure; review files and documents; work

on information concerning respense to subposva
from A% Securities Division; telephone call
with R. Anderson xegaxding representation of
Receliver; prepare email with introduction to R.
Koehler and to escrweow agents; work on loan
payoff information for escrows to close;
telephone call wlth offlce of K. Merritt,;

review files for information for XK. Merritt and

W. Coy.

Review, work on and respond to several
ema2ils; review files and documents; work on
information concerning vesponse to subpoena
Erom AZ Sacurities Divigion; work on
informatien concerning borrower loans,

Review, woxrk on and respond to several
emalls; work on information concerning
resgponge to Subpoena from AZ Securities
Division; work on information concerning
borxrower loans.

Revlew, work on and regpond to several emwails;
raview severxal messages; telephone calls with
Egorow Agenteg, Real Estate Agents, borroweny
and Title Company staff regarding loan pay
offe, issues and procedure; reviaw files and
documents; work on information concerning
regpomge to Subpoena from AZ Securities
Division; review several meszages from M.
Blackfiord; several telaphene calls with M.
Blackford; review message from D. Woods;

6.80
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telephone call with office of D. Woods;
telephone call with D. Woods regarding loan pay
offg for Demfco; review message from K.
Merritt; work on loan pay offs information;
telephone call with offlce of B, Jackman; work
on documents E£rom filles for K. Marmitt.

08/33/16 DEB Review, work on and respond to several
emails; review several messages; several
telephone calls with Escorow Agente, borrowers
and real estate sgents regarding lean pay
offs, issuves and procedure; review £lle and
documents; work om informatlion requested hy
Receiver, other attorneys and for response to
Subpoena from AZ Secuxities Divigion; ;
telephone call with D, Jackwan regarding loan
pay off procedure; review several megsages
from D, Woods; telephone call with D. Woods;
review meppage from M. Blackford; telephone
c¢all with M, Blackford; review message from
Sara (Simon Consulting} regarding pick up of
boxes; coordinate gpame; forward loan pay off
requests to C. Schmidb; review files to
confirm information reguested.

08/24/16 DGB Review, work on and respend to sevaral 1.60
emails; review megsages from borrowers,
eporow agents and real eptate agents; send
ewalls to direct them to office of Reocelver's
coungel; review and work on notes concerning

resgonse to Subpoena from AZ Securities
Divigion,

08/25/16 DEB Review, work on and respond to geveral 2.20
emails; review messages; ssveral telephone
calls with borrowers, escrow agents and real
cpkate agents; review and work on files and
information to respond te Subpoeuna from AZ
Securities Division.

08/26/16 DGB Review, work on and respond to several 3.80
emailg; review draft pleadings and proposed
order from R, Anderscon; review messaged;
review and work on £iles, documents and
information for Receiver and to respond to
Subpoena from AZ Securities Pivision.,

¥y
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08/27/16 DGB Review email and informatilon concerning
police report and information for Regeiver;
review information concerning 341 Hearing.

08/29/15 DGR Review telephone meggsage from borrower;
raview, work on and respond to emails;
forward borrower information to C. Schmidt;
review, work on and respond to several
emalls; review correspondence and pleadings
Exom R. Anderson; review information form J.
Polege and K. Merritlt; raview emails and
questions from Investora.

08/30/16 DCB Revilew memsages from Stewart Title regarding
loan payoff; telephome eall with K. Wettering
regarding loan payoff -imssuesg and procedure;
review emaill and forward to C. Schmidt;
review megsage from K, Marritt; telaphone
call with office of XK. Merritt; work on files
for trangmittal to Receiver; discuss issues
and procedure with M. Sifferman; review, work
on and respond to several emails; telephone
call with K, Merritt regarding email, lssues
and procedure for privilege log; meview
Proposed Administrative Procedurs Order;
review emalls and forward links to XK. Merritt
regarding Active Punding Group and partners
ocf B. Menaged.

08/31/16 DEB Revliew message from title company concerning
loan payoff; telephone call with T. Hall

regarding same; work on information for f£ile
trangition.

TINEXEEPER SUMMARY

DEB David G. Beauchamp 160.80 hours ak 8$460,00 =

40

.90

$73,968.00

$72,968.00

T
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SO CLARK HILL

ATTOBRNEYS AT LAW

14856 N, Scotwdals Rond, Snits 530
Seatteddls, AZ B5254
‘Telophone (480) 684-110D
Ped 1D 4 35-0425840

INVOICE

Tovoico # 677709
DenSco Investment Corporation

October 18, 2016
Attn: Peter Davis, Recelver Clienk: 43820
Simon Comsulting Mabtex: 307378
3200 N. Central Avemue

Sulite 2460

Phoenix, AZ 35012

T = L b b R A o g i SSTET = ety P
RE: Busginess Wind Dowm
FOR SHERVICES RENDERED through deptember 30, 2018
Total Servicesa; $598.00
THVOICE TOTAL 5588.00
os/i12/1s 670634 £73868.00
outgtanding Balance: _893,968,00
POTAL AMOUNT DUE 474,566.00
P e

PAYABLE UPON RECEIPT IN U 8, DOLLARS

“n e




CLARXK HYLL: pxr.c

Dengco Investment Corporation
Business Wind Down

Octobar 18, 2016

INVOICE § 677709

Page 2

0s/05/16

09/08/16

09/03/16

08/10/16

08/12/16

08/13/16

098/13/16
Q9/14/16

DEB

DaEB

DGR

DEB

DERB

nes

DGEB
DEB

DETATLED DESCRIPTION OF SERVICES

Review and work on f£iles for transition (1.8 no
charge) ; telephone ¢all with X, Merritt
regarding Common Sense Agreement;
attorney-client review of documents and
procedure (0.5 no charge).

Work on informatlon and proceduxe for
trangition of £iles to Receiver; discugs
igeues and procedure with M, Sifferman {2.8
no charxrgel.

Reviaw and respond to emails from M,
Blackford and escrow agent (0.3); review and
work on f£ililes for file transition (1.7 no
charge) .

Review and respond to email £rom M. Blackfond
regarding loan payoff {0.1); review and work on
fllep for tranzition {2.1 no charge).

Review and respond to emall from 8. Bexetta
in Recelver’s office (0.2}; review and
regpond to emall from K. Merritt regarding
files for review; several telephone calls
with K. Merxitt regaxrding regarding f£illea for

review for attorney~client information; work,
on £lle trangition (3.2 no charge),

Review files and confirm information of
Receiver; review and respond to emall fixom 8.
Berotta in Receiveris Office.

VWork on files foxr tramsition (2.1 no charge).

Conference call with 8. Berxetta lun office of P,
Davis (0.1 no chaxge); extended conference call
with K. Mexxitt »egarding attorney-client
issues and procedurs with Clark Hill flles;
prepare for comference call with P. Davie and
work on f£ile twansltion (1.5 no charge}.

.10
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INVOICE # 6777085
Page 3

08/15/16 DEB Review files information and work on transfer .10 .
of files (3.2 no chaxge),
09/16/16 DGB Review emalls and sorrsgpondence; telephone
call with R, Anderson regarding lesues
concerning reculrements for trangmittal of
flleg and prior cbligations undexr A%Z
Sacurities Division subpoena; review emaile
concerning Cowmmon Sense Agreement and
Attorney-Client issues (1.5 no charge),

.10

09/23/16 DEB Review and respond to several emalls concerning 1,20

procedure for Attorney-Client review of fileg
(1,2 no charge).

4598.00

TIMERERPER SUMMARY
'DEB David . Beauchamp 1.80 hours at 80.00 = g0.00
DEB David 8. Beauchamp 1.320 hours at $460.00 = £598,00
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